
  
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Cabinet 
 

Agenda 
 

 

MONDAY 
7 SEPTEMBER 2020 
6.30pm 
 
 
 
THIS MEETING WILL 
BE HELD 
REMOTELY  
It will be streamed via 
YouTube on: 
youtu.be/RoX7glnqZXk  

Membership 
 
Councillor Stephen Cowan, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Sue Fennimore, Deputy Leader 
Councillor Larry Culhane, Cabinet Member for Children and Education 
Councillor Andrew Jones, Cabinet Member for the Economy  
Councillor Wesley Harcourt, Cabinet Member for the Environment  
Councillor Max Schmid, Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial 
Services  
Councillor Ben Coleman, Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social 
Care 
Councillor Lisa Homan, Cabinet Member for Housing 
Councillor Adam Connell, Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform 
Councillor Sue Macmillan, Cabinet Member for Strategy 
 

Date Issued 
25 August 2020 

If you require further information relating to this agenda please contact: 
Katia Neale, Committee Coordinator, tel: 07776 672 956 or email: 
katia.neale@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Reports on the open Cabinet agenda are available on the Council’s 
website: www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy 

 
 
 

 

 
 
PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and public may listen-in to proceedings at this 
‘virtual’ meeting via the weblink.  Members of the press and public may tweet, blog etc. during the 
live broadcast as they would be able to during a regular Committee meeting at the Town Hall.  It 
is important, however, that Councillors can discuss and take decisions without disruption, so the 
only participants in this virtual meeting will be the Councillors concerned, the officers advising the 
Committee and registered speakers who have submitted a valid deputation or petition in advance. 

 
 

https://youtu.be/RoX7glnqZXk
mailto:katia.neale@lbhf.gov.uk
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPUTATIONS 

Members of the public may submit a request for a deputation to the Cabinet on item 
numbers 4-6 on this agenda using the Council’s Deputation Request Form. The completed 
Form, to be sent to Kayode Adewumi at the above address, must be signed by at least ten 
registered electors of the Borough and will be subject to the Council’s procedures on the 
receipt of deputations. Deadline for receipt of deputation requests:  Wednesday 2 
September 2020. 

COUNCILLORS’ CALL-IN TO SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

A decision list regarding items on this agenda will be published by Tuesday 8 September 
2020.  Items on the agenda may be called in to the relevant Accountability Committee. 
 
The deadline for receipt of call-in requests is:  Friday 11 September 2020 at 3.00pm. 
Decisions not called in by this date will then be deemed approved and may be 
implemented. 
 
A confirmed decision list will be published after 3:00pm on Friday 11 September 2020. 

 

 
 



 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Cabinet 
Agenda 

 
7 September 2020 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 6 JULY 2020  5 - 12 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

3.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards 
Committee. 
 

 

4.   CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITOR & BUDGET VARIATIONS, 
2019/20 (OUTTURN)  

13 - 40 

5.   2019/20 GENERAL FUND REVENUE OUTTURN REPORT  41 - 64 

6.   2020/21 CORPORATE REVENUE MONITOR -  MONTH 2 (MAY 2020)  65 - 108 



 

 

7.   FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS  109 - 125 

8.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS   

 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - ACCESS TO INFORMATION 

  

Proposed resolution: 

  
Under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, that the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting during the consideration 
of the following items of business, on the grounds that they contain the 
likely disclosure of exempt information, as defined in paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the said Act, and that the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption currently outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.        

 

 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

.  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Cabinet 
Minutes 

 

Monday 6 July 2020 
 

 

 
PRESENT 
 
Councillor Stephen Cowan, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Sue Fennimore, Deputy Leader 
Councillor Ben Coleman, Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care 
Councillor Adam Connell, Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform 
Councillor Larry Culhane, Cabinet Member for Children and Education 
Councillor Wesley Harcourt, Cabinet Member for the Environment 
Councillor Andrew Jones, Cabinet Member for the Economy 
Councillor Lisa Homan, Cabinet Member for Housing 
Councillor Sue Macmillan, Cabinet Member for Strategy 
Councillor Max Schmid, Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial Services 
 

 
INTRODUCTIONS 
 
The Leader welcomed everyone to the third virtual Cabinet meeting held by the 
Council and asked all Cabinet Members to introduce themselves in turn. 
 
The Leader stated that following the relaxation of the lockdown measures over 
the weekend, people across the country were able to visit pubs, shops and 
other facilities, not available since the start of the lockdown. However, as a 
consequence, the police had to deal with a hefty number of anti-social 
behaviour.  
 
The Leader added that on Friday hundreds of people came from across London 
to the White City Estate to hold an illegal party. Local residents and council 
wardens quickly contacted the police for help dispersing it. Several police 
officers got injured as they were attacked by a violent crowd.  
 
The Leader thanked council officers, the police, other services and the 
administration, who were involved in helping to deal with this serious issue. He 
added that the Council would be increasing considerably the spend in policing, 
law enforcement and the police presence on streets. 
 
Both the Leader and the Deputy Leader strongly condemned such 
unauthorised parties in the middle of a pandemic, as they were dangerous and 
wholly unacceptable. Council officers would work with residents and the police 
to identify the organisers of this party and take the strongest possible action.  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

The Cabinet Member for Housing welcomed the tremendous effort made by 
staff from the housing department to communicate effectively with local 
residents and to help the police on Friday and Saturday. 
 
The Leader thanked council officers for the effective way they had been 
working to maintain service continuity since the beginning of the pandemic and 
for supporting so many residents. He also thanked the borough’s residents, 
community groups, volunteers, charities, and local businesses for coming 
together to support others across the borough.  
 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 1 JUNE 2020  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 1 June 2020 be 
confirmed and signed as an accurate record of the proceedings, and that the 
outstanding actions be noted. 
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 
 

3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

4. EARLY HELP, CHILDREN’S CENTRE AND YOUTH SERVICES BUDGET 
SPEND INCREASE  
 
Councillor Culhane introduced the report and stated that it was seeking 
approval for additional budget to support spend for Children’s Services early 
help, children’s centre and youth services budget for financial year 2020/21. 
This would ensure continued levels of provision whilst work was untaken to 
redesign and re-procure these services.  
 
The Leader put the recommendations to the vote. 
 
AGREED UNANIMOUSLY BY CABINET: 

 
1. That appendices 1, 2, and 3 are exempt from disclosure on the ground they 

contain information relating to the financial or business affairs of a particular 
person (including the authority holding that information) under paragraph 3 
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, and in all the 
circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

2. That Cabinet approve additional time limited funds of up to £750,000 from 
the Council’s general fund reserves to ensure the continued provision of 

Page 6



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

early help, children’s centre and youth services.  
 

3. That Cabinet delegates authority to the Director of Children’s Services in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Children and Education to 
approve a new commissioning strategy for the delivery of Early Help, 
Children’s Centres and Youth provision within budget for 2021/22. 
 

4. That Cabinet note the reasons for the current overspend and the 
requirement to redesign and recommission all contracts and provision 
relating to early help, children's centres and youth provision to mitigate 
future overspend so that no additional investment is required from 2021/22 
onwards. 

 
Reason for decision:  
As set out in the report. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
As outlined in the report. 
 
Record of any conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
 

5. CIVIC CAMPUS - AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR THE REFURBISHMENT 
AND FIT-OUT OF THE TOWN HALL  
 
Councillor Jones introduced the report and stated that it was seeking approval 
to enter into the main construction contract to enable the project to proceed and 
for the new Town Hall to open in Spring 2022. 
 
The Leader put the recommendations to the vote. 
 
AGREED UNANIMOUSLY BY CABINET: 
 
1. To approve that Appendix 1 be exempt from disclosure on the ground it 

contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of a 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) under 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, and in 
all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 
2. That Cabinet approves £860,841 additional capital budget for the fit out 

of the Town Hall (including the extension) which reflects an equivalent 
revenue saving within the approved project budget and is in line with the 
Council’s strategy to protect reserves. 

 
3.  That the Council enters into a contract with Ardmore Construction 

Limited for the refurbishment of the existing Grade 2 Listed Building plus 
the fit out of the Town Hall (including Cat B fit out of the glass box 

Page 7



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

vertical extension) and that the contract value shall not exceed the 
approved capital budget. 

 
4.  To delegate authority to the Strategic Director for the Economy, in 

consultation with the Head of Law, Director for Finance and the Cabinet 
Member for the Economy to finalise and complete negotiations with 
Ardmore Construction Limited to give effect to the decision in 3. 

 
5.  That authority be delegated to the Strategic Director for the Economy, in 

consultation with the Director of Finance, the Cabinet Member for the 
Economy and the Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial 
Services, to agree an additional 5% variation of the approved capital 
budget to accommodate any potential increase in contract costs or 
approved specification changes following approval of this report, to be 
funded from borrowing. 

 
Reason for decision:  
As set out in the report. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
As outlined in the report. 
 
Record of any conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
 

6. INVESTMENT IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND APPROPRIATION OF 
SITES  
 
Councillor Jones stated that this report was seeking approval to appropriate two 
sites in order to deliver up to 1,800 homes and much needed genuinely 
affordable housing. It also set out funding for the redevelopment of Edith 
Summerskill House, in Fulham, to offer genuinely affordable housing. 
 
Councillor Coleman praised the scheme and welcomed the policy at Edith 
Summerskill House offering local residents first refusal to let an affordable 
home. This policy was highly supported by the local community. 
 
Councillor Homan stated that the police to offer local residents the first option 
applied to all new affordable housing being developed across the borough, 
which would be very helpful to local residents. 
 
The Leader put the recommendations to the vote. 
 
AGREED UNANIMOUSLY BY CABINET: 

 
1. To agree that Appendix 1 is not for publication on the basis that it 

contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) as set 

Page 8



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

out in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
(as amended). 
 

2. To approve a capital budget of £4,504,070 in the General Fund (GF) to 
facilitate the redevelopment of the Farm Lane Site and the Mund Street 
Site to the planning and procurement stages. 
 

3. To delegate authority to the Strategic Director for the Economy in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for the Economy authority to 
approve any drawdowns of the approved capital budget above £2.5 
million. 
 

4. To approve the virement of S106 funding of £3.5m from the 
redevelopment of Edith Summerskill House to the fund the initial 
allocation of the above budget. 
 

5. To note that the remaining budget of £2.004m will be funded from a 
combination of capital receipts and borrowing and delegate final 
confirmation of funding to the Director of Finance in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for the Finance and Commercial Services.  
 

6. That Cabinet resolves that the areas of land shown edged red on the 
plans at Appendix 2 of the report are no longer required for the purpose 
for which they are currently held (General Fund purposes). 

 
7. To approve the appropriation of the two areas of land and assets shown 

edged red on the plans at Appendix 2 from the General Fund to the 
Housing Revenue Account subject to securing external valuations and 
approval of the Head of Asset Strategy and Portfolio (Borough Valuer).  
 

8. To delegate authority to the Director of Finance in consultation with the 
Head of Asset Strategy and Portfolio (Borough Valuer) and the Cabinet 
Member of Finance and Commercial Services to take the necessary 
steps, including securing external valuation of the sites in order to 
facilitate the decision in 6 and consequently, re-assign the development 
budget and spend to the HRA from the General Fund. 

 
Reason for decision:  
As set out in the report. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
As outlined in the report. 
 
Record of any conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
 
 

Page 9



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

7. CLIMATE AND ECOLOGICAL EMERGENCY AND COVID-19 RECOVERY – 
TRAFFIC TRANSPORT AND PARKING MEASURES  
 
Councillor Harcourt stated that this report was setting out new transport 
policies, traffic control measures and initiatives that would support the Council 
to be one of the greenest Councils in the UK and carbon neutral by 2030. He 
added that since the start of the pandemic, there had been major improvements 
to carbon emissions. The traffic measures proposed on this report would not 
only enable responding to the climate emergency but also would give greater 
agility in responding to the current Covid-19. Each option would be fully 
consulted on at appropriate stages. 
 
Sharon Lea, the Strategic Director for the Environment, stated that since writing 
this report and in light of the pandemic, officers would like to update 
recommendation 7 on the report, first bullet point, and replace “Option 3” with 
“Option 4” of the Pay and Display Emission Based Parking Controls, as set out 
in Table 1 of Appendix 1 of the report. The main reason for this change was 
that the considerable rise in vehicle usage for commuting was adding pressure 
on to the recent increased demand for road space to provide for active travel, 
local businesses and social distancing. People were looking for alternative 
ways of transport, putting pressure on traffic and the limited parking spaces 
available in the borough. Commuters from other areas were parking in this 
borough for 8 hours and continue their journey into other parts of London. The 
Council wanted to improve the air quality to residents, so measures needed to 
be taken to discourage this practice. 
 
The Leader stated that the borough’s low cost on parking meant that there was 
a risk of losing a significant number of parking spaces available to local 
residents. 
 
The Leader put the recommendations to the vote. 
 
AGREED UNANIMOUSLY BY CABINET: 
 
That Cabinet approves: 
 

1. The use of transport controls for the reduction in carbon emissions, the 
improvement of air quality and the improvement of public safety through 
low traffic neighbourhoods. 
 

2. The development of a programme of Low Traffic Neighbourhoods and to 
delegate authority to the Chief Officer for Public Realm, in consultation 
with the Cabinet Member for the Environment, to approve the 
programme. 
 

3. The development of a programme of healthier streets in conjunction with 
the schools and to delegate authority to the Chief Officer for Public 
Realm, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for the Environment, to 
approve the programme.  
 

4. That CCTV enforcement cameras be replaced, where appropriate, with 
new intelligent cameras. 

Page 10



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
5. That Controlled Parking Zones be reviewed, and that authority be 

delegated to the Chief Officer for Public Realm, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for the Environment, to finalise the terms of the 
consultation and to decide upon, and implement, the most appropriate 
option once the consultation is concluded. 
 

6. The preparation of the business case for Work Place Parking Levy. 
 

7. A consultation on the introduction of Emission Based Parking Controls 
based on the DVLA model and diesel surcharging: 
 

 Option 4 of the Pay and Display Emission Based Parking Controls as 
set out in Table 1 of Appendix 1. 
 

 Option 1 of the Permit Emission Based Parking Controls as set out in 
table 4 of Appendix 1. 
 

 The diesel surcharging for Pay & Display with the surcharge rate at 
EB3 (50%) from Table 6, of the base tariff.   

 

 The diesel surcharging for Residents permit parking with the 
surcharge rate at EB3 (50%) from Table 6, of the base tariff.   

 
8. That authority is delegated to the Chief Officer for Public Realm, in 

consultation with the Cabinet Member for the Environment, to finalise the 
terms of the consultation on the introduction of Emission Based Parking 
Controls and diesel surcharging and to decide upon, and implement, the 
most appropriate option once the consultation is concluded. 
 

9. Approve e-parking and cashless parking. 
 
Reason for decision:  
As set out in the report. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
As outlined in the report. 
 
Record of any conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

8. PLANNING OBLIGATIONS DRAW DOWN REPORT 2019/20  
 
Councillor Jones stated that this report was seeking approval for the 2019/20 
spend of monies received from S106 obligations and CIL for projects which had 
been delivered in 2019/20.  
 
The Leader put the recommendations to the vote. 
 
AGREED UNANIMOUSLY BY CABINET: 

 
That Cabinet approves the 2019/20 drawdown of Section 106 and CIL monies 
as set out in section 4 of this report, to fund expenditure of £15,948,457, 
including £254,754 of monitoring and administration costs. 
 
Reason for decision:  
As set out in the report. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected: 
As outlined in the report. 
 
Record of any conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest: 
None. 
 
 

9. FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS  
 
The Key Decision List was noted. 
 
 

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
The Leader closed the meeting by wishing everybody to stay safe and stressing 
the need to keep the 2 meters social distancing and to wear a mask in enclosed 
spaces, to help stop spread of the virus. 
 
 
 

 
Meeting started: 6.30 pm 
Meeting ended: 6.55 pm 

 
 

 
Chair 

  

 

Page 12



 

 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to: Cabinet 
 
Date: 7 September 2020 
 
Subject: CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITOR & BUDGET VARIATIONS, 

2019/20 (OUTTURN) 
 
Report of: Councillor Max Schmid, Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial     

Services 
 
Responsible Director:  Emily Hill, Director of Finance  
 

 
SUMMARY 
 

1. This report provides a summary of the Council’s capital programme outturn for the 
financial year 2019-20. The total capital expenditure for the year was £113.1m 
and headline General Fund capital debt at the year-end was £114.08m.  
 

2. During the year, through it capital programme, the Council has invested in a 
number of important schemes and priorities which have included: 

 progression of the Civic Campus Programme and the refurbishment of the 
Town Hall as part of the Council’s plans for the regeneration of West 
Kings Street  

 the re-acquisition of the former Gibbs Green school and Farm Lane sites 
as part of the termination of the Earl’s Court Conditional Land Sale 
Agreement 

 the investment in the Council’s, previously leased, offices at 145/155 King 
Street, delivering control and the ability to invest in the offices and 
delivering long term revenue savings 

 continued investment in affordable housing schemes and the Council’s 
social housing stock including fire safety measures and the demolition of 
Hartopp & Lannoy Points. 

 
3. Despite the potential delays that may be experienced in taking forward its capital 

developments and priorities due to the Covid-19 pandemic, at present the Council 
has not yet experienced any significant or irrecoverable delays to the programme 
and this will be kept closely under review.  

 
4. This report seeks approval for fourth-quarter 2019-20 budget variations resulting 

in a net increase of £13.9m (£18.8m increase in General Fund, and £4.9m 
decrease in Housing) to the 2019-20 capital budget. The increase in the General 
Fund programme in the fourth-quarter is largely explained by the acquisition of the 
Council’s previously leased offices at 145/155 King Street. The detailed analysis 
of the budget variances is presented in Appendix 2.  

 
5. The 2019-20 accounts, which underpin figures in this report, remain subject to 

audit. The audit is anticipated to be finalised in August 2020. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

1. To approve the budget variations to the capital programme as summarised in 
Table 1 and detailed in Appendix 2. 

 
2. To note the capital outturn for the year. 

 
Wards Affected: All  
 

 
H&F Priorities 
 
The capital programme contains schemes and projects which are directly linked to 
the Council’s Business Plan 2018-22 and which deliver across the Council’s priorities.  
 

Our Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to the H&F 
Priorities  

 Being ruthlessly financially 
efficient 

All capital investment decisions are required to be 
underpinned by a robust business case that sets 
out costs and any expected financial return 
alongside the broader outcomes including 
economic and social benefits. As part of being 
ruthlessly financially efficient, the Council’s capital 
programme reflects the Councils plans to manage 
and develop its assets to achieve greater 
efficiency and improve service delivery.   
 
This report provides detailed analysis of the 
Council’s capital programme financial position 
and highlights any potential risks and their impact 
on the Council’s resources. 

 
Financial Impact 
 
This report is wholly of a financial nature. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
There are no direct legal implications in relation to this report. Legal advice will be 
sought for each Procurement within the programme and will comply with the 
Council’s Contract Standing Orders and the Public Contract Regulations. 
 

Contact Officer(s): 
 
Name: Andrew Lord 
Position: Head of Strategic Planning and Monitoring 
Telephone: 020 8753 2531 
Email: Andrew.lord@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 14



 

Name:  Emily Hill 
Position: Director of Finance 
Telephone: 020 8753 3145 
Email: Emily.Hill@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Name: Adesuwa Omoregie 
Position: Chief Solicitor (Planning and Property) 
Telephone: 02087532297 
Email: adesuwa.omoregie@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 

 
The following documents disclose important facts on which the report is based and have 
been relied upon in preparing the report: 
 

 Capital Programme 2019-23 (published February 2019) 
 
 
  

Page 15

mailto:Emily.Hill@lbhf.gov.uk


 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019-20 – OUTTURN OVERVIEW 
 

1. Capital expenditure for 2019-20 totalled £113.1m. This compared to the original 
budget of £121m and a forecast of £99.2m at quarter 3. Key areas of capital 
spend during the year included: 

 £19.6m to acquire the Council’s, previously leased, offices at 145/155 
King Street 

 £15.8m to acquire the former Gibbs Green school and Farm Lane sites as 
part of the termination of the Earl’s Court Conditional Land Sale 
Agreement 

 £21.2m investment in the Council’s social housing stock and fire safety 
measures 

 £13.1m on the boroughs’ highways, including upgrading pay and display 
machines and LED lighting columns 

 £11.4m on the Civic Campus and Hammersmith Town Hall 
Refurbishment 

 £10m Hartopp & Lannoy Points site decant and demolition 

 £9.6m on Affordable Housing schemes.  
 

2. An analysis of spend by department1 and proposed budget variations is shown in 
Table 1 with further details in Appendix 1. A full analysis of the programme funded 
from internal Council resource is included in paragraphs 7 to 11. 

 
Table 1 – LBHF Capital Programme 2019-23 with proposed 2019-20 Q4 variations: 

 
                                            
1
 In June 2020, as a result of a restructure, the Finance and Governance and Public Services Reform 

departments have been disbanded with functions transferring to other departments including two new 
departments for Finance and Resources. This outturn report reflects the position in 2019-20. 

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q3)

Slippages 

from/(to) 

future years 

Addition/

(Reduction)
Transfers

Total 

Variations 

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q4)

2020/21

Original 

Budget

Slippages, 

Additions 

and 

Reductions

2020/21 

Revised 

Budget

2021/22 2022/23
Total Budget 

(All years)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Children's Services 1,712 (771) (364)             - (1,135)          577 7,372            771      8,143      2,238        2,238          13,196 

Social Care 2,678 (454) (205)             - (659)       2,019 1,557            454      2,011              -               -            4,030 

Environment Department 19,121 (4,043) (419)             - (4,462)     14,659 7,493         6,658    14,151    19,873        4,948          53,631 

Finance & Governance      3,610 (659)       20,107             - 19,448     23,058       8,409            659      9,068      2,400        2,400          36,926 

General Fund Schemes under the 

Economy Department

   26,761 5,872 (289)             - 5,583     32,344     36,714 (5,134)    31,580    68,887    114,098         246,909 

Sub-total (General Fund) 53,882   (55)           18,830                  - 18,775        72,657     61,545         3,408    64,953    93,398    123,684         354,692 

Economy Department-HRA 

Programme

45,305 (5,440) 539             - (4,901)     40,404 79,882 1,338    81,220    56,131      48,266         226,021 

Sub-total Economy Department 

(HRA)

45,305 (5,440) 539                       - (4,901)     40,404     79,882 1,338    81,220    56,131      48,266         226,021 

 Total Expenditure 99,187 (5,495) 19,369             - 13,874   113,061   141,427         4,746  146,173   149,529    171,950         580,713 

CAPITAL FINANCING    

Specific/External Financing:

Government/Public Body Grants 4,340 (1,175) (569) (88) (1,832)       2,508 6,529 1,175      7,704 2,238 2,238          14,688 

Grants and Contributions from Private 

Developers (includes S106/CIL)

16,883 (1,164) (995) (1,011) (3,170)     13,713 15,597 (616)    14,981    30,019      13,209          71,922 

Capital Grants/Contributions from Non-

departmental public bodies

1,303 (626) 1,011 (365) 20       1,323 358 710      1,068              -               -            2,391 

Capital Grants and Contributions from 

GLA Bodies

5,228 (1,189) (354)             - (1,543)       3,685 3,357 5,389      8,746    17,222        4,241          33,894 

Leaseholder Contributions (Housing)      5,541         2,463                 -             - 2,463       8,004 2,891                -      2,891 5,380 3,791          20,066 

Sub-total - Specific Financing 33,295 (1,691) (907) (1,464) (4,062)     29,233     28,732         6,658    35,390    54,859      23,479         142,961 

Mainstream Financing (Internal):

Capital Receipts - General Fund      1,500 (376)                 -             - (376)       1,124       2,036 376      2,412              - 3,456            6,992 

Capital Receipts - Housing* 9,889 (1,725) (480)             - (2,205)       7,684 10,623 846    11,469 7,590 6,844          33,587 

Major Repairs Reserve (MRR) 

[Housing]

16,331 (3,172)                 -             - (3,172)     13,159 24,249 (447)    23,802 16,990 17,257          71,208 

General Fund Revenue Funding              -                - 587           57 644          644              -                -             -              -               -               644 

HRA Revenue Funding              -                -              53         121 174          174              -                -             -              -               -               174 

Earmarked Reserves (Revenue) 1,547 (331) (253) (382) (966)          581          521 563      1,084         521           521            2,707 

Sub-total - Mainstream Funding 29,267 (5,604) (93) (204) (5,901)     23,366     37,429         1,338    38,767    25,101      28,078         115,312 

Borrowing 36,625 1,800 20,369 1,668 23,837     60,462     75,266 (3,250)    72,016    69,569    120,393         322,440 

 Total Capital Financing 99,187 (5,495) 19,369             - 13,874   113,061   141,427         4,746  146,173 149,529 171,950 580,713

Analysis of Movements (Q3 to Q4) Next Year Programme Indicative Future Years 

Analysis

Page 16



 

 
 
3. A net variation to the 2019-20 programme of £13.9m is proposed, increasing 

total budgeted expenditure from £99.2m to £113.1m. The below attached table 
summarises the main movements.  A detailed analysis of proposed variations 
for approval is included at Appendix 2. 

 

HRA Programme £m 

Budget reprofiling of various HRA capital schemes into future years (0.7) 

Budget reprofiling of Building Homes and Communities Strategy schemes 
to future years 

(1.1) 

Budget reprofiling of HRA Asset Management and Compliance 
Programme schemes to future years  

(3.1) 

Total HRA budget variations (4.9) 

General Fund Programme  

Acquisition of 145/155 King Street office site 19.6 

Civic Campus: Joint Venture loan brought forward from future years to 
reflect actual spend 

6.0 

Civic Campus: Hammersmith Town Hall Fit-Out budget brought forward to 
reflect actual spend on equipment purchased for leased offices (which will 
transfer)  

1.5 

Civic Campus: Hammersmith Town Hall Refurbishment budget reprofiling (0.5) 

Budget reprofiling for various transport schemes  (2.9) 

Budget reprofiling and reduction in respect to School Organisational 
Strategy schemes  

(1.2) 

Adult Social Care capital schemes budget reprofiling (0.7) 

Sands End Community Centre budget reprofiling (0.7) 

Parks and leisure capital schemes budget reprofiling (1.2) 

Corporate Planned Maintenance Programme budget reprofiling (0.3) 

Invest to Save schemes budget reprofiling (0.4) 

Budget reduction for various S106 funded schemes to reflect approved 
funding  

(0.4) 

Total GF budget variations 18.8 

Total Q4 budget variations 13.9 

 
4. A net increase in the 2020-21 programme of £4.7m is proposed. This is mainly 

attributable to the reprofiling of budgets from 2019-20 to future years. Detailed 
analysis of the proposed variations to 2020-21 programme is presented in 
Appendix 2. 

 
5. The capital programme presented here for 2019-20 and future years is based on 

approved projects and known funding allocations. These currently exclude any 
other large projects which might be approved in future years. The 2020-21 budget 
will be updated in the first quarter monitor for 2020-21.  The indicative future years 
analysis (2021+) will be updated as pipeline schemes are ‘firmed-up’; these future 
years remain subject to approval in future capital programmes. Departments, such 
as Children’s Services and Adult Social Care, whose capital programme has 
traditionally depended on external specific grants, will be updated as and when 
future grants are confirmed. 

 
6. Just before the end of the financial year 2019-20 the country has seen an 

unprecedented public health emergency as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. As 

Page 17



 

part of its response, the Council has considered the impact of the pandemic on its 
major programmes. As lockdown started on 23 March 2020, there was no 
significant impact on the 2019-20 programme, although there is likely to be a 
much more significant impact in 2020-21 as the result of a pause in non-essential 
works. For a number of schemes, whilst there is a risk of delay with potential 
associated costs, it is considered that the delays experienced to date should not 
significantly affect the respective programmes, or that deferrals can be managed. 
The pandemic, and the potential for an economic downturn, may affect the 
expected costs, market and viability of schemes and this will be kept continually 
under review and mitigating actions will be considered as necessary.  

 
GENERAL FUND – MAINSTREAM PROGRAMME  

 
7. The General Fund mainstream programme across the departments and 

represents schemes which are funded from Council resources (capital receipts or 
borrowing). It is the area of the programme where the Council has the greatest 
discretion. The mainstream programme is summarised in Table 2. 

 
Table 2 –GF Mainstream Capital Programme 2019-23 with proposed 2019-20 Q4 variations: 

 
 
8. In January 2020 the Council acquired its previously leased 145/155 King Street 

office site. The financial modelling undertaken prior to the acquisition identified 
that, over a longer time period (20 years), the acquisition is significantly more 
financially beneficial than continuing to lease the building. The acquisition also 
securing an asset for the Council that will have a future value. This explains the 
majority of the mainstream programme increased of £20.3m in comparison to Q3 
budget.  

 
9. The mainstream programme presented in Table 2 does not include self-financing 

schemes (those that are expected to result in no net General Fund revenue 
financing costs).  These comprise the self-financing elements of the Civic Campus 
scheme (excluding the Town Hall refurbishment and fit out) and the Education 

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q3)

Variations 

(Q4)

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q4)

Indicative 

Budget 

2020/21

Slippages, 

Additions 

and 

Reduction

s

2020/21 

Revised 

Budget

Indicative 

Budget 

2021/22

Indicative 

Budget 

2022/23

Total 

Budget 

(All 

years)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 Approved Expenditure 

Ad Hoc Schemes:

Social Care Capital projects [ASC]                 -             -                  -           129               - 129               -               -          129 

Invest to Save-Flexible Use of Capital Receipts         1,500         (376)         1,124        2,036           376 2,412               -               -       3,536 

Sands End Community Centre [ECD]           365            365               -               -               -               -               -          365 

Acquisition of Gibbs Green/Farm Lane [ECD]        15,740             21       15,761               -               -               -               -               -      15,761 

Acquisition of 145/155 King Street [F&G]                 -      19,626       19,626               -               -               -               -               -      19,626 

Desktop Strategy [F&G]            979           (53)            926               -               -               -               -               -          926 

Capital Investment in Street Lighting [ENV]                 -             -                  -        1,100               - 1,100               -               -       1,100 

Carnwath Road  [ECD]                 -             -                  -        1,870               - 1,870               -               -       1,870 

Hammersmith Town Hall Refurbishment* [ECD]            750         (750)                -               -           750 750          550               -       1,300 

Hammersmith Town Hall Fit Out* [ECD]                 -        1,480         1,480               -               -               -       8,802          318      10,600 

Schools Regeneration Programme  [ECD]                 -           115            115               -        1,914 1,914               -               -       2,029 

Education City regeneration [ECD]         1,118           646         1,764        9,438       (5,176) 4,262       6,037      10,422      22,485 

Acquisition of Cinema Site [ECD]              72           (72)                -               -             72 72               -               -            72 

Rolling Programmes:

Planned Maintenance/DDA Programme [F&G]         1,010 (340)            670        6,373           283 6,656       2,400       2,400      12,126 

Controlled parking Zones [ENV]                 - 253            253               -               -               -               -               -          253 

Footways and Carriageways [ENV]         2,791 (367)         2,424        2,030           367 2,397       2,030       2,030       8,881 

Column Replacement [ENV]            100               -            100           100               - 100          100          100          400 

Parks Programme [ENV]            282 (218)              64               -           218 218               -               -          282 

 Total Mainstream Programmes 24,342 20,330       44,672      23,076       (1,196)      21,880      19,919      15,270    101,741 

 Financing 

Capital Receipts         1,500         (376)         1,124        2,036 376 2,412               -       3,456       6,992 

Increase/(Decrease) in  Borrrowing        22,842 20,706       43,548      21,040 (1,572) 19,468 19,919 11,814      94,749 

 Total Financing 24,342 20,330       44,672      23,076 (1,196)      21,880      19,919      15,270    101,741 

Page 18



 

City scheme. Further details on the self-financing schemes are set out in 
Appendix 5. 

 
10. The Council’s underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose is measured 

through the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). However, the Council may 
choose not to take out external borrowing to match this but instead utilise internal 
cash balances to reduce external interest charges. The General Fund Headline 
CFR (excluding self-financing schemes) was £114.08m at the end of 2019-20. 
The increase of £43.23m in CFR (£43.55m new in-year borrowing less MRP) in 
comparison to 2018-19 is detailed in Table 2.    

      
11. The General Fund capital programme includes capital receipts of £2.4m carried 

forward to 2020-21. These will support invest to save expenditure and IT 
investment and will be applied to protect the Council’s reserves. Separate reports 
have identified concerns regarding the medium-term adequacy of the Council’s 
reserves and future financial resilience, which is even more acute in the light of 
financial pressures deriving from the Covid-19 Pandemic. The identification of 
additional receipts will protect reserves by enabling, the flexible use of capital 
receipts to fund invest to save costs and potential capitalisation of other relevant 
costs in line with proper accounting or statutory practice. The use of capital 
receipts to fund new capital expenditure will also reduce the Council’s need to 
borrow and therefore reduce the revenue costs of that borrowing with new 
borrowing incurring an estimated annual revenue cost of £50,000 per annum per 
£1m2. 

 
 

HOUSING CAPITAL PROGRAMME OVERVIEW 
 

 

12. Housing Capital expenditure for 2019-20 totalled £40.54m.The expenditure and 
resource analysis of the Housing Programme is summarised in Table 3 below. 

 
     Table 3 – Housing Capital Programme 2019-23 with proposed 2019-20 Q4 variations 

 

 
 

                                            
2
 Actual borrowing costs will depend on the interest rate applicable when loans are taken out and the 

Council’s minimum revenue provision (MRP). This estimate assumes an MRP of 3% and interest rate 
of 2%. 

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q3)

Slippages 

from/(to) 

future 

years 

Additions/

(Reductions)

Transfers Total 

Variations 

(Q4)

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q4)

2020/21

Original 

Budget

Slippages, 

Additions 

and 

Reductions

2020/21 

Revised 

Budget

Indicative 

2021/22

Budget

Indicative 

2022/23

Budget

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 Approved Expenditure 

HRA Asset Management and Compliance 

Programme

21,872 (689) -              -         (689)       21,183 61,740 (427) 61,313 39,691 34,115

Building Homes and Communities 6,415 (1,003) (92)              -         (1,095)         5,320 4,009 (534) 3,475 2,077 -            

Other HRA Capital Schemes 17,201 (3,748) 582              -         (3,166)       14,035 14,133 2,299 16,432 14,363 14,151

 Total Housing Programme      45,488 (5,440) 490            -   (4,950)       40,538        79,882           1,338      81,220         56,131        48,266 

 Available and Approved Resource 

Capital Receipts - Unrestricted 6,960 -            (338) -         (338)                 6,622 5,221 -             5,221 3,281 2,010

Capital Receipts - RTB (141) 2,929 (1,725) (142) -         (1,867)              1,062 5,402 846 6,248 4,309 4,245

Major Repairs Reserve (MRR) 16,331 (3,172) -              -         (3,172)            13,159 24,249 (447) 23,802 16,990 17,257

Contributions Developers (S106) 819 (47) -              (12) (59)                      760 5,017 (929) 4,088         10,019          9,906 

Contributions from leaseholders 5,541 2,463 -              -         2,463               8,004 2,891 -             2,891 5,380 3,791

Capital Grants/Contributions from Non-

departmental public bodies

-          20                -         20                         20 -             -             -          -             -            

Borrowing 12,908     (2,959)       950.00         12          (1,997)            10,911 37,102 1,868 38,970 16,152 11,057

Total Funding 45,488 (5,440) 490            -   (4,950)       40,538        79,882 1,338      81,220 56,131 48,266

Page 19



 

13. Within the Housing Capital Programme there has been a net budget decrease of 
£4.95m mainly due to reprofiling of Affordable Housing schemes budgets to future 
years. Detailed analysis of the budget variances is presented in Appendix 2.  

 
 
14. The HRA CFR is shown in Table 4 below: 

 
Table 4 – HRA CFR at Q4 2019-20 (including future years’ forecast): 
 

 
      

The Housing Revenue Account 2019-20 CFR (excluding deferred costs of 
disposal) has increased by £10.9m in comparison to 2018/19.  This is due to 
borrowing required to finance approved budgets for Hartopp & Lannoy (£4.7m), 
White City (£5.3m) and Affordable Housing schemes (£0.9m). £5.6m of deferred 
costs of disposals were written off to revenue in 2019-20 as a result of termination 
of Earls Court deal, reducing HRA CFR by the same amount. 
 

15. The HRA CFR presented in Table 4 does not include the proposed appropriation 
of Education City Affordable Housing units from General Fund. This is currently 
expected on completion of the scheme (currently forecast for 2023-24) but officers 
are reviewing the most advantageous options for the Council. Once the 
appropriation is completed, the HRA CFR will increase (and the General Fund 
CFR will decrease) by the value of affordable housing element of the scheme at 
the point of appropriation.  

 
16. On 1 July 2019, Cabinet approved the Council’s new asset management 

compliance strategy which has a focus on health and safety works. Compared to 
the £5.5m forecast reported in quarter three, health and safety works have 
progressed ahead of schedule with 2019-20 outturn expenditure of £8.6m related 
to Health & Safety. Of this £5.5m is on specific fire safety capital works as detailed 
in table 5 below.  

 
Table 5 - HRA Capital Programme: Health & Safety spend, budget and forecast  
 

 
 

HOUSING CAPITAL PROGRAMME RISKS 
 
17. S106 Funding: The proposed programme for 2020/21 - 2023/24 relies on £25m 

of S106 receipts, of which £17m has been received to date with the remainder 
dependent on the associated developments proceeding in a timely manner. The 

HRA CFR Forecast 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£m £m £m £m £m

Closing Forecast HRA CFR 204.85 215.76 254.73 270.88 281.94

Deferred COD           5.60                -                 -                 -                 -   

Closing Forecast HRA CFR        210.45        215.76       254.73       270.88       281.94 

APPROVED SCHEMES

Total Programme  

2019/20 - 2023/24       

£'000

Approved Budget 

2019-20                  

£'000

2019-20 

Outturn spend 

£'000

2019-20 outturn 

variance to 

budget           

£'000

Fire Safety Compliance Programme 25,888                     2,004                      3,769               1,765                 

Fire Safety Complex Schemes 28,132                     1,279                      1,703               424                    

Safety Works - Electrical 14,520                     1,005                      1,264               259                    

Safety Works - Other 5,719                       1,175                      1,866               691                    

Total 74,259                     5,463                      8,602               3,139                 

HRA Capital Programme: Health & Safety spend, budget and forecast as at 31.03.2020

Page 20



 

impact of Covid-19 on the progress of developments and related developer 
contributions is being monitored jointly with Finance and Planning and mitigating 
actions will be considered if necessary, such as substituting other funding in the 
Housing programme. 
 

18. Right to buy funding: Right to Buy (RTB) one for one receipts need to be repaid 
them with interest to Central Government where affordable housing schemes do 
not proceed to programme.  These receipts are ringfenced to the provision of 
affordable housing within three years of receipt and the Council’s agreement with 
the GLA, allows a further three years to use the receipts. As at 1 April 2020, the 
GLA held £23.9m of Hammersmith & Fulham RTB receipts from the last two 
financial years. This is the equivalent of £80m3 of capital expenditure delivered by 
the Council (or Housing Associations if grant funded by Council RTB receipts) 
over the next two financial years. The existing approved Housing Development 
schemes and the pipeline of yet to be approved schemes4 is sufficient to make 
use of these receipts if delivered on time. The Council can request for an 
extension to the three years where an approved programme is in place. 

 
REASONS FOR DECISION 

 
19. This report seeks revisions to the Capital Programme which require the approval 

of Cabinet in accordance with the Council’s financial regulations. 
 

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS  
 
20. There are no direct equalities implications in relation to this report. This paper is 

concerned entirely with financial management issues and, as such, the 
recommendations relating to an increase in capital allocations, is not expected to 
impact directly on any group with protected characteristics, under the terms of the 
Equality Act 2010. 

 
21. Implications verified by: Fawad Bhatti, Social inclusion and Policy Manager, 

Communications, Policy and Engagement, Tel: 07500 103617. 
 
IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS 

 
22. The Council’s Capital Programme represents significant expenditure within the 

Borough and consequently, where supplies are sourced locally, may impact either 
positively or negatively on local contractors and sub-contractors.  Where capital 
expenditure increases, or is brought forward, this may have a beneficial impact on 
local businesses; conversely, where expenditure decreases, or is slipped, there 
may be an adverse impact on local businesses. 

 
23. Projects contained in the capital programme are approved on individual basis and 

the business implications for each of them are considered in more detail in their 
specific reports. 

                                            
3
 Under current MHCLG regulations, 1-4-1 receipts can fund only 30% of the total expenditure, with 

remaining 70% being funded from mixture of non-housing receipts, S106 and borrowing. Local 
Government is currently lobbying MHCLG for further flexibility with regards to use of these receipts in 
the light of the Covid-19 pandemic. 
4
 The housing development pipeline was present to Cabinet on 3 March 2020 in the report “Financial 

Plan for Council Homes”. 

Page 21



 

 
24. Implications completed by: Albena Karameros, Economic Development Team, 

Tel:07739 316 957. 
 
 
 

 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
25. In the initial stages of any development, major capital projects will have significant 

uncertainties. For example, these may relate to the planning process, the views 
and interest of residents and stakeholders who must be consulted, ground 
conditions, or the costs of rectifying or demolishing existing buildings (e.g. the cost 
of asbestos removal). Construction companies and developers contracting with 
the Council which experience financial instability may also pose a significant risk. 
They may not be able to raise sufficient finance to cash flow operations, any 
potential insolvency process could lead to a costly process of changing suppliers 
without any guarantee of remaining within overall budget, the Council could suffer 
direct financial loss and any defects or other issues may not be resolvable as 
anticipated. To mitigate the Council carefully considers the financial robustness of 
any contractor and requests appropriate financial standing assurance and support 
wherever possible. 

 
26. Large scale capital projects can operate in environments which are complex, 

turbulent, and continually evolving. Effective risk identification and control within 
such a dynamic environment is more than just populating a project risk register or 
appointing a project risk officer. Amplifying the known risks so that they are not 
hidden or ignored, demystifying the complex risks into their more manageable 
sum of parts and anticipating the slow emerging risks which can escalate rapidly 
are all necessary components of good capital programme risk management. 

 
27. The report identifies a number of risks which may impact on the future funding of 

the Housing Capital Programme. It is important that strong corporate and 
directorate oversight and monitoring of these risks is maintained and appropriate 
ongoing assurances provided to councillors on the management of these risks. 

 
28. The impact to councils of the Grenfell Tower fire is yet to be fully established. It is 

certain that many councils are/ will be undertaking property reviews to determine 
the levels of improvements required to ensure fire safety arrangements within 
their buildings meet both the expectations of the residents and that they comply 
with building regulations and other statutory duties. The H&F Fire Safety Plus 
Programme is an excellent scheme that provides residents with assurance on 
safety. The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 places specific duties 
placed on the Council as the Responsible Person for its buildings to assess the 
risk from fire and put in measures to control those risks.  

 
29. The Dame Judith Hackitt independent review of fire safety, following the Grenfell 

tragedy, recognises that High Rise Residential Buildings (10 Storeys and above) 
are a special risk where layers of fire protection must be put in place so as to 
reduce the risk to as low as reasonably possible, however reducing the risk for all 
residential accommodation is fundamental. This process is on-going and must be 
continually reviewed at least annually. 

 

Page 22



 

30. All works must comply with the Construction (Design and Management) 
Regulations. The Council must appoint a Principal Designer and Principal 
Contractor with the necessary and demonstrable expertise and competence. 

  
31. Proposals set out in this report seek to comply with the Council’s legal duties. 

 
32. Implications completed by: David Hughes, Director of Audit, Risk and Insurance, 

Tel: 020 7361 2389. 
 

VAT IMPLICATIONS 
 
33. The Council needs to carefully consider its VAT partial exemption calculation and 

the risk of breaching the partial exemption threshold.  Capital projects represent 
the bulk of this risk.  A breach would likely cost the Council between £2-£3m per 
year whilst in breach. The Council remained below the threshold in 2019/20 
however there remains a risk of breaching the threshold in future years if the 
position is not carefully managed on an ongoing basis, particularly in light of 
potentially significant capital schemes in the future. Finance works closely with 
departments to ensure that partial exemption risks are considered as part of 
significant capital projects. Further detail on the Council’s partial exemption is 
included in Appendix 4. 

 
34. Implications verified by: Chris Harris, Chief Accountant, Corporate Finance, Tel: 

020 8753 6440. 
 

 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 – Detailed capital budget, spend and variation analysis by department 

Appendix 2 – Analysis of budget variations 

Appendix 3 – Capital receipts forecast 

Appendix 4 – VAT partial exemption 

Appendix 5 – Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) and Minimum Revenue Provision 
(MRP) 

Appendix 5 – Housing Compliance and Health and Safety Programme

Page 23



 

Appendix 1 – Detailed capital budget, spend and variation analysis by department  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Children's Services 

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q3)

Slippages 

from/(to) 

future 

years 

Additions/

(Reductions)

Transfers Total 

Transfers/

Virements

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q4)

2020/21

Original 

Budget

Slippages, 

Additions 

and 

Reductions

2020/21 

Revised 

Budget

2021/22

 Budget

2022/23

 Budget

Total Budget 

(All years)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 Scheme Expenditure Summary 

Schools Organisational Strategy 342 (154) 47              -                 (107)              235 4,734 154 4,888              -            - 5,123

Schools Window Replacement Project 600 (497)              -                 (497)              103 400 497 897              -            - 1,000

School Maintenance Programme           770 (120) (411)              -                 (531)              239 2,238 120 2,358      2,238     2,238 7,073

Total Expenditure         1,712         (771)             (364)            -                (1,135)              577      7,372              771     8,143      2,238     2,238         13,196 

 Capital Financing Summary 

Specific/External or Other Financing

Capital Grants from Central Government 1,662 (721) (364) (88)              (1,173)              489 5,401 721 6,122      2,238     2,238 11,087

Grants and Contributions from Private 

Developers (includes S106)

            50 (50)                   -           88                    38               88      1,971 50 2,021              -            - 2,109

Sub-total - Specific or Other Financing         1,712         (771)             (364)              -              (1,135)              577      7,372              771     8,143      2,238     2,238         13,196 

 Total Capital Financing         1,712         (771)             (364)            -                (1,135) 577      7,372              771     8,143      2,238     2,238 13,196

Analysis of Movements (Q3 to Q4)

Next Year ProgrammeCurrent Year Programme Indicative Future 

Years Analysis

P
age 24



 

Appendix 1 – Detailed capital budget, spend and variation analysis by department/cont. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Social Care Services

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q3)

Slippages 

from/(to) 

future 

years 

Additions/

(Reductions)

Transfers Total 

Transfers/

Virements

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q4)

2020/21

Original 

Budget

Slippages, 

Additions 

and 

Reductions

2020/21 

Revised 

Budget

2021/22

 Budget

2022/23

 Budget

Total Budget 

(All years)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 Scheme Expenditure Summary 

Extra Care New Build project (Adults' Personal 

Social Services Grant)

               -                 -                   -               - -                           -         957                  - 957              -              - 957

Disabled Facilities Grant         1,102 (378)                   -               - (378)                     724             -             378         378              -              - 1,102

Transforming Care (Winterbourne Grant)                -                 -                   -               - -                           -         300                  - 300              -              - 300

Social Care Capital Grant 1,576 (76) (205)               - (281)                  1,295         300               76 376              -              - 1,671

Total Expenditure         2,678 (454) (205)               - (659)                  2,019      1,557             454      2,011              -              -            4,030 

;

 Capital Financing Summary 

Specific/External or Other Financing

Capital Grants from Central Government 2,678 (454) (205)               - (659)                  2,019      1,128             454 1,582              -              - 3,601

Capital Grants/Contributions from Non-

departmental public bodies

               -                 -                   -               - -                           -         300                  - 300              -              - 300

Sub-total - Specific or Other Financing         2,678 (454) (205)               - (659)                  2,019      1,428             454      1,882              -              -            3,901 

Borrowing                -                 -                   -               -                  -               -         129                  - 129              -              - 129

 Total Capital Financing         2,678 (454) (205)               - (659)                  2,019      1,557             454      2,011              -              -            4,030 

Analysis of Movements (Q3 to Q4)

Next Year ProgrammeCurrent Year Programme Indicative Future 

Years Analysis

P
age 25



 

 
Appendix 1 – Detailed capital budget, spend and variation analysis by department/cont. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Environment Department

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q3)

Slippage

s 

from/(to) 

future 

years 

Additions/

(Reductions)

Transfers Total 

Transfers/

Virements

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q4)

2020/21

Original 

Budget

Slippages, 

Additions 

and 

Reductions

2020/21 

Revised 

Budget

2021/22

 Budget

2022/23

 Budget

Total Budget 

(All years)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 Scheme Expenditure Summary 

Footways and Carriageways 2,791 (367)                    - (6) (373)                     2,418 2,030 367 2,397 2,030 2,030 8,875

Transport For London Schemes 3,552 (542) (1,637)              - (2,179)                   1,373 2,157 542 2,699 2,157 2,157 8,386

Safer Cycle Pathway (TFL funded) 245              -               350              - 350                          595              - 4,200 4,200             -             - 4,795

Hammersmith Bridge Strengthening (TFL 

Funded)

433 (157)             1,039              - 882                       1,315              - 157 157
15,065

            - 16,537

Controlled Parking Zones 314 (13) (294) (7) (314)                             - 275 13 288 275 275 838

Column Replacement 498              - (152) (83) (235)                        263 346                 - 346 346 346 1,301

LED Lighting Replacement Programme 77              -                    -           96                  96            173              -                 -                -             -             - 173

P&D Upgrade and Pay by Phone 217              -                 17              -                  17            234              -                 -                -             -             - 234

Other Highways Capital Schemes 3,318 (1,240) (438)              - (1,678)         1,640              - 1,240 1,240             -             - 2,880

Counters Creek (Thames Water funded) 4,000              -                 89              - 89         4,089              -                 -                -             -             - 4,089

Better Homes (West London Homes) 213              - (29)              - (29)            184              -                 -                -             -             - 184

Bloemfontein Road (Thames Water/Suds) 200 (550)               350              - (200)                 -              - 550 550             -             - 550

Network Rail                 -              -             1,020              - 1,020         1,020              -                 -                -             -             - 1,020

Capital Investment in Street Lighting                 -              -                    -              -                    -                 -       1,100                 - 1,100             -             - 1,100

Parks Capital Rolling Programme 1,024 (157) (574)              - (731)            293         164 (7) 157             -             - 450

Other Parks Capital Schemes 359 (60) (103)              - (163)            196         330 (270) 60             -             - 256

Shepherds Bush Common Improvements              50              - (28)              - (28)              22         431 (431)                -             -             - 22

Fulham Football Club -Bishops Park                 -              -                    -              -                    -                 -         660 (660)                -             -             -                   - 

Recycling 19              - (19)              - (19)                 -              -                 -                -             -             -                   - 

Libraries Investment Programme            150              -                 11              -                  11            161              -                 -                -             -             - 161

Leisure Centre Capital Investment 1,380 (957)                    -              - (957)            423              - 957 957             -        140 1,520

CCTV 281              - (21)              - (21)            260              -                 -                -             -             - 260

Total Expenditure 19,121 (4,043) (419)              - (4,462)        14,659       7,493         6,658       14,151    19,873     4,948          53,631 

Analysis of Movements (Q3 to Q4)

Next Year ProgrammeCurrent Year Programme Indicative Future 

Years Analysis

P
age 26



 

 
 
Appendix 1 – Detailed capital budget, spend and variation analysis by department/cont. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Environment Department

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q3)

Slippage

s 

from/(to) 

future 

years 

Additions/

(Reductions)

Transfers Total 

Transfers/

Virements

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q4)

2020/21

Original 

Budget

Slippages, 

Additions 

and 

Reductions

2020/21 

Revised 

Budget

2021/22

 Budget

2022/23

 Budget

Total Budget 

(All years)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Analysis of Movements (Q3 to Q4)

Next Year ProgrammeCurrent Year Programme Indicative Future 

Years Analysis

 Capital Financing Summary 

Specific/External or Other Financing

Grants and Contributions from Private 

Developers (includes S106)

10,584 (1,352) (995) (1,087) (3,434)         7,150       1,585 632 2,217             -        140 9,507

Capital Grants/Contributions from Non-

departmental public bodies

           213              -               991              - 991         1,204              -                 -                -             -             - 1,204

Capital Grants and Contributions from GLA 

Bodies

4,230 (679) (268)              - (947)         3,283 2,157         4,879 7,036 17,222 2,157 29,698

Sub-total - Specific or Other Financing 15,027 (2,031) (272) (1,087) (3,390)        11,637 3,742         5,511         9,253    17,222     2,297          40,409 

Mainstream Financing (Internal Council 

Resource)

Capital Receipts                 -              -                    -              -                    -                 -              -                 -                -             - 1,056 1,056

General Fund Revenue Account (revenue 

funding)

                -              -               106              -                106            106              -                 -                -             -             - 106

Use of Reserves 920 (331) (253) (261) (845)              75         521            563 1,084         521        521 2,201

 Sub-total - Mainstream Funding            920 (331) (147) (261) (739)            181 521 563         1,084         521     1,577            3,363 

Borrowing 3,174 (1,681)                    - 1,348 (333)         2,841       3,230 584 3,814 2,130 1,074 9,859

 Total Capital Financing 19,121 (4,043) (419)              - (4,462)        14,659 7,493         6,658       14,151    19,873     4,948          53,631 

P
age 27



 

 
 
Appendix 1 – Detailed capital budget, spend and variation analysis by department/cont. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Finance & Governance

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q3)

Slippages 

from/(to) 

future 

years 

Additions/

(Reductions)

Transfers Total 

Transfers/

Virements

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q4)

2020/21

Original 

Budget

Slippages, 

Additions 

and 

Reductions

2020/21 

Revised 

Budget

2021/22

 Budget

2022/23

 Budget

Total Budget 

(All years)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 Scheme Expenditure Summary 

Invest to Save - Flexible Use of Capital 

Receipts 

        1,500 (376)                   -              -            (376)       1,124       2,036               376      2,412            -            -          3,536 

Planned Maintenance/DDA Programme         1,010 (283)                   -              -            (283)          727       6,373               283      6,656    2,400    2,400        12,183 

Acquisition - 145 King St                -               -          19,626        19,626     19,626              -                   -             -            -            -        19,626 

Desktop Strategy         1,100               -               481              -             481       1,581              -                   -             -            -            -          1,581 

                 - 
Total Expenditure 3,610 (659)          20,107              - 19,448     23,058       8,409               659      9,068    2,400    2,400        36,926 

 Capital Financing Summary 

Mainstream Financing (Internal Council 

Resource)

General Fund Revenue Account (revenue 

funding)

               -               -               481            57             538          538              -                   -             -            -            -             538 

Housing Revenue Account (revenue funding)                -               -                53          121             174          174              -                   -             -            -            -             174 

Use of Reserves (HRA Contribution)            121               -                   - (121)            (121)              -              -                   -             -            -            -                  - 

Capital Receipts         1,500 (376)                   -              -            (376)       1,124       2,036               376      2,412            -    2,400          5,936 

 Sub-total - Mainstream Funding         1,621 (376)               534            57             215       1,836       2,036               376      2,412            -    2,400          6,648 

Borrowing         1,989 (283)          19,573 (57)        19,233     21,222       6,373               283      6,656    2,400            -        30,278 

 Total Capital Financing 3,610 (659)          20,107              - 19,448     23,058       8,409               659      9,068    2,400    2,400        36,926 

Analysis of Movements (Q3 to Q4)

Next Year ProgrammeCurrent Year Programme Indicative Future 

Years Analysis

P
age 28



 

 
 

Appendix 1 – Detailed capital budget, spend and variation analysis by department/cont. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Economy Department General Fund 

Managed Schemes

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q3)

Slippages 

from/(to) 

future 

years 

Additions/

(Reductions)

Transfers Total 

Transfers/

Virements

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q4)

2020/21

Original 

Budget

Slippages, 

Additions 

and 

Reduction

s

2020/21 

Revised 

Budget

2021/22

 Budget

2022/23 

 Budget

Total Budget 

(All years)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 Scheme Expenditure Summary 

Civic Campus

Acquisition of Land at 207 King St              72 (72)                    -               -             (72)               -               -             72             72              -              -                72 

Hammersmith Town Hall Refurbishment *         4,321 (439)                    -               -           (439)        3,882 6,966           439        7,405     20,549       3,164          35,000 

HTH Refurbishment -Fit Out                 -         1,480                    -               -         1,480        1,480               -               -               -       8,802          318          10,600 

Acquisition of commercial units                 -                 -                    -               -               -                 -               -               -               -              -     63,000          63,000 

Equity Loan (Civic Campus)                 -                 -                    -               -               -                 -               -               -               -              -     25,000          25,000 

JV Partnership Loan                 - 6,003                    -               -         6,003        6,003 15,000 (6,003)        8,997     30,000              -          45,000 

Subtotal Civic Campus 4,393 6,972                    -               -         6,972      11,365 21,966     (5,492)     16,474     59,351 91,482        178,672 

Building Homes and Communities Strategy (GF sites)

Education City/Ark Swift redevelopment         1,301 821 (224)               -            597        1,898      10,658 (5,196)        5,462       6,037     13,095          26,492 

Education City Loan            874 (874)                    -               -           (874)               -             75        4,507        4,582       3,499       9,521          17,602 

Schools Regeneration Programme            506 115                    -               -            115           621        2,029 (115)        1,914              -              -            2,535 

Subtotal Building Homes and Communities 

Strategy (GF sites)

2,681 62 (224)               -           (162)        2,519 12,762     (804)        11,958     9,536 22,616          46,629 

Other GF Capital Schemes managed by the Economy

Sands End Community Centre 2,850           (652)                    -               -           (652)        2,198           116           652           768              -              -            2,966 

Acquisition of Gibbs Green/Farm Lane        15,740                 -                 21               -              21      15,761               -               -               -              -              -          15,761 

Carwath Road                 -                 -                    -               -               -                 -        1,870               -        1,870              -              -            1,870 

Nourish Project (Good Growth Fund)            900 (510)                    -               -           (510)           390               -           510           510              -              -              900 

Macbeth Centre Arts Project            188                 - (80)               -             (80)           108               -             -                 -              -              -              108 

Macbeth Centre Kitchen Project                9                 - (6)               -               (6)              3               -             -                 -              -              -                  3 

Subtotal Other GF Capital Schemes managed by 

the Economy

19,687 (1,162) (65)               -        (1,227)      18,460 1,986       1,162       3,148       -         -                  21,608 

Total Expenditure 26,761 5,872 (289)             -   5,583 32,344 36,714 (5,134) 31,580 68,887 114,098 246,909

Analysis of Movements (Q3 to Q4)

Next Year ProgrammeCurrent Year Programme Indicative Future 

Years Analysis

P
age 29



 

 
 
Appendix 1 – Detailed capital budget, spend and variation analysis by department/cont. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Economy Department General Fund 

Managed Schemes

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q3)

Slippages 

from/(to) 

future 

years 

Additions/

(Reductions)

Transfers Total 

Transfers/

Virements

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q4)

2020/21

Original 

Budget

Slippages, 

Additions 

and 

Reduction

s

2020/21 

Revised 

Budget

2021/22

 Budget

2022/23 

 Budget

Total Budget 

(All years)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Analysis of Movements (Q3 to Q4)

Next Year ProgrammeCurrent Year Programme Indicative Future 

Years Analysis

 Capital Financing Summary 

Specific/External or Other Financing

Grants and Contributions from Private Developers 

(includes S106)

1,859 (26)                    -               -             (26)        1,833             58 (58)               -              -              -            1,833 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)         3,571            311                    -               -            311        3,882        6,966 (311)        6,655     20,000       3,163          33,700 

Capital Grants/Contributions from Non-departmental 

public bodies

        1,090 (626) (365)           (991)             99             58           710           768              -              -              867 

Capital Grants and Contributions from GLA Bodies            998 (510) (86)               -           (596)           402        1,200           510        1,710              -       2,084            4,196 

Sub-total - Specific or Other Financing         7,518           (851)                (86)         (365)        (1,302)        6,216        8,282           851        9,133     20,000       5,247          40,596 

Mainstream Financing (Internal Council Resource)

Capital Receipts (HRA)            183                 - (183)           (183)               -               -               -               -              -          589              589 

Use of Reserves (GF)            506                 -                    -               -               -             506               -               -               -              -              -              506 

 Sub-total - Mainstream Funding            689               -                (183)             -             (183)           506               -               -               -              -          589            1,095 

Borrowing (Borrowing-HRA)                 -                 -                134            134           134               -               -              -              -              134 

Borrowing (Borrowing-GF)        18,554         6,723 (154)           365         6,934      25,488      28,432       (5,985)      22,447     48,887   108,262        205,084 

 Total Capital Financing        26,761         5,872              (289)             -           5,583      32,344      36,714       (5,134)      31,580     68,887   114,098        246,909 

P
age 30



 

 
Appendix 1 – Detailed capital budget, spend and variation analysis by department/cont. 
 

 

Economy Department- HRA Capital 

Programme

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q3)

Slippages 

from/(to) 

future 

years 

Additions/

(Reductions)

Transfers Total 

Transfers/

Virements

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q4)

2020/21

Original 

Budget

Slippages, 

Additions 

and 

Reductions

2020/21 

Revised 

Budget

2021/22

 Budget

2022/23

 Budget

Total Budget 

(All years)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 Scheme Expenditure Summary 

HRA Asset Management and Compliance Programme

Pre Agreed Works         3,360 (359)                   -        1,054 695          4,055 22,814 (650) 22,164     3,986      3,400 33,605

Fire Safety Compliance Programme         2,004 1,040                   -           725 1,765          3,769 13,431 (300) 13,131     6,720      2,268 25,888

Fire Safety Complex Schemes         1,279 (77)                   - 501 424          1,703 6,014 26 6,040   10,800      9,589 28,132

Pre Agreed Lift Scheme         2,010 (431)                   -           112 (319)          1,691 2,644 432 3,076     1,474         836 7,077

Pre Agreed Boiler Scheme         1,458            609                   -           694         1,303          2,761 2,768 7 2,775     1,600      1,723 8,859

Safety Works - Electrical         1,005 99                   -           160 259          1,264 3,922 (340) 3,582     4,770      4,904 14,520

Safety Works         1,175            598                   -             93            691          1,866 1,175 107 1,282     1,578         993 5,719

Void Works         1,374            182                   -           263            445          1,819 240 258 498        240             - 2,557

Neighbourhood, parking & garage improvements         1,057 (147)                   -               -           (147)            910 1,163 33 1,196        827             - 2,933

Surveying and fees         1,200 (407)                   - (761)        (1,168)              32 1,500                 - 1,500     1,506      1,167 4,205

Capitalised salaries         2,750 (269)                   - (2,481)        (2,750)                 - 2,805                 - 2,805     2,861      2,918 8,584

Capitalised repairs         3,200 (1,527)                   - (360)        (1,887)          1,313 3,264                 - 3,264     3,329      3,396 11,302

Unallocated budget - Priority schemes to be confirmed                -                 -                   -               -               -                   -                -                 -                 -            -      2,921 2,921

Subtotal HRA Asset Management and Compliance 

Programme

21,872 (689)                   -               - (689)        21,183 61,740 (427) 61,313 39,691 34,115 156,302

Building Homes and Communities Strategy (HRA sites)

Homes & Communities Strategy           123 (123)                   -               -           (123)                 -        1,361 123 1,484            -             - 1,484

White City Estate Regeneration         5,912 (567) (92)               -           (659)          5,253        1,728 (970) 758     2,077             - 8,088

Old Laundry Yard           380 (313)                   -               -           (313)              67           920            313 1,233            -             - 1,300

Subtotal Building Homes and Communities Strategy 

(HRA sites)

6,415 (1,003) (92)               - (1,095)          5,320 4,009 (534) 3,475 2,077             - 10,872

Other HRA Capital Schemes 

Earls Court Buy Back Costs 580                 - 4               -                4            584                -                 -                 -            -             - 584

Housing Development Project 1,034 (311)                   -               - (311)            723 2,405 261 2,666         50             - 3,439

Stanhope Joint Venture 588 (50)               526               - 476          1,064 6,777 (1,348) 5,429   14,313    14,151 34,957

Affordable Housing Delivery Framework 1,929 (583)               101               - (482)          1,447 1,751 582 2,333            -             - 3,780

Property Acquisition for Affordable Housing         1,547 (1,513)                   -               -        (1,513)              34                - 1,513 1,513            -             - 1,547

Hartopp & Lannoy       11,340 (1,291)                   -               -        (1,291)        10,049 3,200 1,291 4,491            -             - 14,540

Subtotal Other HRA Capital Schemes  17,018 (3,748) 631               - (3,117)        13,901 14,133 2,299 16,432 14,363 14,151 58,847

Total Expenditure 45,305 (5,440) 539               - (4,901) 40,404      79,882         1,338        81,220 56,131 48,266 226,021

Analysis of Movements (Q3 to Q4)

Next Year ProgrammeCurrent Year Programme Indicative Future 

Years Analysis

P
age 31



 

 
Appendix 1 – Detailed capital budget, spend and variation analysis by department/cont. 
 
 

 
 

Economy Department- HRA Capital 

Programme

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q3)

Slippages 

from/(to) 

future 

years 

Additions/

(Reductions)

Transfers Total 

Transfers/

Virements

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q4)

2020/21

Original 

Budget

Slippages, 

Additions 

and 

Reductions

2020/21 

Revised 

Budget

2021/22

 Budget

2022/23

 Budget

Total Budget 

(All years)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Analysis of Movements (Q3 to Q4)

Next Year ProgrammeCurrent Year Programme Indicative Future 

Years Analysis

 Capital Financing Summary 

Specific/External or Other Financing

Contributions from leaseholders 5,541         2,463                   -               -         2,463          8,004 2,891                 - 2,891 5,380 3,791 20,066

Grants and Contributions from Private Developers 

(includes S106)

819 (47)                   - (12) (59)            760 5,017 (929) 4,088   10,019      9,906 24,773

Capital Grants/Contributions from Non-departmental 

public bodies

               -                 -                 20               - 20              20                -                 -                 -            -             - 20

Sub-total - Specific or Other Financing         6,360 2,416 20 -          12 2,424          8,784        7,908 (929)         6,979   15,399    13,697        44,859 

Mainstream Financing (Internal Council Resource)

Capital Receipts (HRA) 9,706 (1,725) (297)               - (2,022)          7,684 10,623 846 11,469 7,590 6,255 32,998

Major Repairs Reserve (MRR) / Major Repairs Allowance 16,331 (3,172)                   -               - (3,172)        13,159 24,249 (447) 23,802 16,990 17,257 71,208

 Sub-total - Mainstream Funding       26,037 (4,897) (297)               - (5,194)        20,843 34,872 399 35,271 24,580 23,512      104,206 

Borrowing(HRA)       12,908 (2,959)               816 12 (2,131)        10,777 37,102 1,868 38,970   16,152    11,057 76,956

 Total Capital Financing       45,305 (5,440) 539               - (4,901)        40,404      79,882 1,338        81,220   56,131    48,266      226,021 

P
age 32



 

Appendix 2 – Analysis of budget variations 
  

Variation by department Amount 
£000 

Children’s Services  

Schools Organisational Strategy - budget reprofiling to future years for: 

 Burlington Danes - £(22,000) 

 Queens Manor - £(82,000) 

 Bridge Academy - £(50,000) 
A review of commitments and priorities for capital works has been undertaken resulting 
in investment in priority areas from 2020/21. The forward programme of capital works 
requires formal approval in early 2020/21. 

(154) 

Ark Conway – budget increase to reflect actual funding and spend 47 

School Maintenance Programme - budget reprofiling to future years (£120,000) and 
budget reduction to reflect spend classified as revenue expenditure (£411,000). 
Following condition surveys completed across the schools estate in 2018/19 and 
2019/20, priority works need to be scheduled and planned from 2020/21. 

(531) 

School Windows Replacement - budget reprofiling to future years. The School 
Windows programme was subject to a review in 2018/19 in part due to the risk 
associated with the future funding via the Central Services Schools Block grant of the 
Dedicated Schools Grant. The programme will be progressed as part of the 
prioritisation of works as identified through the schools’ condition surveys. 

(497) 

Total Children’s Services variations (1,135) 

Environment Department  

Reduction in allocated budgets as external funding is awaiting confirmation for: 

 Transport for London Schemes - £(1,637,000) 

 Controlled Parking Zones - £(294,000) 

 Column Replacement -£(152,000) 

 Other Highways Capital Schemes -£(438,000) 

 Better Homes Schemes -£(29,000) 

 Parks Rolling Programme and other capital schemes- £(705,000) 

 Recycling - £(19,000) 

 CCTV- £(21,000) 

(3,295) 

Additional budgets to reflect actual spend and external funding received: 

 Safer Cycle Pathway (TFL funded) - £350,000 

 Hammersmith Bridge Strengthening (TFL Funded) - £1,039,000 

 P&D Upgrade and Pay by Phone (S106) - £17,000 

 Counters Creek (Thames Water funded) - £89,000 

 Bloemfontein Road (Thames Water/Suds) - £350,000 

 Network Rail - £1,020,000 

 Libraries Investment Programme - £11,000 

2,876 

Budget reprofiling to future years due to project delays for: 

 Footways and Carriageways - £(367,000) 

 Transport for London Schemes - £(542,000) 

  Hammersmith Bridge Strengthening (TFL Funded) - £(157,000) 

 Controlled Parking Zones - £(13,000) 

 Other Highways Capital Schemes - £(1,240,000) 

 Bloemfontein Road (Thames Water/Suds) - £(550,000) 

 Parks Rolling Programme and other capital schemes - £(217,000) 

 Leisure Centre Capital Investment - £(957,000) 

(4,043) 

Total Environment Department variations (4,462) 

Finance and Governance   

Acquisition of 145 King St - budget approved in January 2020 19,626 

Corporate Planned Maintenance Programme - budget reprofiled to future years to fund (283) 

Page 33



 

Variation by department Amount 
£000 

work programme outlined at Ravenscourt Park in 2020/21. 

Desktop Strategy – additional contribution from revenue towards capitalised items 
within overall programme budget 

481 

Invest to Save schemes – budget reprofiling to future years (376) 

Total Finance and Governance variations 19,448 

Social Care   

Disabled Facilities Grant - budget reprofiling to future years (378) 

Social Care Capital projects - budget reprofiling to future years (£76,000) and budget 
reduction to reflect spend classified as revenue expenditure (£205,000) 

(281) 

Total Social Care variations (659) 

General Fund schemes under Economy Department  

Sands End Community Centre - budget reprofiled to future years  (652) 

Acquisition of Gibbs Green/Farm Lane –adjustment to reflect actual completion costs 21 

Joint Venture loan (Civic Campus) – budget reprofiled to reflect actual spend 6,003 

Education City/Ark Swift redevelopment – budget reprofiled to future years due to 
project delays (£53,000) and reduction in budget of £(224,000) 

(277) 

Hammersmith Town Hall Refurbishment - budget reprofiled to future years due to 
delays in project as a result of COVID-19 

(511) 

Hammersmith Town Hall Fit Out - budget brought forward from future years to reflect 
actual spend on furniture in leased accommodation to be taken to the refurbished 
building 

1,480 

Macbeth Centre Arts and Kitchen Project – reduction in budget to reflect actual spend 
on completed projects 

(86) 

Nourish Project - budget reprofiled to future years due to delay in appointment of build 
contractor 

(510) 

Schools Regeneration - budget brought forward from future years to reflect actual 
spend  

115 

Total General Fund schemes under Economy Department variations 5,583 

Economy Department (HRA) Schemes  

Asset Management and Compliance Programme – budget reprofiling from/(to) future 
years  

(689) 

Earls Court Buybacks – budget adjustment to reflect actual spend 4 

Housing Development projects – budget reprofiled to future years due to the delayed 
start on site for the Spring Vale project 

(311) 

Old Laundry Yard Redevelopment – budget reprofiled to future years due to delays in 
the project  

(313) 

Stanhope Joint Venture – budget reprofiling to future years (£50,000) and additional 
budget £526,000 approved in May 2020 

476 

Hartopp & Lannoy budget for acquisitions to enable demolition reprofiled to 2020/21 
when final acquisitions are expected to complete 

(1,291) 

Property Acquisition for Affordable Housing -budget reprofiled to future years (1,513) 

Homes & Communities Strategy - budget reprofiling to future years  (123) 

White City Estate Regeneration - budget reprofiled to future years (£567,000) and 
budget adjustment to reflect the reduced future years forecast (£92,000) 

(659) 

Affordable Housing Delivery Framework - budget reprofiled to future years (482) 

Total Economy Department (HRA) variations (4,901) 

Total 2019-20 Q4 variations 13,874 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 34



 

2020-21 Funding variations  

Net budget reprofiling from 2019-20 (covered by above variations) 5,495 

Housing – budget reprofiling to future years (2021+) of various existing schemes 
due to reprogramming and re-phasing 

(3,364) 

Reduction in 2020/21 budgets for various s106 funded Environment Department 
capital schemes to reflect unconfirmed funding  

(1,585) 

Increase in budgets to reflect additional external funding receivable for Safer Cycle 
Pathway (TFL funded) 

4,200 

Grand Total 2020-21 funding variations 4,746 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 

 
 

 
 
Appendix 3 – General Fund forecast capital receipts  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Financial Year Previous 

Forecast               

£'000s

Movement/

Slippage                                                            

£'000s

2019/20 

Outturn             

£'000s

2019/20

Brought forward receipts from 2018/19        1,500             (376)                1,124 

Total 2019/20        1,500             (376)                1,124 

2020/21

Brought forward receipts from 2019/20        2,036              376                2,412 

Overage payments and miscellaneous receipts              -                   -                        -   

Total 2020/21        2,036              376                2,412 

2021/22

Overage payments and miscellaneous receipts              -                   -                        -   

Total 2021/22              -                   -                        -   

2022/23

Forecast capital receipts for the year        3,600                 -                  3,600 

Cost of Sales (4%)          (144)                 -                    (144)

Total 2022/23        3,456                 -                  3,456 

Total All Years        6,992                 -                  6,992 

Page 36



 

 
 
 
Appendix 4 – VAT Partial Exemption 

1. Partial exemption overview  

1.1. In general, businesses cannot recover the VAT incurred on purchases made in 
connection with VAT exempt activities, for example, capital expenditure on properties 
which are let or leased are exempt from VAT. However, under Section 33 of the VAT 
Act 1994, local authorities are able to recover this VAT so long as it forms “an 
insignificant proportion” of the total VAT incurred (input tax) in any year, taken to be 
5% or less. Crucially, the de minimis limit is not an allowance, if the 5% threshold is 
exceeded then all the exempt input tax is lost, not just the excess. The cost to the 
Council of a breach would be in excess of £2m.  

2. LBHF Partial Exemption  

2.1 The Council’s input tax forecast for 2019-20 (across all expenditure) was £38m. 
This results in a partial exemption threshold for the Council of £1.9m (being 5% of 
£38m). The overall input tax incurred by the Council is projected to fall in the medium 
term due to factors such as the return of some of the previously outsourced services 
in-house. A reduction in the overall input tax incurred will, in turn, reduce the 
Council’s partial exemption threshold.  

2.3 When calculating the exempt input tax annually, the Council considers its revenue 
and capital activities separately. Revenue activities are more constant, their 
contribution to exempt input tax is projected to remain at £2m (the impact on the 
threshold being the VAT incurred on this amount, i.e. £0.4m). Exempt input tax 
relating to capital activities is more volatile and each project must be considered and 
judged individually. The Council has a number of capital projects, both in train and in 
the pipeline, which could have significant partial exemption implications and finance 
officers are working closely with colleagues working on these projects to ensure that 
these risks are identified and mitigated where possible.  

2.3 Land and lease transactions can give rise to exempt supply. Capital projects 
involving these usually give rise to exempt input tax, although wherever possible the 
Council uses its VAT policy (see section 3) to mitigate this.  

3. VAT Policy  

3.1 The following policy is in place to manage the partial exemption position:  

 In all cases of new or reprofiled projects, the VAT team should be consulted in 
advance.  

 Projects should be 'opted-to-tax' where this option is available and is of no 
financial disadvantage to the Council.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



 

 
Appendix 5 - Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) and Minimum Revenue 
Provision (MRP)  
 

1. The Capital Finance Requirement (CFR) measures the Council’s long-term 
indebtedness. Table 1 below shows the Council’s total actual GF CFR for 
2019-20 and forecast future years: 

 
Table 1 - Actual General Fund CFR 2019-20 and forecast future years (outturn) 

 

 

 
 

2. The General Fund Headline CFR was £114.08m at the end of 2019-20 and is 
forecast to be £159.66m by the end of 2022-23. The increase in GF Headline 
CFR puts additional pressures on revenue budgets.  

 
3. The Headline CFR figures exclude: 

 £7m Schools Windows Replacement Programme (funded from DSG) 

 potential development (loan) funding of £45m to the Civic Campus 
programme 

 potential £29.86m loan to the Education City Development project and 

 expected £63m investment in acquisition of Civic Campus commercial 
units  

 
Whilst these will impact on the Council’s CFR, it is assumed that all Minimum 
Revenue Payment (MRP) and interest costs will be fully reimbursed through 
the charging of a state-aid compliant interest rate, commercial income or 
reduction in revenue costs (e.g. lease rental payments).   
 

4. CFR movements related to these schemes are presented under “Self- 
Financing Schemes and Loans” heading in the Table 1. 2019-20 CFR for 
these schemes is £11.84m and is forecast to increase to £155.03m by the 
end of 2022-23. Table 2 details the CFR movements regarding these 
schemes: 

 
 
 
 

GENERAL FUND CFR ANALYSIS 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

HEADLINE CFR EXCLUDING SELF 

FINANCING SCHEMES AND LOANS

£m £m £m £m £m

Opening Capital Finance 

Requirement (CFR)

        50.47          70.85       114.08       132.00       150.04 

Revenue Repayment of Debt (MRP)          (0.21)           (0.32)          (1.55)          (1.88)          (2.19)

Mainstream Programme 

(Surplus)/Shortfall

        20.59          43.55         19.47         19.92         11.81 

Closing Capital Finance 

Requirement (CFR) 

        70.85        114.08       132.00       150.04       159.66 

SELF FINANCING SCHEMES AND 

LOANS 

£m £m £m £m £m

Opening Capital Finance 

Requirement (CFR)

          6.57            7.32         11.84         25.25         58.58 

Equity loan repayment               -                  -                 -                 -                 -   

Revenue Repayment of Debt (MRP)          (0.27)           (1.48)          (0.18)          (0.17)          (1.07)

 In Year Borrowing           1.02            6.00         13.58         33.50         97.52 

Closing Capital Finance 

Requirement (CFR)

          7.32          11.84         25.25         58.58       155.03 

Finance leases/PFI/ Deferred costs of 

disposal

          9.84            9.19           8.49           7.79           7.09 

Total Closing CFR         88.01        135.11       165.74       216.41       321.79 

Page 38



 

 
 
 
Table 2- Self - financing schemes and loans CFR movements 2019/20-2022/23 
 

 
 
5. The report regarding the expected investment in Civic Centre commercial 

units is also proposing one-off equity loan payment of £25m towards Civic 
Campus redevelopment scheme, currently forecast to be issued in 2022-23. 
The issue of the equity loan will result in an increase in GF CFR by the same 
amount.  However, this loan is expected to be repaid in the following financial 
year and therefore it will not have any impact on the MRP. Repayment of the 
loan will result in a decrease in GF CFR in 2023-24 by £25m.  

 
6. As the development site for Education City scheme is currently General Fund 

land, it is assumed that the total development costs will be charged to General 
Fund until the site completion. This will result in an increase in GF CFR.  On 
completion, costs and debt associated with HRA element of the 
redevelopment (affordable housing units) will be appropriated to HRA. The 
appropriation will result in decrease in GF CFR and increase in HRA CFR by 
the same amount. As any interest charges will be capitalised and MRP will not 
be charged until year after the completion, there will be no direct impact on 
general fund revenue budgets in respect to HRA costs. However, should the 
scheme be cancelled before the completion of HRA affordable homes, risks 
and costs associated with the termination could potentially impact GF revenue 
budgets. Officers are reviewing potential options around the timing of the 
appropriation to limit any unfavourable impact on the general fund in relation 
to the development of affordable housing.   

 
7. Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) is the minimum amount which a Council 

must charge to its revenue budget each year, to set aside a provision for 
repaying external borrowing (loans). This is an annual revenue expense in a 
Council's budget. The MRP will, over time, reduce the CFR. 

 
8. The statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of State (Ministry for Housing, 

Communities and Local Government) details the ways how MRP should be 
charged on various items of capital expenditure. MRP charges presented in 
the Table 1 follow this guidance and assume the following: 

 MRP charges are deferred for development projects until year after their 
completion. The rate charged is based on the estimated life of an asset 
(50 years for new developments).  

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q3)

Variations 

(Q4)

Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

(Q4)

Indicative 

Budget 

2020/21

Slippages, 

Additions 

and 

Reduction

s

2020/21 

Revised 

Budget

Indicative 

Budget 

2021/22

Indicative 

Budget 

2022/23

Total 

Budget 

(All 

years)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 Approved Expenditure 

Ad Hoc Schemes:

JV loan - HTH                 -        6,003         6,003      15,000       (6,003) 8,997      30,000               -      45,000 

Acquisition of commercial units (Civic Campus)                 -             -                  -               -             -               -                 -      63,000      63,000 

Equity Loan (Civic Campus)                 -             -                  -               -             -               -                 -      25,000      25,000 

JV loan -Education City            874         (874)                -             75 4,507 4,582       3,499       9,521      17,602 

 Total Mainstream Programmes 874 5,129         6,003      15,075       (1,496)      13,579      33,499      97,521    150,602 

 Financing 

Increase/(Decrease) in  Borrrowing            874        5,129         6,003      15,075 (1,496) 13,579 33,499 97,521    150,602 

 Total Financing 874 5,129         6,003      15,075       (1,496)      13,579      33,499      97,521    150,602 

Page 39



 

 MRP on rolling capital programmes and smaller scale ad hoc schemes 
is charged year after the expenditure incurs. The rate used is based on 
weighted average life of the assets (currently 3.01%). 

 
 

Page 40



   
 

 1 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:  CABINET 
 
Date:  7 September 2020 
 

Subject: 2019/20 GENERAL FUND REVENUE OUTTURN REPORT 

 
Report of:    Councillor Max Schmid, Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial 

Services 
 
Responsible  
Director: Emily Hill – Director of Finance 
 

 
Summary 
 
Due to the Covid-19 pandemic the statutory deadline for the publication of the 
final, audited 2019/20 Accounts has been extended from 31 July to 30 November 
2020. This extension means that the 2019/20 outturn is still provisional as the 
accounts are subject to audit.    
  
The provisional 2019/20 General Fund outturn is an overspend of 
£6.885 million. This will be a charge against the council’s earmarked reserves. The 
overspend represents 1.1% of the gross General Fund budget and compares to a 
net overspend of £1.6 million in 2018/19. The main area of overspend has arisen in 
Children’s Services due to significant demand led growth and increase in complexity 
of need and associated costs. The council also experienced the early financial 
impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic at the end of the financial year.  
  
The provisional Housing Revenue Account (HRA) outturn is an underspend of 
£1.545 million compared to a forecast overspend of £0.604 million at month 9.  
  
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) High Needs Block funding has come under 
increased pressure in recent years and the Council had a cumulative overspend of 
£13.6 million at the start of the year.  A 2019/20 DSG overspend of £5.5 million has 
increased the cumulative deficit to £19.1 million at 31 March 2020 

 
General balances and earmarked reserves have reduced by £15.538m to £48.557m 
at the close of 2019/20. This largely reflects the need to fund the in-year General 
Fund overspend and increase the reserves set aside against the DSG deficit. After 
allowance for existing commitments and other risks the council has limited capacity 
to address the government’s funding shortfall regarding the financial impacts of the 
Covid-19 pandemic. The reserves forecast and action plan, including a review of all 
commitments, are therefore being refreshed following the closure of accounts. 
 
 
 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 5



   
 

 2 

 
Recommendations 
 

1. To note the provisional General Fund overspend of £6.885m. The overspend will 

be charged against corporate earmarked reserves.  

2. To note the provisional Housing Revenue Account underspend of £1.545m. 

3. To note the in-year Dedicated Schools grant overspend of £5.5m and increase in 

the cumulative offsetting earmarked reserve to £19.1m. 

 

Wards Affected: All 
 

 
 
H&F Priorities 
 

Our Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to the 
H&F Priorities  

Being ruthlessly financially efficient We need to always confirm that spend fits 
our council’s priorities; challenge how much 
needs to be spent; and achieve results 
within agreed budgets. Finance is 
everyone’s business and every penny 
counts.   

 
Financial Impact  
 
This report is financial in nature and those implications are contained within.  

 
Legal Implications 

 
There are no legal implications for this report. 

 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Name:  Gary Ironmonger 
Position: Finance Manager 
Telephone: 020 8753 2109 
Email:  gary.ironmonger@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Name:   Andrew Lord 
Position:  Head of Strategic Planning and Monitoring 
Telephone: 020 8753 2531 
Email:  Andrew.Lord@lbhf.gov.uk 

Page 42



   
 

 3 

Verified by Emily Hill, Assistant Director, Finance  
 
Name:  Adesuwa Omoregie  
Position: Head of Law 
Telephone: 0208 7532297 
Email:  Adesuwa.omoregie@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 

 
None 
 

 

Page 43



   
 

 4 

DETAILED ANALYSIS 
 

GENERAL FUND 

1. As set out in Table 1 there was a year-end overspend against departmental 

budgets of £9.454 million. After allowing for unused contingency budgets the 

net overspend reduced to £6.885 million. 

Table 1 – Provisional General Fund Outturn 2019/20  
(underspends in brackets) 

 

Department1 
Revised 
budget 

Gross variance 

 
£m £m 

Children’s Services 54.484 8.160 

The Economy Department 8.868 (0.119) 

The Environment Department 66.968 0.845 

Controlled Parking Account (24.999) (0.141) 

Finance & Governance 43.484 (0.052) 

Public Service Reform 4.707 1.035 

Social Care 57.448 1.829 

Centrally Managed Budgets 19.144 (2.103) 

Total 230.104 9.454 

Unused unallocated contingency 2.569 (2.569) 

TOTAL 232.673 6.885 

Expenditure funded from Covid-19 grant  0.188 

 
2. The main departmental variances are set out in Appendices 1 to 7. The most 

significant areas of overspend (above £1m) are summarised below: 

Children’s Services (Appendix 1) 

 Family Services £4.027 million. Significant demand-led growth and 

increase in complexity of need resulting in additional costs. 

 Special Educational Needs and Disabilities £2.795 million. Additional 

demand and complexity regarding travel care and support, additional 

staffing costs regarding the transition to the new Education and Health 

Care Plan and overspend on staffing and placements on Short Breaks. 

 Children’s Commissioning £1.754 million. Shortfall against budgeted 

                                            
1
 The 2019/20 outturn figures are based on the departmental structures reported through the year. The new 

structures, such as for Finance and Governance, will be reported in the 2020/21 Monitoring Reports. 

Page 44



   
 

 5 

savings for family support. 

Social Care  (Appendix 6) 

 Learning Disability, Mental Health and In-House Services £1.114 

million. Learning disability pressures in home care support packages, 

direct payments and supported living. Mental health pressures regarding 

home care and direct payments, residential and nursing care placements, 

and on staffing and rental costs on Claybrook hospital.   

 

3. The outturn includes departmental expenditure of £0.188 million incurred in 

March on the council’s Covid-19 pandemic response. As set out in Table 2 

this has been funded from the first tranche of the unringfenced emergency 

Covid-19 grant and has had no net impact on the outturn. The Covid-19 

pandemic also impacted on the council’s income with parking income 

(Appendix 3A) below trend by £0.9 million in the last weeks of March 2020.  

Table 2 – Unringfenced Emergency Covid-19 grant funding 

 
£m 

Grant received in 2019/20 (tranche 1) 6.408 

Covid-19 expenditure funded in 2019/20 0.188 

Funding carried forward to 2020/21 6.220 

Grant received in 2020/21 (tranche 2) 5.127 

Total funding available in 2020/21 11.347 

 

4. Table 2 sets out the latest position on the emergency Covid-19 grant funding 

received in 2019/20 and the carry forward to 2020/21. Further funding 

announcements have been made during 2020/21 including two further tranches 

of emergency grant funding and the expectation of a scheme to partly 

compensate local authorities for the loss of fees and charges income. However, 

expectations, based on funding announcements to date, it that the council will 

not be fully funded for the costs of its response and lost revenues arising from 

the pandemic. If these costs are not met by further government funding the 

shortfall will need to be met from the council’s reserves with a significant effect 

on the council’s future financial planning.  

5. The provisional outturn includes the use of £4.4 million of section 106 

contributions (£1.1 million towards enhanced community safety arrangements 

and £3.3 million for other purposes where new developments have resulted in 

additional pressures and costs to the Council of operating services that it would 

Page 45



   
 

 6 

otherwise not have needed to operate). This is less than the £5m assumed in 

the originally approved 2019/20 budget.  

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 

6. The Housing Revenue Account underspend is £1.545m. The main variances 

are detailed in Appendix 8.  

Table 3: Housing Revenue Account forecast outturn  
 

Housing Revenue Account (General Reserve) £m 

Balance as at 31 March 2019 (11.891) 

Less: Budgeted appropriation from balances  5.969 

Add: other transfers to general reserve (17.140) 

Add: underspend (1.545) 

Balance as at 31st March 2020 (24.607) 

 
DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT (DSG) 

7. Dedicated schools grant (DSG) is paid in support of local authority schools’ and 

is the main source of income for the schools’ budget. It is split between central 

expenditure and the individual schools’ budget (ISB) in conjunction with the 

local schools’ forum.   

8. Funding for the High Needs Block continues to be under pressure following 

reductions in government funding, and the Council had a cumulative overspend 

on the DSG of £13.6 million at 31 March 2019.  For 2019/20 a further DSG 

overspend of £5.5 million has increased the cumulative deficit to £19.1 million.  

9. Whilst it is expected that the magnitude of the in-year deficit will reduce in 

2020/21, due to increased grant and actions taken by the council, it is expected 

that the deficit will increase further in 2020/21. This will be confirmed in the first 

2020/21 Corporate Revenue Monitoring report.   

Table 4: Dedicated Schools Grant - Deficit 
 

 £m 

DSG deficit brought forward from prior years 13.6 

In-year outturn deficit 5.5 

Cumulative deficit at the end of 2019/20  19.1 

 
 

GENERAL FUND RESERVES  

10. The latest reserves position is set out in Table 5.  

 

Page 46



   
 

 7 

 

 

Table 5 – Movement in General Fund Reserves 

 

  
2019/20 
opening 
balance 

In-year 
movement 

2019/20 
closing 
balance 

  £’m £’m £’m 

General balance 19.006   19.006 

Earmarked reserves 45.089 (15.538) 29.551 

Total general balances and earmarked  
reserves 

64.095 (15.538) 48.557 

        

Restricted reserves       

Covid-19 grant funding (see Table 2) 0.000 6.220 6.220 

Section 106/ Community Infrastructure Levy 6.536 9.826 16.362 

Insurance Fund 6.312 (0.380) 5.932 

Other 4.371 (1.253) 3.118 

Total restricted reserves 17.219 14.413 31.632 

        

Total all reserves 81.314 (1.125) 80.189 

 
11. During 2019/20, general balances and earmarked reserves have reduced by 

£15.538 million to £48.557 million. In large part this reduction is due to the need 
to fund the 2019/20 General Fund overspend of £6.885m and set aside of £5.5 
million for the increase in the DSG cumulative deficit. 
 

12. The reserves forecast and action plan is being refreshed following the closure 
of the account to reflect the actions taken in 2019/20, budgeted contributions to 
reserves in 2020/21, additional commitments and a further review of historic 
commitments. Should no further government funding be forthcoming regarding 
the financial impact of Covid-19 then this may have a serious impact on the 
council’s reserve strategy. There is limited scope to fund such any significant 
loss, and meet other risks and existing commitments, from the council’s 
reserves. 

  
13. Several reserves have restrictions placed on their use. The largest is the 

Community Infrastructure Levy reserve. This is anticipated to be fully utilised to 
fund elements of the new Civic Campus in line with the Full Council report on 
29 January 2019. 

 
REASONS FOR DECISION 

 
14. To report the revenue expenditure position and comply with Financial 

Regulations. 

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

Page 47



   
 

 8 

15. As required by Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the Council has 

considered its obligations regarding the Public-Sector Equality Duty and it is not 

anticipated that there will be any direct negative impact on groups with 

protected characteristics, as defined by the Act, from the adjustments to the 

budgets required because of this report. 

16. If any such adjustments might lead to a service change that could have a 

negative impact on groups with protected characteristics, then an Equality 

Impact Assessment will need to be carried out. 

Implications completed by Fawad Bhatti, Social Inclusion Policy Manager, tel. 07500 

103617. 

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

17. The Council has a statutory duty to arrange for the proper administration of its 

financial affairs and a fiduciary duty to taxpayers with regards to its use of and 

accounting for public monies. This report assists in the discharge of those 

duties. 

18. One of the Council’s significant priorities is being Ruthlessly Financially 

Efficient. In response to this essential priority, the Chief Executive and the then 

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance issued a strategic approach to all 

directors and managers, sharing expectations and setting out the standards 

that must be followed. The approach set out an Action Plan for senior 

management to implement to ensure the Council works in a single-minded and 

sovereign way to:  

 embed even tighter financial controls and disciplines; 

 squeeze more value from our assets and contracts; 

 maximise commercial and investment opportunities; 

 build financial acumen and leadership among budget holders;  

 be entrepreneurial;  

 ensure that every member of staff understands their role, 
responsibilities, and goal in making every penny count;  

 work in a cross-cutting way, reimagining roles. 
 

19. We have implemented changes to meet the objectives set out in the Action 

Plan that include but are not limited to:  

 a thorough spend analysis undertaken each quarter; contract 
management training; refreshed the Contract Standing Orders and 
decision-making process 

 reviews undertaken of the Council’s most significant contracts as part 
of Zero-Based Budgeting;  

 a review of income and debt management; 

 reviewing procurement opportunities for Social Value benefits; 

Page 48



   
 

 9 

 sampling and assessment of contracts to ensure compliance, 
performance monitoring and Value for Money being obtained; 

 provided a checklist for Budget Managers to aid good practice and 
introduced Budget Managers briefings for teams; 

 reviewing expenses and spend on Procurement Cards; 

 reducing Agency Spend and robust monitoring of capital expenditure 
and section 106 monies 

 

Implications verified/completed by: Michael Sloniowski, Risk Manager, tel 020 8753 

2587, mobile 07768 252703  

 
 

List of Appendices: 
 

Appendix Title 

Appendix 1 Children’s Services 

Appendix 2 The Economy Department 

Appendix 3 The Environment Department 

Appendix 3a Controlled Parking Account 

Appendix 4 Finance & Governance 

Appendix 5 Public Service Reform (PSR) 

Appendix 6 Social Care 

Appendix 7 Centrally Managed Budgets 

Appendix 8 Housing Revenue Account 

 

Page 49



   
 

 10 

APPENDIX 1: CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING REPORT OUTTURN 

 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year 
End 

Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances  

 £000 £000  

Family 
Services 

29,907 4,027 

The looked after children Care Leavers 
placements overspend of £2.690m was as a 
result of significant demand led growth and 
increase in complexity of need and resulting 
additional costs. This is mirrored in a 
significant client related non-placement 
overspend of £0.707m. 
Staffing was £0.200m underspent. There is 
also a significant overspends on legal 
(£0.590m) and assessments (£0.331m) 
where these budgets have not kept pace 
with demand. 

Special 
Educational 
Needs and 
Disabilities 

8,466 2,740 

Travel Care and Support £1.063m 
overspend due to significant year on year 
demand growth with a mix of more complex 
needs requiring individualised offers as well 
as placements further out of borough 
resulting in higher unit costs. 
Education, Health and Care Plan  (ECHP) 
case work included a £0.545m overspend in 
staff costs due to the use of agency 
caseworkers during the transition to the new 
staffing structure from April 2020 which is 
within budget. 
The Short Breaks and Resources overspend 
was primarily due to an interim structure at 
the Haven (£0.442m) and a short breaks 
overspend of £0.667m (£0.445m attributable 
to placement costs). 

Education 1,162 (160) 
The underspend is predominately due to 
short-term vacancies held pending 
recruitment. 

Assets, 
Operations & 
Planning 

2,243 (199) 
Favourable £0.13m on insurance income 
from schools. 

School 
Funding 

8,394 (1)  

Page 50



   
 

 11 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year 
End 

Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances  

 £000 £000  

Children's 
Commissioning 

2,312 1,754 

£2.16m overspend on Family Support 
primarily due to delayed delivery of savings 
set out in the original business case.  
£0.227m underspend on Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Services 
(CAMHS) due to an over accrual from 2019-
20 providing a one-off benefit. 

Total 54,484 8,160  

Covid-19 Note 

There were no material costs or loss of 
income incurred due to Covid-19 in 
Children’s Services in 2019-20. Costs are 
expected from April 2020. 

 
  

Page 51



   
 

 12 

APPENDIX 2: THE ECONOMY DEPARTMENT 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING REPORT OUTTURN 

 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year 
End 

Variance 
Explanation of Major Variances  

  £000 £000  

Housing 
Solutions 

9,075 (713) 

The net underspend is made up of: 

 an (£0.801m) underspend on Private 
Sector Leased (PSL) temporary 
accommodation bad debt provision due 
to better collection rate (budget 8.50% 
vs. outturn 1.7%).  

 a (£0.273m) underspend on PSL 
landlord rents due to a reduction in 
average rents and a reduction in 
average client numbers (budget 986 
vs. outturn of 896). 

 a (£0.220m) underspend on Bed and 
Breakfast (B&B) bad debt 
provision due to better collection 
rate (budget 14.50% vs. outturn 
of 0.7%).  

 reduction in client numbers (budget 
133 vs outturn 73) has produced 
a (£0.231m) underspend on Bed and 
Breakfast (B&B) net rental payment to 
hoteliers.  

 underspend of (£0.116m) on Flexible 
Homelessness Support Grant (FHSG). 

 overspend on 
cost avoidance payments 
of £0.637m made to procure Direct 
Letting units for homelessness 
prevention. 

 an overspend on legal costs for 
complex cases of £0.106m. 

 overspend on rough sleeping and other 
homelessness prevention initiatives of 
£0.185m.   

Growth 7,053 (64)  

Economic 
Development, 
Skills Service 

1,731 0  

Planning (9,154) 634 

A shortfall on planning applications income of 
£1.140m is due mainly to economic factors 
such as the impact on planning activity of 
Brexit, an overspend of £0.170m relates to 

Page 52



   
 

 13 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year 
End 

Variance 
Explanation of Major Variances  

  £000 £000  

exceptional costs for advice on specific 
applications and other minor variances of 
£0.063m are partially offset by underspends 
on staffing vacancies due to delays in the 
recruitment process (£0.564m) and following 
a review of activities eligible for Section 106 
funding (£0.175m). 

Operations 83 (12)  

Property 
Services & 
Compliance 

0 0  

Direct 
Delivery 

80 36  

Total 8,868 (119)  

Covid-19 Note  

Covid-19 spend and lost income was low for 
2019-20. Costs, particularly in relation to 
Housing Solutions, and lost income in relation 
to Planning income, are expected from April 
2020. 

 
 
 
 
   

Page 53



   
 

 14 

APPENDIX 3: THE ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING REPORT OUTTURN 

 
 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances  

  £000 £000  

Public Realm 37,003 376 

Overspend was as a result of unfunded 
waste contract inflation (£0.399m), delayed 
waste contract savings (£0.242m) and 
commercial waste net income shortfall 
(£0.176m). These were partially offset by 
unbudgeted prior year electric vehicle 
charging income (-£0.162m), waste 
disposal underspend due to the 
continuation of the reduced recyclate 
processing rate (-£0.102m) and planned 
underspend on highways general planned 
maintenance (-£0.100m). Other smaller net 
underspends (-£0.077m). 

Community 
Safety and 
Regulatory 
Services 

6,889 111 

Overspend primarily explained by building 
control income shortfall (£0.187m), partially 
offset by other smaller net underspends (-
£0.076m). The Building Control service is 
being reviewed to assess potential for 
income growth and closer income and 
expenditure alignment. 

Leisure, Sport 
and Culture 

7,217 29 

Small overall overspend a result of events 
in parks income shortfall due to delayed 
prior year saving and member preference to 
restrict the number of large events in parks 
(£0.185m). Filming income shortfall due 
mostly to unachieved prior year saving and 
lack of filming venues (£0.123m). These 
were partially offset by increased income 
from the new leisure contract (-£0.225m) 
and other smaller net underspends (-
£0.054m). 

Page 54



   
 

 15 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances  

Resident 
Services 

15,859 329 

Overspend is a result of delayed savings to 
be delivered through the Resident 
Experience and Access Programme and 
service restructures (£0.741m). In addition, 
court cost recovery was £0.128m. These 
were partially offset by unbudgeted prior 
year income (-£0.142m), concessionary 
fares prior year rebate and in year 
underspend (-£0.207m), local support 
payments less than budgeted (-£0.050m), 
printing and postage underspends (-
£0.078m) with other smaller net 
underspends (-£0.063m) 

Executive and 
Support 

0 0 Fully recharged to services. 

Total 66,968 845  

Covid-19 Note  

There have been minimal Covid-19 related 
pressures in 2019-20. Included in the 
figures above are an estimated £20,000 
unfunded income losses and £22,000 
additional spend which has been funded 
from the emergency grant (so no net 
impact). There are significant Covid-19 
related financial pressures for the 
department in 2020-21. These will be 
reported as part of the 2020-21 monitoring 
process. 

 
 
 
  

Page 55



   
 

 16 

APPENDIX 3A: CONTROLLED PARKING ACCOUNT 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING REPORT OUTTURN 

 
 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year 
End 

Variance 
Explanation of Major Variances  

 £000 £000  

Controlled 
parking 
income 

(38,954) 102 

The income variance before Covid-19 was -
£1m and the swing to £102k was due to the 
complete reduction in parking and travel in 
the last few weeks of March as a result of the 
pandemic. The main two areas of income 
affected were a drop of £342k in Pay & 
Display and a £257k drop in Penalty Charge 
Notice (PCN) payments. The second aspect 
of income effected is the PCN accrual, as 
most people pay their PCNs a few weeks 
after receiving them, the drop in issuance in 
the last few weeks of March affected the 
PCN accrual more than the payments 
leading to a £433k drop in the accrual.  

Controlled 
Parking 
Account 
expenditure 

13,955 (243) 

The variance was largely due to an issue 
with uploading PCN debts to the Traffic 
Enforcement Centre (TEC) which led to an 
underspend of -£129k on the expected 
budget. -£75k is an underspend on budgeted 
security costs for the Bagley’s Lane building. 
-£39k relating to various other expenditure 
items. None of the underspend relates to 
Covid-19. 

TOTAL (24,999) (141)  

Covid-19 Note  

See variance analysis above. Significant 
parking income losses are expected in 
2020/21 due to the impact of Covid-19 and 
lockdown. 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 56



   
 

 17 

APPENDIX 4: FINANCE & GOVERNANCE 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING REPORT OUTTURN 

 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances  

  £000 £000  

Properties and 
Facilities 
Management 

24,128 190 

Overall unfavourable variance in income 
mainly due to unachieved savings related to 
rental income, plus one-off settlement costs 
for prior year works.   

Legal and 
Democratic 
Services 

1,305 (228) 

Overspend due to the overachievement of 
legal income for historical one-off 
conveyancing work paid on completion in 
2019-20 offset by underspends on staffing 
due to vacancies. 

Digital 
Services 

12,631 (13)  

Finance 5,712 (197) 
Underspends on staffing budgets due to 
vacancies. 

Audit, Fraud 
and Insurance 

1,025 (189) 
Underspend on staffing budgets and fees 
payable on internal audit contract. 

Contracts and 
Commercial 
Services 

(3,953) 385 

Overspend arising from delayed contracts 
management savings (£1.500m), partially 
mitigated as a result of a one-off benefit 
released from the bad debt provision 
related to a legal challenge (-£1.250m). 
There were also overspends due to lower 
than budgeted profit shares from digital 
advertising sites plus other small 
overspends (£0.145m). 

Total 43,848 (52)  

Covid-19 Note  

Additional Covid-19 expenditure of £0.039m 
was incurred and funded from Covid-19 
grants relating to additional Facilities 
Management costs. 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 57



   
 

 18 

APPENDIX 5: PUBLIC SERVICES REFORM (PSR) 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING REPORT OUTTURN 

 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances  

  £000 £000  

Zero Based 
Budgeting 

609 (83)  

People and 
Talent 

2,379 543 

There was an increase in management 
costs at start of the year, plus high cost 
agency staff to ensure service 
resilience. Following mid-year review of 
the service, these agency roles were 
converted to cheaper permanent/fixed 
term roles and the service will see the 
full cost benefit in 2020-21. There was 
an overspend on legal costs. 

Assurance, 
Programmes 
and Analytics 

1,646 171 

Overspend due to unfunded staffing 
costs in Business Intelligence, partially 
mitigated by underspends from 
vacancies in Programme Management 
Office and Chief Executive’s Office. 
The Business Intelligence overspend 
has arisen from: an initial shortfall in 
staffing budget when service was 
established; removal of invest to save 
funding due to a change in focus, but 
the need to retain capacity to meet 
existing demand especially on statutory 
returns; unachieved savings; and 
increased organisational demand 
particularly to support Social Care and 
Children’s Services and the Ofsted 
inspection. A funding model for BI is to 
be addressed in 2020/21. 

Strategy and 
Community 
Engagement  

532 266 
Overspend due to unfunded staffing 
costs to provide support to key 
administration priorities. 

Other 655 138 

Overspend due to historic income 
budget pressure and declining print 
commissions due to digital alternatives 
partly offset by underspend on staffing 
costs. 

Recharge 
Recovery 

(1,114) 0  

Total 4,707 1,035  

Covid-19 Note  
Additional Covid-19 expenditure of 
£21,000 was incurred which was 

Page 58



   
 

 19 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances  

  £000 £000  

funded from Covid-19 grants relating to 
Covid-19 director costs and  
communications costs.  

 
 
 

 
  

Page 59



   
 

 20 

APPENDIX 6: SOCIAL CARE 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING REPORT OUTTURN 

 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year 
End 

Variance 
Explanation of Major Variances  

 £000 £000  

Operation 21,533 343 

Overspends due to the increasing number of 
home care support packages of £688,000 
and direct payments of £265,000 with the 
pressures from the increase in the London 
Living Wage. This is partly offset by 
reductions in placements and the block 
nursing homes contract of (£610,000) with 
lower number of residents going into 
placements.     
A plan is in place to address the overspend 
and to bring in the budget in line in 2020/21. 

Learning 
Disability, 
Mental Health 
and In-House 
Services 

22,349 1,114 

The overspend is split into the following 
areas:  
Learning Disabilities overspend comprises of 
pressures in home care support packages of 
£508,000, direct payments of £306,000 and 
supported living of £183,000. This was offset 
by improvement of Learning Disabilities 
placements with lower costs than estimated 
of (£292,000), improved residential 
contributions of (£83,000) and underspend in 
Individual Services Fund due to improved 
contracting arrangements of (£94,000).  
Mental Health overspend of £234,000 in 
home care and direct payments and £83,000 
in residential and nursing care placements. 
There was an overspend of £269,000 on 
staffing and rental costs based in the 
Claybrook hospital.   
There are on-going budgetary pressures and 
robust mitigation plans and very tight 
budgetary controls have commenced for the 
new year to address this overspend. 

Commissioning 
(Transferred in 
year from 
PSR)  

4,918 359 

The Commissioning overspend was in three 
main services:  
The third sector grants budget was 
overspent by £216,000. The outturn has 
improved by (£192,000) due to the 
implementation of the migration action plan 
on transfer into Social Care in September 
2019. 
2. Commissioning staffing costs overspend 
of £111,000 are due to agency costs -

Page 60



   
 

 21 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year 
End 

Variance 
Explanation of Major Variances  

 £000 £000  

Commissioning service plans are in place to 
manage within the existing budget from April 
2020.    
3. The meals provision service provided by 
Harrow was an overspend of £32,000 due to 
increased number of residents utilising the 
service.   

Public Health 
Service 
(Transferred in 
year from 
PSR)  

21 (2) 

To arrive at this outturn position for Public 
Health, all of £2,025,000   
Ringfenced grant unspent and carried 
forward from previous years was utilised. For 
the next financial year, the service will need 
to be managed with the 2020/21 grant 
funding available.    

Resources 8,076 34  

Social Care 
Directorate 

551 (19)  

Total 57,448 1,829 

The outturn of £1,829,000 is an improvement 
of (£148,000) from the position reported in 
the month 9 forecast. Having balanced its 
budget in the two previous years, the 
financial pressures in 2019/20 resulted from 
of a combination of demand, market 
pressures, people living longer (a good 
thing!), people being discharged from 
hospital with a greater acuity of need and 
people having greater expectations. In this 
outturn position the department still achieved 
£1,831,000 of the budgeted savings. 

Covid-19 Note  

The department incurred additional Covid-19 
costs of £105,000 which is funded by the first 
tranche of the emergency Covid-19 grant. 
The additional market management 
measures the department has implemented 
and greater hospital discharge costs will be 
reflected in the new financial year. 

  

Page 61



   
 

 22 

 
APPENDIX 7: CENTRALLY MANAGED BUDGETS 

BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING REPORT OUTURN 
 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year End 
Variance 

Explanation of Major Variances  

 £000 £000  

Corporate & 
Democratic 
Core 

339 42  

Housing  
Benefits  

(525) (395) 

Good performance on Housing Benefit 
overpayment collection and 
maximisation of subsidy has resulted in 
better than budgeted performance. 

Levies 1,545 (22)  

Net Cost of 
Borrowing 

485 (387) 
A higher than budgeted return on 
investments has resulted in the outturn 
position being better than budget. 

Other 
Corporate 
Items 

8,698 (1,336) 

A shortfall of £131,000 on Land 
Charges income is offset by an 
underspend of £407,000 on the 
business rates inflation contingency, a 
favourable variance due to Service 
Level Agreement recharges to the HRA 
as a result of staffing movements and 
the insourcing of repairs services 
(£802,000), a one-off favourable 
variance on the provision for managed 
service programme costs (£149,000) 
and other minor favourable variances. 

Pensions & 
Redundancy 

8,602 (5)  

Sub -Total (1,279) (2,103)  

Contingency  (2,569) Unused contingency budgets 

Total   (4,672)   

Covid-19 Note 
There were no material variances in 
2019-20 due to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 
  

Page 62



   
 

 23 

APPENDIX 8: HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING REPORT OUTURN 

 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year 
End 

Variance 
Explanation of Major Variances 

 £000 £000  

Housing Income (76,601) (708) 

The favourable position is made up of: 

 an underspend of (£1.3m) on the bad 
debt provision for rental income for 
Council homes due to effective rent 
collection of 100.35% and a slower roll 
out of Universal Credit than expected 

 loss of rental income on the Council’s 
homes of £0.316m due to higher than 
expected void numbers during the year 

 loss of garage, parking and 
commercial property income of 
£0.176m mainly due to the garage 
refurbishment programme 

 a shortfall against budget of leasehold 
service charges of £0.100m.  

Property Services 
& Compliance 

9,715 835 

Additional resourcing has been necessary 
to maintain a service which meets the 
health and safety compliance needs of our 
residents. 

Housing Repairs 
& Voids 

11,450 190 

The overspend relates to transitional costs 
arising from the implementation of the 
interim repairs and maintenance delivery 
model. 

Place 9,665 329 

The overspend is a result of the remit of 
the in-house customer service centre has 
expanded to include complaints and 
resolution handling.  

Housing 
Management 

6,104 (284) 

The favourable position is md up of: 

 a staffing underspend of (£0.500m) 
due to delays in recruitment following a 
recent restructure 

 lower spend on downsizing incentives 
(£0.133m) and minor variances 
(£0.041m) 

 an overspend on decanting costs of 
£0.390m caused by an increase in 
activity levels resulting in an increased 
need for temporary accommodation. 

Operations 3,231 11  

Direct Delivery 708 (153) 
The underspend mainly due to recruitment 
delays and higher than expected 
capitalisation of staffing costs.  

Page 63



   
 

 24 

Departmental 
Division 

Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

Year 
End 

Variance 
Explanation of Major Variances 

 £000 £000  

Safer 
Neighbourhoods 

664 (29)  

Growth 327 27  

Adult Social Care 48 0  

SLA recharges 7,666 768 

The overspend is due to a corporate 
review and update of the corporate service 
level agreement (SLA) recharges model 
resulting in additional charges to the HRA.  

Finance and 
Resources 

8,088 (1,036) 

The underspend comprises: 

 an underspend on a provision for risk 
of (£0.827m) 

 a delay in an incentive scheme to 
increase direct debit take up (£0.138m)  

 staffing vacancies (£0.133m) and other 
minor variances (£0.089m) 

 an overspend on utility costs of 
£0.154m 

 other minor variances.  

Capital Charges 24,902 (1,495) 

 The actual depreciation charge is lower 
due to stock valuation (£0.518m) and 
review of the ratio of the value of land 
to buildings (£0.730m).  

 Higher interest earned on HRA 
balances (£0.247m) due to an increase 
in the interest rate (budget 0.45% vs. 
actual 0.93%) and change in level of 
internal borrowing.  

Revenue 
Contribution to 
Capital 

0 0  

(Contribution 
to)/appropriation 
from HRA 
General Reserve 

5,967 (1,545)  

Covid-19 Note  
Covid-19 spend and lost income 
immaterial for 2019-20. 

 

Page 64



   
 

 1 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:   CABINET 
 
Date:   7 September 2020 
 

Subject:  2020/21 CORPORATE REVENUE MONITOR -  MONTH 2 (MAY 2020) 

 

Report of:    Councillor Max Schmid, Cabinet Member for Finance and    
Commercial Services 

 
Responsible  
Director:  Emily Hill – Director of Finance 
 

 

 
 
Summary 
 
This is the first corporate revenue monitoring report produced for 2020/21. The 
council faces an unprecedented financial challenge due to the impact of the 
Coronavirus pandemic (Covid-19) and a continuation of underlying budget 
pressures.   
 
An £18.807m overspend is forecast for the General Fund. This is after the 
application of the early un-ringfenced emergency Covid-19 grant allocations, which 
were of £11.347m. Action plans of £2.373m are proposed as partial mitigation 
against the forecast overspend. If delivered the forecast overspend will reduce to 
£16.434m. 
  
 

This report was produced at the end of May. Since that date the government 
have announced additional funding regarding the Covid-19 pandemic in July 
2020. 
 
Most significantly additional general emergency funding of £2 million has 
been allocated to Hammersmith & Fulham and compensation will be 
awarded for 75% of income loss (above a 5% threshold) from fees and 
charges. A  high-level estimate based on the announced scheme is that this 
grant could be in the region of £8m. Full details of the scheme have yet to be 
confirmed. 
 
Given such extra funding the month 2 forecast of a Covid-19 related 
overspend of £13.2m reported within the report is likely to significantly 
reduce. However, in addition the council continues to incur additional 
Covid-19 related costs. A full update will be provided in the month 4 
Corporate Revenue Monitor.  

Page 65

Agenda Item 6



   
 

 2 

 
Recommendations 
 

1. To note General Fund forecast overspend as of May of £18.807m and 

requirement for urgent further action to significantly reduce the forecast 

overspend. 

2. To note the Housing Revenue underspend of £0.181m. 

3. To note the in-year Dedicated Schools Grant overspend of £2.179m. 

4. To approve General Fund virements of £1.960m as detailed in appendix 9. 

 

Wards Affected:  All 
 

 
H&F Priorities 
 

Our Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to the 
H&F Priorities  

Being ruthlessly financially efficient We need to always confirm that spend fits 
our council’s priorities; challenge how much 
needs to be spent; and achieve results 
within agreed budgets. Finance is 
everyone’s business and every penny 
counts.   

 
Financial Impact  
 
£13.230m of the forecast overspend arises from the impact of Covid-19 whilst 
£5.577m relates to underlying budget pressures.  
 

 
Forecast Overspend 

£m 

Forecast Overspend net 

of mitigating actions £m 

Current – month 2 2020/21 £18.807 £16.434 

2019/20 outturn £6.665 £6.665 

Last year – month 2 2019/20 £7.412 £5.296 

 
This report sets out the current forecast and existing action plans to mitigate the 
forecast overspend. Given the scale of the forecast overspend, and the potential 
impact on the council’s future financial resilience, Strategic Leadership Team (SLT) 
and Cabinet need to consider how the council can tackle the forecast overspend.   
 
Funding for the High Needs Block element of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 

continues to be under pressure with a cumulative overspend against the DSG 

allocation of £19.4m at 31 March 2020. For 2020/21, an increased grant allocation 

Page 66



   
 

 3 

has reduced the previous annual overspend however the forecast spend still 

exceeds the grant funding and a further DSG overspend of £2.1m is forecast. This 

will increase the cumulative deficit to £21.6m and require the council to further set 

aside a matching reserve. 

A net underspend, after allowance for the impact of Covid-19, of £0.181m is forecast 
for the Housing Revenue Account. 
 
Legal Implications 

 
There are no legal implications for this report. 

 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Name:  Gary Ironmonger 
Position:  Finance Manager 
Telephone: 020 8753 2109 
Email:  gary.ironmonger@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Name:   Andrew Lord 
Position:  Head of Strategic Planning and Monitoring 
Telephone:  020 8753 2531 
Email:  Andrew.Lord@lbhf.gov.uk 
Verified by Emily Hill, Director of Finance  
 
Name:  Adesuwa Omoregie  
Position:  Head of Law 
Telephone:  0208 7532297 
Email:  Adesuwa.omoregie@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 

 
None 
 

 

Page 67



   
 

 4 

DETAILED ANALYSIS 
 

GENERAL FUND 

1. The General Fund forecast at month 2 (May 2020) is an adverse variance of 

£18.807m (Table 1). This forecast allows for the application of the balance of 

the unallocated contingency and use of available Covid-19 grants. Additional 

risks of £17.301m have been identified. Action is required to avoid these risks 

crystallising into actual spend.  

Table 1 – Month 2 (May 2020) - General Fund forecast (underspends are 

shown in brackets) 

Department 
Gross 

variance 
Covid-19 
variance 

Net variance 

  £m £m £m 

Children’s Services 3.658 0.493 3.165 

The Economy Department 3.294 1.666 1.628 

The Environment Department 3.906 3.267 0.639 

Controlled Parking Account 11.759 11.825 (0.066) 

Finance 0.146 0.045 0.101 

Resources 0.580 0.625 (0.045) 

Social Care 4.761 3.256 1.505 

Centrally Managed Budgets 1.800 0.150 1.650 

Corporate Covid-19 response 
costs inc PPE  

3.250 3.250 0 

Total 33.154 24.577 8.577 

Balance of unallocated 
contingency 

(3.000) 0.000 (3.000) 

Unringfenced Covid-19 Grant  (11.347) (11.347) 0 

TOTAL 18.807 13.230 5.577 

 
 

2. The most significant elements of the Covid-19 expenditure are personal 

protective equipment, additional social care demand and financial support to 

the market, rough sleeping, mortuary provision and social distancing related 

costs. In addition to the expenditure that has been incurred, a number of the 

council’s revenue streams have been affected, the most significant of which is 

parking.  

3. The underlying budget overspend, net of the financial impact of Covid-19, is 

£5.577m. This is set out in Table 2.  

 

 

 

Page 68



   
 

 5 

 

Table 2 – Month 2 forecast variance excluding the impact of Covid-19 
 

Department 

Revised 
budget 

Forecast 
net 

variance 

£m £m 

Children’s Services 50.200 3.165 

The Economy Department 4.806 1.628 

The Environment Department 67.497 0.639 

Controlled Parking Account (26.113) (0.066) 

Finance 3.778 0.101 

Resources 4.480 (0.045) 

Social Care 55.350 1.505 

Centrally Managed Budgets 13.099 1.650 

Total 173.097 8.577 

Balance of unapplied unallocated contingency 
 

(3.000) 

TOTAL 173.097 5.577 

 

4. Mitigating action plans of £2.373m have been identified, which if delivered 

would reduce, the underlying overspend to £3.204m.  After including the impact 

of Covid-19 the forecast overspend, net of mitigating actions, is £16.434m. 

Table 3: Summary of net forecast outturn variances after action plans 

 

Department 

Gross 
Forecast 
Outturn 
Variance 

Potential 
Value of 

Action Plan 
Mitigations 

Forecast 
Outturn 
Variance 

£m £m £m 

Children’s Services 3.165 0.000 3.165 

The Economy Department 1.628 (0.350) 1.278 

The Environment Department 0.639 (0.423) 0.216 

Controlled Parking Account (0.066) (0.100) (0.166) 

Finance 0.101 0.000 0.101 

Resources (0.045) 0.000 (0.045) 

Social Care 1.505 (1.500) 0.005 

Centrally Managed Budgets 1.650 0.000 1.650 

Total 8.577 (2.373) 6.204 

Balance of unapplied unallocated 
contingency 

(3.000) 0.000 (3.000) 

Net Impact of Covid-19 13.230 0.000 13.230 

TOTAL 18.807 (2.373) 16.434 

 

Page 69



   
 

 6 

4. The Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contracts Policy & Accountability 

Committee also considered a report on the financial impact of Covid-19 on 

the council on 23 July. The estimate set out in this month 2 monitor identifies 

the net forecast for the current year. Significant income reductions will also 

arise, regarding council tax and business rates, that do not affect the budget 

until 2021-22. In addition, the Council incurred additional costs of £188,000 in 

2019/20 which was funded from the emergency Covid-19 grant funding.  

5. The main departmental variances are set out in Appendices 1 to 7. Additional 

information is provided on the delivery of planned savings and the type of 

expenditure (such as employees). Future reports will build on this preliminary 

analysis to provide a more complete picture of the council’s finances.  

 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 

6. The Housing Revenue Account underspend is £0.181m. The main variances 

are detailed in Appendix 8.  

Table 4: Housing Revenue Account forecast outturn  
 

Housing Revenue Account (General Reserve) £m 

Balance as at 31 March 2020 (24.580)  

Less: Budgeted appropriation from balances 7.924  

Add: underspend (0.181) 

Balance as at 31st March 2021 (16.387)  

 
DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT (DSG) 

7. Dedicated schools grant (DSG) is paid in support of local authority schools’ 

and is the main source of income for the schools’ budget. It is split between 

central expenditure and the individual schools’ budget (ISB) in conjunction 

with the local schools’ forum. 

8. Funding for the High Needs Block (HNB) continues to be under pressure and 

the Council had a cumulative overspend on the DSG of £19.4 million at 31 

March 2020.  Whilst an increase in the HNB funding allocations has reduced 

the forecast annual deficit. for 2020/21 a further DSG overspend of £2.1 

million is forecast that will increase the cumulative deficit to £21.6 million.  

Table 5: Dedicated Schools Grant - deficit 
 

 £m 

DSG deficit brought forward from prior years 19.416 

In-year outturn deficit 2.179 

Deficit at the end of 2020/21  21.595 

Page 70



   
 

 7 

 
GENERAL FUND RESERVES  

10 Budget Council agreed a reserves strategy and action plan that forecast that 

Hammersmith and Fulham would have uncommitted reserves and balances of 

£41.4m by the close of 2023/24. This forecast assumed no overspend in 

2020/21. 

11 Further to the provisional closure of the 2019/20 Accounts the reserves strategy 

and action plan will be reviewed to provide an update at the end of Quarter 1 

(30th June). This will include a review of historic commitments, drawdown of the 

2019/20 deficit and 2020/21 budgeted contributions to reserves. 

 
VIREMENT AND WRITE OFF REQUESTS 
 
12 General Fund virements of £1.960m are proposed as detailed in Appendix 9. 

 
REASONS FOR DECISION 

 
13 To report the revenue expenditure forecast and comply with Financial 

Regulations. 

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

14 As required by Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the Council has considered 

its obligations regarding the Public-Sector Equality Duty and it is not anticipated 

that there will be any direct negative impact on groups with protected 

characteristics, as defined by the Act, from the adjustments to the budgets 

required because of this report. 

15 If any such adjustments might lead to a service change and/or changes in 

staffing structures that could have a negative impact on groups with protected 

characteristics, then a full Equality Impact Assessment will need to be carried 

out. 

Implications completed by Peter Smith, Head of Policy and Strategy, tel. 07818 

402486. 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

16 The Council has a statutory duty to arrange for the proper administration of its 

financial affairs and a fiduciary duty to taxpayers with regards to its use of and 

accounting for public monies. This report assists in the discharge of those 

duties. 

Page 71



   
 

 8 

17 Covid-19 funding has been made available to the Councils in two main 

tranches. Settlement from HM Government has however fallen short to meet 

the financial impact to the Council including loss of income. A Recovery Board 

has been put into place providing assurance to the Strategic Leadership Team 

that a managed recovery takes place maximising some of the benefits gained 

from increased productivity, efficiency, digital working and lower than 

anticipated sickness levels during Covid-19. 

18 Should no further Covid-19 government funding be forthcoming, and no 

mitigating actions are delivered to reduce this overspend in year, a further 

charge against such reserves and balances we be required and will have a 

serious impact on the council’s future financial resilience. 

Implications verified/completed by: Michael Sloniowski, Risk Manager, tel 020 

8753 2587, mobile 07768 252703  

 
 

List of Appendices: 
 

Appendix Title 

Appendix 1 Children’s Services 

Appendix 1a Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 

Appendix 2 The Economy Department 

Appendix 3 The Environment Department 

Appendix 3a Controlled Parking Account 

Appendix 4 Finance  

Appendix 5 Resources 

Appendix 6 Social Care 

Appendix 7 Centrally Managed Budgets 

Appendix 8 Housing Revenue Account 

Appendix 9 Virement Requests 

 

Page 72



 
 

 9 

APPENDIX 1: CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING MONTH 2 

 

Table 1 - Forecast variance by subjective 

Subjective 
Budget 
£000's 

Variance 
month 2 
£000's 

Employees 20,878 556 

Premises-related expenditure 533 25 

Transport-related expenditure 154 6 

Supplies & services 7,953 2,161 

Third party payments 49,611 (350) 

Transfer payments (e.g. housing benefits, Schools funding 
transfers)  

64,980 4,216 

Support services (Internal trading services) 511 497 

Items excluded from the cost of services (debt 
management and capital charges) 

0 0 

Income (100,275) (3,454) 

Non-controllable expenditure (technical accounting 
adjustments e.g. overhead redistribution) 

5,856 0 

Total 50,200 3,658 

 

Table 2 - Variance by departmental division 

Departmental division 
Revised  
budget 

Forecast 
variance 
 month 2 

Forecast 
variance 
due to 

Covid-19 

Forecast 
variance 
(non – 

Covid-10) 
Month 2 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Family Services 33,732 870 268 602 

Special Educational Needs and 
Disabilities 

9,396 903 80 823 

Education 891 1 0 1 

Children's Commissioning 4,303 1,608 0 1,608 

Assets, Operations & Planning 1,877 276 145 131 

School Funding 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 50,200 3,658 493 3,165 

 

Table 3 - Variance analysis  

Departmental division 
Month 2 

£000 

Family Services   

Placements 
Underspend due to additional government grant income announced for 
Staying Put (£105,000) and Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking Children 
Grant (£650,000). In addition, there has been a lower level of new 
entrants due to Covid-19 than was modelled for the growth awarded in 
2020-21. This is partially offset by one very high cost placement with 

(542) 

Page 73



 
 

 10 

Table 3 - Variance analysis  

Departmental division 
Month 2 

£000 

significant increased costs. 
There is a high risk of increased case numbers later in the year and 
referrals will be closely tracked as lockdown restrictions are lifted and 
children return to school. The placements model contains £1m of 
contingency for new placements. 

Client related expenditure 
In addition to placement costs additional costs include and subsistence 
and statutory allowances. The forecasted client transport overspend is 
£347,000. Children in Need miscellaneous client non placement 
expenditure child is overspent by £190,000 and Looked After Children 
miscellaneous client non placement expenditure is £66,000 overspent. A 
focus group is preparing a plan for spend reductions as part of the 
department's 'recovery and budget planning' work. 

710 

Legal costs 
The 2019/20 overspend was £580,000 and this continues to be a pressure 
in 2020/21 as the budget has not kept pace with demand. A review and 
expenditure reduction plan for legal will form part of the department's 
'recovery and budget planning' work. 

574 

Assessments 
Family Assessments were £331,000 overspent in 2019/20. Demand for 
spot purchase assessments on top of the Multidisciplinary Family 
Assessment Service contract with the Tavistock and Portman NHS 
Foundation Trust are causing a 2020/21 overspend. 

261 

Staffing 
There is a forecasted £351,000 underspend on fostering and adoption 
staff costs as a result of a reduced share of  activity offset by overspends 
due to agency cover while recruitment is underway and for maternity 
leave. 
 
A full review of staffing is taking place with the department as part of the 
budget planning work alongside an agency reduction plan. 

117 

Other minor variances 
This includes income variances to be reviewed in light of updated 
allocations and planned balance sheet drawdowns. 

(250) 

Family Services total 870 

    

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND)   

Travel care and support 
The overspend is primarily due to significant demand, student number 
growth and longer journeys needed for pupils with complex medical needs 
and physical disabilities. 
 
This is a demand led statutory service which saw an expenditure increase 
of 13% in 2019/20 and are predicting a further 14% increase in 2020/21. 
The service continues to experience increased demand for travel 
assistance due to the 7% increase in pupils with Education and Health 
Care Plans (EHCPs).  Approximately 28% of the EHCP cohort require and 

706 

Page 74



 
 

 11 

Table 3 - Variance analysis  

Departmental division 
Month 2 

£000 

access travel assistance. 
 
The forecast includes further demand growth (£0.152m) predicted from 
September and a likely indexation increase (£0.067m) also from 
September for the new academic year. 
 
The service have not yet delivered £0.049m on its saving target of 
£0.129m.  Further opportunities to deliver savings are being explored to 
mitigate the risk of under delivery and to reduce the forecast overspend 
including identifying alternative pathways and step-down transition.  A 
review has been conducted to ensure provision matches risk and needs of 
the child/young person, ensuring routes and services are efficient and 
optimised. 

The Haven 
The forecast overspend is primarily due to overtime paid as a result of 
historic practices, long term sickness and performance issues.  
 
The service also experiences volatility in income due to the uncertainty of 
out of borough pupils remaining in the provision.  The Covid-19 pandemic 
has meant the two pupils are staying on a longer-term basis but the 
provision is currently under-capacity by 2 beds. The sixth bed will be filled 
in October 2020. 
 
The Covid-19 pandemic has increased staff and operational costs to 
ensure cover which are included in the forecast by c£0.080m. 
 
The service intend to start a review of staffing structures and to establish a 
new service delivery model. 

266 

Children with disability placements - short breaks and care packages 
There are 3 service types: 
Direct Payments - 123 cases overspend £0.431m 
Care Packages (Spot) - 107 cases underspend £0.099m 
Residential Placements - 9 cases underspend £0.053m 
and a contingency of £0.307m for the financial year. 

4 

Other minor variances (73) 

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities total 903 

    

Education   

No variance forecast. 1 

Education total 1 

    

Children's Commissioning   

2018/19 budget savings of £1.5m are yet to be delivered with respect to 
commissioned Early Help, Children’s Centre and Youth services. 
 
A plan to deliver savings over the medium term is being developed which 
involves an additional funding request in 2020/21 of £0.75m and in year 

1,608 

Page 75



 
 

 12 

Table 3 - Variance analysis  

Departmental division 
Month 2 

£000 

savings of circa £0.95m. 

Children's Commissioning total 1,608 

    

Assets, Operations & Planning   

Children's Services savings are loaded here and are due to be 
redistributed across the service as delivery plans are developed. 

276 

Assets, Operations & Planning total 276 

    

School Funding   

Nil variance 0 

School Funding total 0 

    

TOTAL VARIANCE 3,658 

 

Table 4 - Savings delivery 

 
Savings 
target  

On track  
Partially 

deliverable 
Undeliverable 

Children's Services £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s  

Total Savings  836 257 579 0 

Schemes not 
on track 

£000s  Reason  

Employee 
Savings 

250 

Part of a wider staffing review due to take place in June / 
July 2020 to deliver the 2020/21 £250,000 savings and 
additional targets required as part existing pressures on the 
CHS staffing budget and the 2021/22 savings required. 

Semi 
Independent 
Living Housing 
Strategy 

200 
Accommodation moves have been delayed due to Covid-19 
restrictions. Partial delivery will be made from July when 
moves can be managed safely. 

Travel Care 129 
Partial delivery is forecast in year with mitigation plans 
being drawn up. 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 76



 
 

 13 

APPENDIX 1a: DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT (DSG) 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING MONTH 2 

 

Table 1 - Variance by Departmental Division 

Departmental division 
Revised  
budget 

Forecast 
variance 
 month 2 

Forecast 
variance 
due to 

Covid-19 

Forecast 
variance 
(non – 
Covid-

19) 
month 2 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

High Needs Block expenditure 22,868 2,194 0 2,194 

Early Years Block expenditure 15,979 (12) 0 (12) 

Schools Block expenditure 38,674 0 0 0 

Central School Services Block 
expenditure 

3,878 (3) 
0 

(3) 

DSG Income  (81,398) 0 0 0 

TOTAL 0 2,179 0 2,179 

 

Table 2 - Variance analysis  

Departmental division 
Month 2 

£000 

High Needs Block (HNB) (High Needs funding supports provision for 
children and young people with special educational needs from their early 
years to age 25 and Alternative Provision) 

  

The current High Needs Block (HNB) forecast outturn is £25.46m 
representing an improvement of £1.26m on the final 2019/20 outturn. This 
outturn represents a forecast overspend of £2.1m. 
 
The authority has received additional funding after Education Skills Funding 
Agency (ESFA) academy recoupment and place reductions of £2.796m in 
FY 2020/21, an increase of 14.3% nationally.  However, a decrease in 
available funding from the Schools Block and the Central Services Schools 
Block means the final net increase is £2.1m or 10.1%. 
 
The authority expects a further increase in funding Summer 2020 of 
£0.882m on the import/export adjustment to reflect the number of Special 
Education Needs and Disability (SEND) pupils from other boroughs that 
attend Hammersmith and Fulham schools. 
 
 There remains uncertainty as to any funding implications on the 2019/20 
import/export error caused by a data error of the Further Education (FE) 
college.   Any liability that may occur on this will be reflected in the 2020/21 
forecast position once we have confirmation from the Education and 
Standards Funding Agency. 
 
There are other risks relating to the potential under-recovery of the regional 
administration charge and income due from other boroughs for the wrap-
around service relating to Speech and Language Therapy. 

2,194 

Page 77



 
 

 14 

Table 2 - Variance analysis  

Departmental division 
Month 2 

£000 

High Needs Block total  2,194 

    

Early Years Block (Funding for Early Years including Two-Year-Old 
funding and Early Years Pupil Premium) 

  

The Early Years DSG has a brought forward surplus balance of £0.066m 
from 2019/20 after the recovery of 2018/19 financial year deficit of 
£0.206m. 
 
The final funding for 2019/20 will be confirmed in Summer 2020. There is a 
potential favourable movement as a result of increased entitlement to 
government funded hours in the Spring 2020 census. The surplus must be 
used to support Early Years settings in line with grant conditions. 

0 

Early Years Block total 0 

    

Schools Block (This budget of the DSG forms the core funding for 
mainstream maintained schools) 

  

No variance forecast on Schools delegated or de-delegated budgets or 
those for maintained education functions. 

0 

Schools Block total 0 

    

Central School Services Block  (CSBB) (Funding for the Local 
Authorities’ ongoing responsibilities) 

  

The CSSB is budgeted to contribute to High Needs Block related 
expenditure of £0.461 in 2020/21. Savings of %0.537m have been 
achieved to mitigate a reduction in government grant. 

 0 

Central School Services Block total 0 

    

TOTAL VARIANCE 2,194 

 

Table 3 - Key risks - Items Over £250,000 

Risk description 
Risk at 

month 2 
£000 

The council is a regional commissioner for children and young people with 
SEND with 47% of the school's population with an Education and Health 
Care Plan (EHCP) originating from out of borough.   
 
The forecast assumes full recovery of Speech and Language Therapy 
(SALT) and Occupational Therapy (OT) charges for the wrap around 
services.  However, there is a risk of only partial recovery primarily due to 
quality data issues held by the NHS trust who provide the service. 
 
The Covid-19 pandemic could also have an impact as there will be a loss of 
chargeable income for the Summer term 2020. 

TBC 

TOTAL RISKS MANAGED TBC 

 

Page 78



 
 

 15 

APPENDIX 2: THE ECONOMY DEPARTMENT 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING MONTH 2 

 

Table 1 - Forecast variance by subjective 

Subjective 
Budget 
£000's 

Variance 
Month 2 
£000's 

Employees 10,990 (280) 

Premises-related expenditure 839 825 

Transport-related expenditure 11 0 

Supplies & services 3,052 63 

Third party payments 17,697 1,008 

Transfer payments (e.g. Housing Benefits, Schools funding 
transfers)  

98 0 

Support services (Internal Trading Services) 146 84 

Items excluded from the cost of services (Debt management 
and Capital Charges) 

0 0 

Income (26,838) 1,594 

Non-controllable expenditure Technical Accounting 
Adjustments e.g. overhead redistribution) 

(1,189) 0 

Total 4,806 3,294 

 

Table 2 - Variance by departmental division 

Departmental division 
Revised  
budget 

Forecast 
variance 
 month 2 

Forecast 
variance 
due to 

Covid-19 

Forecast 
variance 
(non – 

Covid-19) 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Housing Solutions 6,992 1,675 1,258 417 

Growth (4,398) (41) 0 (41) 

Economic Development, Skills Service 794 58 58 0 

Planning 1,309 1,605 350 1,255 

Operations 104 3 0 3 

Direct Delivery 5 (6) 0 (6) 

TOTAL 4,806 3,294 1,666 1,628 

 

Table 3 - Variance analysis  

Departmental Division 
Month 2 

£000 

Housing Solutions   

Although the forecast for average client numbers (958 units) is lower than 
budgeted (969 units) in Private Sector Leased (PSL) temporary 
accommodation schemes, the unit rent payments to landlords have been 
increased to reflect inflation on the Local Housing Allowance (LHA), 
resulting in a net overspend. 

107 

Although there is a forecast reduction in average client numbers (from a 
budget of 90 clients to a forecast of 81) in Bed and Breakfast (B&B) 
temporary accommodation, higher Out of Hours (OOH) placements and 
pre-booking (from a budget of 4 per day on average to an actual of 22 per 

50 

Page 79



 
 

 16 

Table 3 - Variance analysis  

Departmental Division 
Month 2 

£000 

day on average to the end of May) has resulted in a net forecast 
overspend.  

An overspend on cost avoidance payments of £0.6m to Private Sector 
Leasing and Direct Letting landlords is expected this year to secure 
temporary accommodation. In addition, further spend of £0.45m is forecast 
under a Cabinet decision to invest up to £0.9m from reserves to secure 300 
additional private rented sector properties to prevent homelessness or 
enabling households to exit temporary accommodation. 

600 

Flexible Homelessness Support Grant provided by Government (£2.805m) 
to cushion the impact of the removal of the management fee for Temporary 
Accommodation (after allocating £2.589m to PSL and deducting an 
assumed £50,000 which we expect Registered Providers to claim). The 
grant has been confirmed for 2020/21 but not for subsequent years so there 
is a risk of significant budget pressure in the future. 

(166) 

Homelessness Reduction Grant of £0.568m is provided by Government to 
enable councils to fulfil their duties under the Homelessness Reduction Act 
and to help homeless households into accommodation. Of this, £394m has 
been allocated to Housing Solutions and Preventions. 

(174) 

The provision of accommodation and supported housing to rough sleepers 
and clients needing to self-isolate as part of the council's response to the 
Covid-19 pandemic is forecast to cost £1.233m plus £25,000 for the 
additional costs in managing increased activity within the out of hours 
service. 

1,258 

Housing Solutions total 1,675 

    

Growth   

Valuation Services: Income generated from recharges is expected to be 
(£19k) in excess of the income target. Staff variances of (£5k) are also 
forecast. 

(24) 

Rent and Other Properties: Income generated from rent is expected to be 
(£30k) in excess of the income target following the acquisition of Farm Lane 
and Gibbs Green School. 

(30) 

Housing Strategy: underspend from vacant post (£28k) offset by overspend 
due to lower capitalisation of salaries of £44k within the Development Team 
due to delays on capital schemes. 

13 

Growth total (41) 

    

Economic Development & Skills Service   

Business Investment Team: unbudgeted security costs are forecast to 
support social distancing measures at North End Road market. 

58 

Economic Development & Skills Service total 58 

    

Planning   

Development Management Planning Applications income shortfall of 
£1.4m due to economic factors such as the impact of Brexit. An overspend 
of £75,000 relates to exceptional costs for Counsel, legal and other 

1,339 

Page 80



 
 

 17 

Table 3 - Variance analysis  

Departmental Division 
Month 2 

£000 

specialist advice on a number of specific applications, partly offset by a 
staffing underspend of (£136,000) as a result of ongoing recruitment 
process. 

Development Management (Covid-19) - a further Planning Applications 
income shortfall of £350,000 is expected due to the impact of the pandemic. 
This is a best estimate based on proxies and will be monitored and updated 
as patterns emerge over the coming months. 

350 

Planning Management (5) 

Spatial Planning staffing vacancies due to an ongoing recruitment process 
following a restructure. 

(79) 

Planning total 1,605 

    

Operations   

 Minor variances 3 

Operations total 3 

    

Direct Delivery   

 Minor variances (6) 

Direct Delivery total (6) 

    

TOTAL VARIANCE 3,294 

 

Table 4 - Savings delivery 

Dept 
Savings 
Target  

On track  
Partially 

deliverable 
Undeliverable 

  £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s  

Total Savings  758 758 0 0 

Schemes not 
on Track 

£000s  Reason  

 None 

 

Table 5 - Key risks - Items over £250,000 

Risk description 
Risk at 

month 2 
£000 

Overall Benefit Cap 100  

Direct Payments (Universal Credit) 50  

Increase in bad debt provision on Temporary Accommodation (Bed & 
Breakfast and Private Sector Leasing) rent arrears because of 
reductions in personal income due to Covid-19.  

800  

There is a risk of a further increase in the number of households in 
Temporary Accommodation -  based on an additional 100 households 
this year above the current forecast. 

550  

Inflationary pressures on Temporary Accommodation landlord costs, 
based on an extra 1.5% rental inflation above the current forecast. 

400  

Page 81



 
 

 18 

Table 5 - Key risks - Items over £250,000 

Risk description 
Risk at 

month 2 
£000 

There is a risk of large families being accommodated in B&B. 100  

Homelessness Reduction Bill - increase in households in temporary 
accommodation - extra 70 households this year above the current 
forecast. 

400  

Markets Street Trading potential shortfall in income generated from 
temporary traders at Wood Lane, football venues and Lyric Square, due 
to business uncertainty due to the Covid-19 pandemic.  

200  

Townmead and Sullivan Workshops commercial rents: a potential 
shortfall in rent income received from tenants as a result of business 
uncertainty and possible liquidation of businesses as a result of the 
Covid-19 pandemic.  

150  

Adult Learning Skills Service course fees risk of reduction in income if 
student capacity falls to 25% from the start of the academic year 
(September 2020). 

450 

As a result of delays to capital schemes due to Covid-19, there is a risk 
that staff capitalisation will be lower than budgeted. 

50 

Planning has an ongoing risk of an overspend against the budget due to 
potential costs associated with judicial reviews and major planning 
appeals including additional work to support the Hammersmith Town 
Centre supplementary planning document. 

200 

Asset Strategy and Portfolio Management - Following Covid-19 crisis 
commercial properties have been granted 3 months rental holiday which 
is expected to be recovered later in the year. However, there is a risk 
that commercial rent may not be recovered. 

100 

TOTAL RISKS MANAGED 3,550 

 

Supplementary Monitoring Information 

The forecast outturn for Housing Solutions of a £417,000 overspend (excluding 
pressures due to Covid-19) is set within the context of a reduction in the base budget 
for 2020/21 of £697,000 to reflect agreed savings The service continues to manage 
risks (outlined in the table above) together with future cost pressures and savings 
requirements in an unpredictable environment. 

Long Term Trends:  
 
The Temporary Accommodation (TA) service faces a long-term trend of:  
• rising rents,  
• constraints on income collection because of Welfare Reform  
• increases in demand from homeless families.  
 
The number of households in TA has been increasing annually (1,214 at April 2016; 
1,324 at April 2017; 1,444 at April 2018; with a slight reduction to 1,292 at April 2019, 
1,205 at April 2020). The current number of households in TA is 1,225 (at 31 May 2020) 
represents a rise of over 0.9% since April 2016 at a time when the London average has 
increased by 5%. TA numbers are projected to increase to 1,259 at April 2021 and 
1,309 at April 2022 and 1,359 at April 2023.  
  

Page 82



 
 

 19 

Supplementary Monitoring Information 

The number of enquiries in April and May 2020 respectively was 208 and 202, down 
from 259 and 222 in the same period in 2019. We received 39 (April) and 47 (May) Part 
7 Homelessness applications, a reduction from 88 and 111 in the same period 
respectively. The reduction in approaches has been consistently in decline since the 
implementation of the Homelessness Reduction Act (2018). Prevention and 
Assessment have had increased approaches from single households & rough sleepers 
as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic – in excess of 252 placements made during April 
and May so, whilst the number of approaches and statutory applications are down, the 
workload and cases are higher than this period last year as a result.                                                                                                                                     

Planning income in recent years has fluctuated between £3.6m (2018/19), £2.3m 
(2019/20) and is currently forecast to reach £2m in 2020/21, some £1.7m short of the 
budget.  
The inherent volatility of planning income means it is difficult to predict future income 
expectations due to several factors including:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
• Covid19 impact on wider economy and on delays in construction projects                                                                                                                                                                                    
• Changes to the statutory charging schedule 
• Economic factors such as the impact of Brexit, concerns about economic recession on 
developer/investor confidence and planning activity. 
• Changes in legislation e.g. permitted development rights, Planning Performance 
Agreement regulation 
• Changes to pre-application charging fees and Planning Performance Agreement 
templates 
• Local and wider market conditions 
• Availability of development sites in the borough 
• Developers by-passing the pre-application process as it is not compulsory 
• Reduced developer Planning Performance Agreements 
• Government schemes to encourage house building, including grant schemes 
• Developers’ responding to current and pipeline housing supply in borough (they don’t 
want to flood the local market) 
• Adverse weather conditions,  and delays in supply chains, delaying construction 
pipeline 

 
 
  

Page 83



 
 

 20 

APPENDIX 3: THE ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING MONTH 2 

 

Table 1 - Forecast variance by subjective 

Subjective 
Budget 
£000's 

Variance 
Month 2 
£000's 

Employees 21,618 1,510 

Premises-related expenditure 5,168 60 

Transport-related expenditure 867 (13) 

Supplies & services 16,477 263 

Third party payments 23,521 1,469 

Transfer payments (e.g. Housing Benefits, Schools funding 
transfers)  

260 0 

Support services (Internal Trading Services) 10,692 6 

Items excluded from the cost of services (Debt management 
and Capital Charges) 

945 (97) 

Depreciation and impairment losses 13,680 0 

Income (25,730) 706 

Non-controllable expenditure 0 0 

Total 67,497 3,906 

 

Table 2 - Variance by departmental division 

Departmental division 
Revised  
budget 

Forecast 
variance 
 month 2 

Forecast 
variance 
due to 

Covid-19 

Forecast 
variance 

(non-Covid-
19) 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Public Realm 35,769 2,090 2,038 52 

Safer Neighbourhoods & 
Regulatory Services 

8,664 591 312 279 

Leisure, Sport and Culture 7,455 759 710 49 

Resident Services 15,610 466 216 250 

Executive and Support 0 0 0 0 

Total 67,497 3,906 3,276 630 

 

Table 3 - Variance analysis  

Departmental division 
Month 2 

£000 

Public Realm       

Highways - unbudgeted enforcement of social distancing in parks and 
open spaces (Covid-19 cost), provided by the Council's Highways 
contractor. 

392 

Highways - unbudgeted cycle lane works to aid social distancing (Covid-
19 cost). Funding request submitted to Transport for London but not yet 
confirmed. 

939 

Highways - other unbudgeted Covid-19 related costs, mostly relating to 
social distancing measures. 

71 

Page 84



 
 

 21 

Table 3 - Variance analysis  

Departmental division 
Month 2 

£000 

Highways - planned underspend on general maintenance (100) 

Commercial waste - includes £228,000 net income shortfall relating to 
Covid-19 business closures (forecast assumes return to business as 
usual from October) and £36,000 loss of income following decant from 
Hammersmith Town Hall 

572 

Waste disposal - includes £165,000 estimated increase in domestic 
waste tonnages resulting from Covid-19, as more people at home 
producing more waste 

32 

Delayed implementation of waste contract savings due to service impact 
of Covid-19 

243 

Unconfirmed s.106 for Environmental Quality (prior year budgeted 
saving) 

60 

Other smaller net variances (119) 

Public Realm total     2,090 

    

Community Safety and Regulatory Services       

Building control - net income shortfall due to a reduction in demand for 
chargeable works. Assumes outturn in line with last year. Service being 
reviewed to assess potential for income growth and closer alignment of 
income and expenditure. 

187 

Community Safety - unbudgeted enforcement of social distancing in 
parks and open spaces (Covid-19 cost), provided by Parks security and 
enforcement contractor. 

189 

Unconfirmed s.106 for CCTV (prior year budgeted saving). 120 

Emergency Planning - budget pressure due to partial budget growth for 
enhanced team and decision to maintain existing emergency response 
rota cover (prior year saving therefore not fully achieved). 

51 

Regulatory Services - expected loss of income due to Covid-19 business 
disruption (mostly due to inability to access properties and business 
premises to carry out inspections and treatments). 

123 

Noise and Nuisance - net ongoing loss of gas safety checking income 
following service in-sourcing by housing. 

95 

Technical Support - staffing underspend due to posts held vacant. (58) 

Other smaller net variances. (116) 

Community Safety and Regulatory Services total     591 

    

Leisure, Sport and Culture       

Cancelled events due to Covid-19 lockdown. 224 

Cancelled filming due to Covid-19 lockdown. 37 

Lettings and Filming - loss of income as a result of decanting from 
Hammersmith Town Hall 

193 

Lettings and Filming - Transfer from the King Street Redevelopment 
Reserve for loss of income resulting from the decant from Hammersmith 
Town Hall 

(193) 

Events in parks income shortfall, due mostly to Member preference to 
restrict the number of large events in parks (mostly funfairs and 

43 

Page 85



 
 

 22 

Table 3 - Variance analysis  

Departmental division 
Month 2 

£000 

circuses). 

Filming income shortfall - mostly unachieved prior year saving (£50,000) 
and lost income opportunity when Fulham Town Hall closed (£45,000). 
No longer able to be offset by underspends elsewhere in the department 

95 

Events - Commercial income target for a Market on Shepherds Bush 
Green not progressed due to proximity to the existing permanent market. 
Alternative income generating proposals being progressed but not likely 
to be delivered in 2020/21 due to the impact of Covid-19 on the events 
sector 

100 

Registrars - three months loss of income relating to Covid-19 business 
disruption (£125,000), partially offset by forecast staffing underspends (-
£78,000) 

47 

Libraries - net loss of income during period of library closure relating to 
Covid-19. 

85 

Libraries - planned contractual /restructure change (dependent on 
recruitment / subject to change) 

(102) 

Parks – delayed saving for better procurement in parks 50 

Leisure contract – income shortfall due to deferment of contractual 
income during period of leisure centre closure, related to Covid-19 
(currently assuming 3-month closure, but subject to change) 

99 

Sports bookings contract – income shortfall due to deferment of 
contractual income during period of no bookings in parks, related to 
Covid-19 (currently assuming 3-month loss of business, but subject to 
change) 

140 

Other smaller net variances (59) 

Leisure, Sport and Culture total     759 

    

Resident Services       

Additional staff costs in Revenues, Benefits and Customer Contacts 
related to Covid-19 increased service demand (£221,000), partially offset 
by expected Covid-19 related New Burdens funding, but not yet 
confirmed (-£70,000) 

151 

Delayed savings to be delivered through the Resident Experience and 
Access Programme. Business case being revisited for in-year quick wins 
following Covid-19 related service changes 

741 

Delayed implementation of new staffing structures due to Covid-19 
impact on service demand 

65 

Implementation of new directorate service staffing structure from 
October 

(388) 

Other smaller net variances (103) 

Resident Services total     466 

    

TOTAL VARIANCE 3,906 

 

Table 4 - Savings Delivery 

Page 86



 
 

 23 

Dept 
Savings 
target  

On track  
Partially 

deliverable 
Undeliverable 

  £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s  

Total Savings  224 50 174 0 

Schemes not on 
track 

£000s  Reason  

New Leisure 
Contract 

174 
Fixed contractual income deferred due to Covid-19 
related Leisure Centre closure (£75,000 deliverable and 
£99,000 at risk) 

 

Table 5 - Key risks - Items Over £250,000 

Risk description 
Risk at 

month 2 
£000 

General risk to commercial income if the effects of Covid-19 last beyond 
the current forecast periods  

TBC 

Delivery plan against new in year staff saving not yet confirmed 334 

Climate Change team funding not yet identified 202 

TOTAL RISKS BEING MANAGED 536 

 

Supplementary Monitoring Information 

The Environment Department has been at the forefront of the Council's Covid-19 
response, as reflected by the additional unbudgeted spend. Loss of commercial income 
relating to business disruption during the Covid-19 lockdown has also presented 
significant budget pressures. This is likely to worsen as the long-lasting effects of 
Covid-19 on the local economy become clearer. The department is working to mitigate 
the financial impact as far as possible (including seeking external funding); but will be 
unable to fully absorb the net budget pressure. It is expected that Covid-19 related 
costs will be covered by the central government grant where possible, although the 
current grant allocation is insufficient to cover the expenditure and losses across the 
Council. There are also a number of historic budget pressures included in the base 
budget for the department. It is expected that these will be permanently addressed as 
part of the annual savings and budget setting cycle, allowing the departmental budget 
to be rebased in line with spend and income expectations from 2021/22. 

 
 
  

Page 87



 
 

 24 

APPENDIX 3A: CONTROLLED PARKING ACCOUNT 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING MONTH 2 

 

Table 1 - Forecast variance by subjective 

Subjective 
Budget 
£000's 

Variance 
month 2 
£000's 

Employees 6,644 (67) 

Premises-related expenditure 274 0 

Transport-related expenditure 4 0 

Supplies & services 1,152 0 

Third party payments 2,154 0 

Transfer payments (e.g. housing benefits, schools 
funding transfers)  

0 0 

Support services (internal trading services) 296 0 

Items excluded from the cost of services (debt 
management and capital charges) 

0 0 

Income (39,728) 11,825 

Non-controllable expenditure (technical accounting 
adjustments e.g. overhead redistribution) 

3,091 0 

Total (26,113) 11,758 

 
 

Table 2 - Variance by departmental division 

Departmental division 
Revised  
budget 

Forecast 
variance 
 month 2 

Forecast 
variance 
due to 

Covid-19 

Forecast 
variance 
(non – 

Covid-19) 
month 2 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Correspondence 942 5   5 

CEOs and Removal & Storage (8,338) 4,376 4,422 (47) 

CCTV 1,794 16   16 

Permits (4,525) 1,028 1,028   

Pay and Display (16,861) 5,470 5,470   

Suspensions & Street Services (2,460) 873 905 (32) 

Finance 410 (34)   (34) 

Parking Operations and Contracts 1,861 (27)   (27) 

Customer Service 392 26   26 

Business Development 307 (5)   (5) 

Appeals and Special Events 366 33   33 

TOTAL (26,113) 11,759 11,825 (67) 

 
 

Table 3 - Variance analysis  

Departmental division 
Month 2 

£000 

Page 88



 
 

 25 

Table 3 - Variance analysis  

Departmental division 
Month 2 

£000 

Correspondence 5 

The current variance is due to salary forecasts   

CEOs and Removal & Storage 4,376 

-£46,513 is due to a vacant position within CEOs, £4,422,201 is due to a 
reduction in PCN income due to Covid-19. 

  

CCTV 16 

The current variance is due to salary forecasts   

Permits 1,028 

The total variance is due to a reduction in permits income due to COVID-
19. 

  

Pay and Display 5,470 

The total variance is due to a reduction in pay and display income due to 
COVID-19. 

  

Suspensions & Street Services 873 

-£31,976 is due to a decrease in salary forecast, £905,129 is due to a 
reduction in suspensions income due to Covid-19. 

  

Finance (34) 

The current variance is due to salary forecasts, where one vacant position 
will not now be hired to. 

  

Parking Operations and Contracts (27) 

The current variance is due to salary forecasts, where a vacant position is 
not being filled until later in the year. 

  

Customer Service 26 

The current variance is due to salary forecasts   

Business Development (5) 

The current variance is due to salary forecasts   

Appeals and Special Events 33 

The current variance is due to salary forecasts   

TOTAL VARIANCE 11,759 

 

Table 4 - Savings delivery 

 
Savings 
target  

On track  
Partially 

deliverable 
Undeliverable 

  £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s  

Total Savings  750     750 

Schemes not 
on track 

£000s  Reason  

Recognition of 
Parking Income 
Surplus 

750 
The net savings target will not be met this year due to 
Covid-19 lockdown which has had a significant impact on 
parking income, suspensions and PCN's. 

 

Table 5 - Key risks - Items over £250,000 

Risk description 
Risk at 

month 2 
£000 

Page 89



 
 

 26 

Table 5 - Key risks - Items over £250,000 

Risk description 
Risk at 

month 2 
£000 

A second wave of Covid-19 lockdown causing another reduction in 
income. 

10,000 

TOTAL RISKS MANAGED 10,000 

 
 
  

Page 90



 
 

 27 

APPENDIX 4: FINANCE  
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING MONTH 2 

 

Table 1 - Forecast Variance by Subjective 

Subjective 
Budget 
£000's 

Variance 
Month 2 
£000's 

Employees 10,281 216 

Transport-related expenditure 2 0 

Supplies & services 3,084 (70) 

Third party payments 14 0 

Internal recharges - expense 0 0 

Internal traded expense - legal 40 0 

Internal traded expense - other 1 0 

Internal traded income - other 0 0 

Premises-related expenditure 3,023 0 

Internal recharges - income (71) 0 

Income (1,142) 0 

Support services (12,267) 0 

Depreciation and impairment losses 813 0 

Total 3,778 146 

 

Table 2 - Variance by Departmental Division 

Departmental Division 
Revised  
Budget 

Forecast 
Variance 
 Month 2 

Forecast 
Variance 

due to 
Covid-19 

Forecast 
Variance 

(non – 
Covid-

19) 
month 2 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Assurance, Programmes & Analytics 882 401 0 401 

Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance 1,032 (115) 0 (115) 

Chief Executives Office 544 0 0 0 

Corporate Buildings & Facilities 
Management 

6,604 45 45 0 

Finance 4,134 (185) 0 (185) 

Managed Services 2,037 0 0 0 

TOTAL 15,233 146 45 101 

Departmental non-controllable 
budgets 

(11,455)       

Revised variance 3,778 146 45 101 

 
 
 
 

Table 3 - Variance Analysis  

Page 91



 
 

 28 

Departmental Division 
Month 2 

£000 

Assurance, Programmes & Analytics   

Assurance, Programmes & Analytics - pressure on Business Intelligence 
(BI) staffing costs mainly due to unfunded posts and additional resource to 
address critical roles required to meet organisational demand, including the 
delivery of several key statutory reports. The BI team continues to deliver 
financial benefits across the council in excess of total service cost.  
The overspend is partially offset by forecast underspends on held 
vacancies within the Programme Management Office. 

401 

Assurance, Programmes & Analytics total 401 

    

Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance   

Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance- Underspend against audit contract  (115) 

Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance total (115) 

    

Chief Executives Office   

  0 

Chief Executives Office total 0 

    

Corporate Buildings & Facilities Management   

Facilities Management – Civid-19 spend on additional cleaning staff and 
deep cleaning of corporate buildings 

45 

Corporate Buildings & Facilities Management total 45 

    

Finance   

Finance - Underspend on staffing budgets (185) 

Finance total (185) 

    

Hampshire partnership   

  0 

Hampshire partnership total 0 

    

TOTAL VARIANCE 146 

 

Table 4 - Savings Delivery 

 
Savings 
Target  

On Track  
Partially 

Deliverable 
Undeliverable 

  £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s  

Total Savings  544 544     

Schemes not 
On Track 

£000s  Reason  

      

 

Table 5 - Key Risks - Detail Items Over £250,000 

Risk Description 
Risk At 
Month 2 

£000 

Corporate Buildings & Facilities Management - Rental income from 75 

Page 92



 
 

 29 

Table 5 - Key Risks - Detail Items Over £250,000 

Risk Description 
Risk At 
Month 2 

£000 

Ravenscourt stores at risk 

TOTAL RISKS MANAGED 75 

 
 
  

Page 93



 
 

 30 

APPENDIX 5: RESOURCES 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING MONTH 2 

 

Table 1 - Forecast variance by subjective 

Subjective 
Budget 
£000's 

Variance 
Month 2 
£000's 

Employees 13,391 (121) 

Transport-related expenditure 19 0 

Supplies & services 12,619 342 

Third party payments 0 0 

Internal traded Expense - legal 115 0 

Internal traded Expense - other 54 0 

Internal traded Income - legal (2,653) 0 

Internal traded Income - other (1,046) 0 

Premises-related expenditure 184 0 

Internal recharges - income (1,570) 359 

Income (2,959) 0 

Support services (14,132) 0 

Depreciation and impairment losses 458 0 

Total 4,480 580 

 

Table 2 - Variance by Departmental Division 

Departmental Division 
Revised  
Budget 

Forecast 
Variance 
 Month 2 

Forecast 
Variance 

due to 
Covid-19 

Forecast 
Variance 

(non-
Covid-19) 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Policy, Print Service and 
Communications 

779 559 200 359 

Democratic Services, Coroners & 
Mortuaries 

2,280 250 400 (150) 

Digital Services 13,196 (225) 25 (250) 

Legal Services (889) 0 0 0 

Members Support 264 26 0 26 

People and Talent 2,184 0 0 0 

Procurement 340 (30) 0 (30) 

TOTAL 18,154 580 625 (45) 

Departmental non-controllable 
budgets 

(13,674)       

Revised Variance 4,480 580 625 (45) 

 

Table 3 - Variance Analysis  

Departmental Division 
Month 2 

£000 

Policy, Print Service and Communications   

Overspend as a result of underachievement of traded income within the 
print service and difficult to achieve savings. Additional expenditure this 

559 

Page 94



 
 

 31 

Table 3 - Variance Analysis  

Departmental Division 
Month 2 

£000 

year in forecast relating to Covid-19 

Communications and Policy total 559 

    

Democratic Services, Coroners & Mortuaries   

Democratic Services, Coroners & Mortuaries- additional costs relating to 
temporary mortuary storage costs  associate equipment 

250 

Democratic services, Coroners & Mortuaries total 250 

    

Digital Services   

Digital Services - Cost reduction from the desktop services area and a 
reduction in print charges. Plus, negotiations resulted in reduced Microsoft 
Premier Agreement licence costs. Also, a new programme approach is 
being applied to the contract renewals and awards process which will 
produce efficiencies. 

(225) 

Digital Services total (225) 

    

Legal Services   

  0 

Legal Services total 0 

    

Members Support   

Small overspends on staffing budgets 26 

Members Support total 26 

    

People and Talent   

  0 

People and Talent total 0 

    

Procurement   

Procurement - Small underspends on staffing budgets (30) 

Procurement Total (30) 

    

TOTAL VARIANCE 580 

 

Table 4 - Savings Delivery 

 
Savings 
Target  

On track  
Partially 

deliverable 
Undeliverable 

  £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s  

Total Savings  300 300     

Schemes not 
on track 

£000s  Reason  

      

 

Table 5 - Key Risks - Items Over £250,000 

Page 95



 
 

 32 

Risk Description 
Risk At 
Month 2 

£000 

Network migration costs to business as usual service delivery may lead 
to an increase in current projections. 

TBC 

TOTAL RISKS MANAGED TBC 

 
 

 
  

Page 96



 
 

 33 

APPENDIX 6: SOCIAL CARE 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING MONTH 2 

 

Table 1 - Forecast Variance by Subjective 

Subjective 
Budget 
£000's 

Variance 
Month 2 
£000's 

Employees 13,841 (24) 

Premises-related expenditure 547   

Transport-related expenditure 49   

Supplies & services 9,976   

Third party payments 64,011 1,529 

Transfer payments (e.g. housing benefits, schools 
funding transfers)  

12,336   

Support services (internal trading services) 26   

Items excluded from the cost of services (debt 
management and capital charges) 

0   

Income (53,607)   

Non-controllable expenditure (technical accounting 
adjustments e.g. overhead redistribution) 

8,171   

Total 55,350 1,505 

Covid-19 cost   3,256 

Revised Total 55,350 4,761 

 

Table 2 - Variance by departmental division 

Departmental division 
Revised  
budget 

Forecast 
variance 
 month 2 

Forecast 
variance 
due to 

Covid-19 

Forecast 
variance 
(non – 

Covid-19) 
month2 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Operations 20,796 (240) 0 (240) 

Learning Disability, Mental Health 
and In-House Services 

22,360 1,754 0 1,754 

Commissioning 4,397 (9) 0 (9) 

Resources 7,267 0 0 0 

Social Care Directorate 530 0 0 0 

Public Health 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 55,350 1,505 0 1,505 

Social Care Covid-19 0 0 3,256 0 

Revised Total 55,350 1,505 3,256 1,505 

 

Table 3 - Variance Analysis  

Departmental Division 
Month 2 

£000 

Operations   

The main reasons for the underspend is the full year effect of 41 net 
reductions in placement costs due to Covid-19 deaths in care home 
which amounts of (£625,000), Direct Payments with 8 fewer residents of 

(240) 

Page 97



 
 

 34 

Table 3 - Variance Analysis  

Departmental Division 
Month 2 

£000 

(£379,000) and PFI homes (£165,000). This is offset by the projected 
overspend of £930,000 due to the full year effect of home care packages 
and further increases in price. Mitigation plans are in place to address 
this overspend. 

Operation total (240) 

    

Learning Disability, Mental Health and In-House Services   

The projected overspend of is a similar position to the 2019/20 outturn 
position. The main pressures are in LD services due to a full year effect 
of new or returning people from 2019/20 and higher market costs 
comprising of Home care £874,000, Placements £589,000 and Direct 
Payment £96,000. There are also pressures in staffing cost of £129,000 
for transitional workers to meet additional demand and some offsetting 
underspends in day care services of (£170,000).  In Mental Health 
services a similar position of the full year effect of new or returning 
people since April 2019 results in a projected overspend of £358,000 in 
placements, £64,000 in Home care and some offsetting underspend in 
Direct Payments (£33,000) and reduced staffing costs of (£153,000). 
Mitigation plans are in place to address this overspend. 

1,754 

Learning Disability, Mental Health and In-House Services total 1,754 

    

Commissioning   

  (9) 

Commissioning total (9) 

    

Resources   

  0 

Resources total 0 

    

Social Care Directorate   

  0 

Social Care Directorate total 0 

    

Public Health 
 

  0 

Public Health total 0 

        

TOTAL VARIANCE 1,505 

The department is projecting Covid-19 costs of £3.256m in 2020/21. The 
department is assuming costs will be funded from the LA Covid-19 
emergency government grant, hospital discharge funding via the CCG's 
and from the Infection Control grant, although current grant allocations 
are not expected to be sufficient to fund the additional expenditure and 
lost income incurred across the Council as a result of the Covid-19 
pandemic.   

3,256 

REVISED VARIANCE 4,761 

Page 98



 
 

 35 

 

Table 4 - Savings Delivery 

 
Savings 
target  

On 
track  

Partially 
deliverable 

Undeliverable 

  £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s  

Total savings  2,895 680 2,215   

Schemes not on track £000s  Reason  

Better demand 
management and choice 
from acute hospitals. 
Transport. Better Mental 
Health Care and Support 
Services for new and 
existing demand. Continued 
improvement of Transitions 
work. Supply and contract 
management. 

2,215 

At the early stage of the new financial year the 
department is forecasting a full delivery of 
savings. There remains £2.215m (76% of the 
total savings) to be delivered over the next 10 
months and the department has flagged a risk 
due to the focus on Covid-19 service delivery 
some savings may be delayed in 
implementation. 

 

Table 5 - Key risks - Items Over £250,000 

Risk description 
Risk at 

month 2 
£000 

There is the potential for contract market inflation and wage pressures to be 
greater than budget provided for due to Covid-19.  

950  

Year on year savings programmes are increasingly difficult to deliver and 
the focus is on the delivery of Covid-19 services. 

600  

Early Hospital discharge into Community Health Care Placements  850 

Increasing LD transitions residents (further work  will be undertaken by 
month 4). 

100 

TOTAL RISKS MANAGED 2,500 

 

Supplementary Monitoring Information 

Social care savings of £2.465m for 2020/21 have been taken out of the budget at the 
beginning of the financial year. The early forecast is caveated with the many unknowns 
in the budget from the on-going impact of Covid-19 such as: 1) more work will need to 
be undertaken to analyse the impact of the Hospital discharges placed by Health and 
requiring reassessment of care which is likely to lead to additional costs in social care, 
2) the impact on the care market providers for on-going additional costs from Covid-19 
(the department has provided a package of measures to support providers to date), 3) 
the impact to achieve the full delivery of savings; 4) market instability following Covid-
19. 
 
The department continues to experience significant budget pressures. The department 
is starting the year with a projected overspend of £1,505,000 and has estimated 
additional Social Care Covid-19 related costs for residents and providers of £3,256,000, 
which the department is expecting to be fully reimbursed from Government Covid-19 
funding. However, the current grant allocations are not sufficient to cover the expected 
expenditure and lost income as a result of the pandemic. The budget pressures are 
mainly as a result of the full year implications of resultant price increases due to market 
pressures and reductions of care budgets for savings. In arriving at the forecast for 

Page 99



 
 

 36 

Supplementary Monitoring Information 

month 2, there are additional risks of £2.5m mainly from unknown on-going factors from 
Covid-19. The budget forecast for 2020/21 will be volatile and likely to increase from the 
month 2 forecast. Historically, the department's budget has had underlying budget 
pressures, which have been partly mitigated in the last three years by using a 
combination of management action to control the budget, one off reserves and from last 
three years with increased funding through the Improved Better Care Funding.   

 
  

Page 100



 
 

 37 

APPENDIX 7: CENTRALLY MANAGED BUDGETS 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING MONTH 2 

 

Table 1 - Forecast variance by subjective 

Subjective 
Budget 
£000's 

Variance 
Month 2 
£000's 

Employees (historic past service costs) 2,346 0 

Premises-related expenditure 513 0 

Transport-related expenditure 160 0 

Supplies & services 8,488 1,500 

Third party payments 92 0 

Transfer payments (e.g. housing benefits, schools funding 
transfers)  

112,116 0 

Support services (internal trading services) 57 0 

Items excluded from the cost of services (debt management 
and capital charges) 

4,577 0 

Income (120,713) 300 

Non-controllable expenditure (technical accounting 
adjustments e.g. overhead redistribution) 

5,463 0 

Total 13,099 1,800 

 

Table 2 - Variance by departmental division 

Departmental division 
Revised  
budget 

Forecast 
variance 
 month 2 

Forecast 
variance 
due to 

Covid-19 
month 2 

Forecast 
variance 
(non – 

Covid-19) 
month 2 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Corporate & Democratic Core  667 0 0 0 

Housing Benefits (328) 0 0 0 

Levies 1,545 0 0 0 

Net Cost of Borrowing 2,915 0 0 0 

Other Corporate Items 2,572 1,800 150 1,650 

Pensions & redundancy 5,728 0 0 0 

TOTAL 13,099 1,800 150 1,650 

Balance of unapplied unallocated 
contingency 

  (3,000)   (3,000) 

Revised Variance 13,099 (1,200) 150 (1,350) 

 

Table 3 - Variance analysis  

Departmental division 
Month 2 

£000 

Corporate & Democratic Core    

  0 

Corporate & Democratic Core total 0 

    

Housing Benefits   

  0  

Page 101



 
 

 38 

Table 3 - Variance analysis  

Departmental division 
Month 2 

£000 

Housing Benefits total 0 

    

Levies     

  0 

Levies Total 0 

    

Net Cost of Borrowing   

  0 

Net Cost of Borrowing total 0 

    

Other Corporate Items   

Historic Commercial Management savings have been delivered annually 
from adhoc one off Contract Savings across the council. The delivery of 
these savings has been managed by various departments. The 
commercial operations are currently undergoing a restructure and the 
monitoring of the commercial savings is temporarily being monitored 
corporately. Currently no contract management savings either one off or 
permanent have been identified for 2020/21. 

1,500 

Land charge income is forecast to be under budget due to market 
conditions (50% of the forecast variance [£150k] is due to Covid-19 
related factors) 

300 

Other Corporate Items total 1,800 

    

Pensions & redundancy   

  0 

Pensions & redundancy total 0 

    

TOTAL VARIANCE 1,800 

 

Table 4 - Savings Delivery 

Dept 
Savings 
Target  

On track  
Partially 

deliverable 
Undeliverable 

  £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s  

Total Savings  2,945 1,695 1,250   

Schemes not 
on track 

£000s  Reason  

Employee 
Savings 

1,250 
Employee savings budgets to be rolled out to departments 
and analysis of impact of savings initiatives to be 
determined 

 

Table 5 - Key Risks - Detail Items Over £250,000 

Risk Description 
Risk At 
Month 2 

£000 

Page 102



 
 

 39 

Table 5 - Key Risks - Detail Items Over £250,000 

Risk Description 
Risk At 
Month 2 

£000 

Current provision held for the 2020/21 pay award is 2%. Latest 
employers pay award offer is 2.75%. Current risk 0.75% above 
provision. 

640 

TOTAL RISKS MANAGED 640 

 
  

Page 103



 
 

 40 

APPENDIX 8: HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
BUDGET REVENUE MONITORING MONTH 2 

 

Table 1 - Forecast variance by subjective 

Subjective 
Budget 
£000's 

Variance 
month 2 
£000's 

Employees 22,029 (920) 

Premises-related expenditure 17,780 3,580 

Transport-related expenditure 260 0 

Supplies & services 13,113 (3,167) 

Third party payments 1,211 (18) 

Transfer payments (e.g. housing benefits, schools 
funding transfers)  

0 0 

Support services (internal trading services) 453 59 

Income (80,733) 491 

Non-controllable expenditure (technical accounting 
adjustments e.g. overhead redistribution) 

33,812 (276) 

Appropriation From (+)/To (-)HRA General Reserve  7,924 (181) 

 

Table 2 - Variance by departmental division 

Departmental division 
Revised  
budget 

Forecast 
variance 
 month 2 

Forecast 
variance 
due to 
Covid-

19 

Forecast 
variance 
(non – 
Covid-

19) 
month 2 

  £0 £0 £000 £000 

Housing Income (77,474) 533 317 216 

Finance & Resources 9,795 (3,392)   (3,392) 

Housing Management 6,236 357 100 257 

Property & Compliance 9,811 (0)   (0) 

Void & Repairs 10,695 122   122 

Long Term Repairs Model  0 2,555   2,555 

Adult Social Care 48 0   0 

Safer Neighbourhood 693 0   0 

Place 9,945 (40)   (40) 

Growth 863 (53)   (53) 

Operations 3,420 0   0 

Direct Delivery 860 (61)   (61) 

Capital Charges 25,180 (447)   (447) 

Corporate Support Service Recharges 7,854 244   244 

Appropriation from HRA General 
Reserve 

7,924 (181) 417 (598) 

 
 
 

Page 104



 
 

 41 

Table 3 – Variance Analysis  

Departmental Division 
Month 2 

£000 

Housing Income   

A review of historic garage rent arrears is expected to result in a charge to 
revenue of £61,000. The effect of the general downturn in the economy on 
commercial property rents is expected to result in a higher void rate 
(forecast of 15% vs budget of 5%) and an adverse variance of £155,000. 
The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic is projected to include an under-
recovery of income from advertising sites of £242,000 and on estate 
parking income of £75,000.                                                                                                                                               

533 

Housing Income total 533 

    

Finance & Resources   

This relates to a release of a provision for risk (£3.297m) and an 
underspend due to staffing vacancies (£95k).                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

(3,392) 

Finance & Resources total (3,392) 

    

Housing Management   

An underspend of (£123,000) on staffing is mainly due to vacant posts 
within the Neighbourhood Services division offset by additional charges for 
the Careline service of £380,000 which follow a review of the apportionment 
of costs between the General Fund and the HRA. 

357 

Housing Management total 357 

    

Property & Compliance   

  0 

Property & Compliance total 0 

    

Long Term Repairs Model       

This relates to the increased costs associated with the procurement of new 
repairs and maintenance contracts as part of the long-term repairs model. 

2,555 

Long Term Repairs Model total     2,555 

    

Void & Repairs   

The challenges to recruit staff on a permanent basis has meant a significant 
number of positions are filled by agency staff. To ensure service needs are 
met and to avoid disruption to service delivery, the use of agency staff 
which attract a higher cost has been necessary. A proposal is being drawn 
up to mitigate this cost pressure and the impact of this is included in the 
forecast.  

122 

Void & Repairs total 122 

    

Adult Social Care   

No variance expected 0 

Adult Social Care Total 0 

    

Safer Neighbourhood   

No variance expected 0 

Page 105



 
 

 42 

Table 3 – Variance Analysis  

Departmental Division 
Month 2 

£000 

Safer Neighbourhood total 0 

    

Place   

Place division is expected to have a net underspend on staffing cost.  (40) 

Place total (40) 

    

Growth   

Net underspend of on staffing cost.  (53) 

Growth total (53) 

    

Operations   

  0 

Operations total 0 

    

Direct Delivery   

Vacancies within the business support team (£106,000) are offset by 
overspends on professional and legal fees of £29,000 and other minor 
variances of £16,000. 

(60) 

Direct Delivery total (60) 

    

Capital Charges   

This relates to a reduction in the interest payable on borrowings following a 
revision to the HRA borrowing strategy and the securing of additional funds 
at a lower than expected rate. 

(447) 

Capital Charges total (447) 

    

Corporate Support Service Recharges   

Additional corporate recharges are expected for the HRA share of the 
apprenticeship levy (£70,000) and IT hardware purchases (£174,000).  

244 

Corporate Support Service Recharges total 244 

    

TOTAL VARIANCE (181) 

 

Table 4 - Savings Delivery 

 
Savings 
Target  

On track  
Partially 

deliverable 
Undeliverable 

  £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s  

Total Savings  500 500     

Schemes not 
On Track 

£000s  Reason  

      

 

Table 5 - Key risks - Items Over £250,000 

Page 106



 
 

 43 

Risk description 
Risk At 
Month 2 

£000 

Council homes rent collection risks - Debt recovery escalations and 
evictions are on hold. Following this period, debts are expected to be 
repaid but there is a risk to rent arrears collection.  

                    
900  

Council homes relets and void risks to income - Income losses on 
voids are expected because of delayed re-let times and void repairs may 
take longer - this is provisionally estimated at c£400,000 per annum with 
the bulk of this loss profiled towards the first four months of the year. 

                    
400  

Income from commercial property - In addition to the variance above, 
there is a risk of a further loss of income due to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

                    
155  

Advertising hoardings income: In addition to the variance above, there 
is a risk of a further loss of income due to the Covid-19pandemic. 

                    
160  

Capitalisation of staffing costs - Due to the impact of Covid-19, there is 
a risk of slippage in the capital programme and this will cause staff 
capitalisation to be lower than budgeted, resulting in unbudgeted charges 
to revenue. Officers are monitoring this and should the risk crystallise, it 
will be shown as a variance.  

                    
768  

Repairs and Maintenance - The impact of Covid-19 could see an 
increase in costs such as contractual claims, extended preliminaries, 
storage and inflated material costs could. Social distancing measures 
create challenges in meeting statutory responsibilities such as carrying out 
gas safety checks which could lead to regulatory penalties and health and 
safety incidents. 

                 
1,200  

TOTAL RISKS MANAGED 3,583 

 

Supplementary Monitoring Information 

Proposed mitigations and savings to financially sustain the Housing Revenue Account 
in the long term and to manage pressures such as the additional funding required from 
the procurements associated with the Long-Term Repairs Model have been worked up 
and are being considered as part of the 2021/22 budget setting process. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 107



   
 

 44 

APPENDIX 9 - VIREMENT REQUESTS – MONTH 2 

 

Details of Virement 
Amount 
(£000) 

Department 

GENERAL FUND:     

Drawdown from Temporary Accommodation 
Reserve for Cost Avoidance Payments 

(450) The Economy 

450 The Economy 

Drawdown grant from MHCLG for Rough 
Sleeping initiatives 

(650) The Economy 

650 The Economy 

Drawdown grant from MHCLG for Community 
Housing initiatives 

(105) The Economy 

105 The Economy 

Family Services – additional staying put and 
unaccompanied asylum seeker grant allocations  

(755) Children’s Services 

755 Children’s Services 

Total of Requested Virements (Debits) 1,960   

 
 
 

Page 108



 
NOTICE OF CONSIDERATION OF A KEY DECISION  
In accordance with paragraph 9 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings 
and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the Authority hereby gives notice of 
Key Decisions which the Cabinet, Cabinet Members or Chief Officers intend to consider. The list 
may change from the date of publication as further items may be entered. 
 

NOTICE OF THE INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN 
PRIVATE  
The Authority also hereby gives notice in accordance with paragraph 5 of the above 
Regulations that it may meet in private to consider Key Decisions going to a Cabinet meeting 
which may contain confidential or exempt information.   
 
Reports relating to Cabinet key decisions which may be considered in private are indicated in 
the list of Cabinet Key Decisions below, with the reasons for the decision being made in 
private.  Any person is able to make representations to the Cabinet if he/she believes the 
Cabinet decision should instead be made in the public at the Cabinet meeting. If you want to 
make such representations, please e-mail Katia Neale on katia.neale@lbhf.gov.uk.  You will 
then be sent a response in reply to your representations. Both your representations and the 
Executive’s response will be published on the Council’s website at least 5 working days before 
the Cabinet meeting. 

 
KEY DECISIONS PROPOSED TO BE MADE BY THE AUTHORITY FROM AUGUST 
2020 UNTIL FEBRUARY 2021 
 

The following is a list of Key Decisions which the Authority proposes to take from 
August 2020. The list may change over the next few weeks.  
 
KEY DECISIONS are those which are likely to result in one or more of the following: 
 

 Any expenditure or savings which are significant (ie. in excess of £300,000) in 
relation to the Council’s budget for the service function to which the decision 
relates; 

 

 Anything affecting communities living or working in an area comprising two or 
more wards in the borough; 

 

 Anything affecting the budget and policy framework set by the Council. 
 
The Key Decisions List will be updated and published on the Council’s website at least 
on a monthly basis.  
 

NB: Key Decisions will generally be taken by the Executive at the Cabinet, by a Cabinet 
Member or by a Chief Officer.  

If you have any queries on this Key Decisions List, please contact 
Katia Neale on 07776 672 956 or by e-mail to katia.neale@lbhf.gov.uk 

Page 109

Agenda Item 7

mailto:katia.neale@lbhf.gov.uk


 
 

 
Access to Key Decision reports and other relevant documents 

 
Key Decision reports and documents relevant to matters to be considered at the Authority by 
Cabinet only, will be available on the Council’s website (www.lbhf.org.uk) a minimum of 5 
working days before the Cabinet meeting. Further information, and other relevant documents 
as they become available, can be obtained from the contact officer shown in column 4 of the 
list below.  

 
Decisions 

 
All Key Decisions will be subject to a 3-day call-in before they can be implemented, unless 
called in by Councillors. 
 

 
Making your Views Heard 

 
You can comment on any of the items in this list by contacting the officer shown in column 4. 
You can also submit a deputation to the Cabinet related to Cabinet Key Decisions only. Full 
details of how to do this (and the date by which a deputation must be submitted) will be shown 
in the Cabinet agenda. 
 

 
 
LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM CABINET  
 
Leader:            Councillor Stephen Cowan  
Deputy Leader:            Councillor Sue Fennimore   
Cabinet Member for the Environment:        Councillor Wesley Harcourt  
Cabinet Member for Housing:         Councillor Lisa Homan  
Cabinet Member for the Economy:         Councillor Andrew Jones  
Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care:      Councillor Ben Coleman 
Cabinet Member for Children and Education:       Councillor Larry Culhane 
Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial Services:     Councillor Max Schmid  
Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform:       Councillor Adam Connell 
Cabinet Member for Strategy:         Councillor Sue Macmillan 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Key Decisions List No. 97 (published 25 August 2020) 

Page 110

http://www.lbhf.org.uk/


 

KEY DECISIONS LIST – FROM AUGUST 2020 
The list also includes decisions proposed to be made by future Cabinet meetings 

 
Where column 3 shows a report as EXEMPT, the report for 

this proposed decision will be considered at the private Cabinet meeting. Anybody may make 
representations to the Cabinet to the effect that the report should be considered at the open 

Cabinet meeting (see above).  
 

* All these decisions may be called in by Councillors; If a decision is called in, it will not be capable of 
implementation until a final decision is made.  

 

Decision to 
be Made by  
 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

CABINET MEMBER AND OFFICER DECISIONS 

Finance 

Cabinet 
Member for 
the 
Environment 
 

August 2020 
 

Annual Highways Maintenance 
Programme 
 
1.1. This report seeks approval of 
the annual highway maintenance 
work programme for 2020-2021. A 
key driver for this work is 
improving the quality of our street 
scene to give residents and 
businesses prise in the borough. 
This work is planned preventative 
maintenance, aimed at prolonging 
the life of the Highway 
infrastructure within the borough.  
1.2. We aim to improve efficiency 
and provide maximum value for 
money co-ordinating as far as 
possible maintenance works with 
the implementation of LIP projects. 
We are coordinating footways with 
the need to plan more trees so use 
our planned maintenance on 
footways to increase opportunities 
for adding tree pits.  

Cabinet Member for the 
Environment 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Affects 2 or 
more wards 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Ian 
Hawthorn 
Tel: 020 8753 3058 
ian.hawthorn@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
Member for 
the 
Environment 
 

August 2020 
 

Highways Planned Maintenance 
Programme 2020-21 
 
Highways Maintenance 
programme to renew a number of 
carriageways and footways in the 
borough as part of the asset 
management of the boroughs 
highway network. To ensure safety 
requirements under the Highways 
Act 1980. 
 
 

Cabinet Member for the 
Environment 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome 
above £300K 
- Revenue 
up to £500k 
and Capital 
up to 1.5m 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Ian 
Hawthorn 
Tel: 020 8753 3058 
ian.hawthorn@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 111



 
 

Decision to 
be Made by 
(Cabinet or 
Council) 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 
 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

Cabinet 
Member for 
the 
Environment 
 

Before 1 Sep 
2020 
 

Public Spaces Protection Order 
 
Decision whether to extend 
borough wide PSPO related to 
consumption of alcohol under the 
ASB, Policing and Crime Act 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for the 
Environment 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 

Reason: 
Affects 2 or 
more wards 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: 
Felicity Charles 
Tel: 02087534311 
Felicity.Charles@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
Member for 
the 
Environment 
 

August 2020 
 

Proposals for the Noise and 
Nuisance team’s revised service 
hours 
 
Review of the Hours of operation 
of the borough's Noise & Nuisance 
service 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for the 
Environment 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Affects 2 or 
more wards 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: 
Valerie Simpson 
Tel: 020 8753 3905 

Valerie.Simpson@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Housing 
 

August 2020 
 

Replacement of Spandrel 
Panels (Medium and Low Risk 
Properties) 
 
Replacement of Spandrel Panels 
at the identified properties 
covering the stripping out of 
existing panels and renewing 
panels including carrying out, as 
required, all associated works. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome - 
Revenue 
between 
£500,000 
and £5m and 
Capital 
between 
£1.5m and 
£5m 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: 
Dominic D Souza 
 

Dominic.DSouza@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Leader of 
the Council 
 

August 2020 
 

PCC Recommendations 
 

The decision relates to 
approving the formal response 
to the recommendations made 
by the Policing and Crime 
Commission. 
 
 

Deputy Leader 

 
A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 

Reason: 
Affects 2 or 
more wards 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: 
Matthew Hooper 
Tel: 07450 964 681 

Page 112



 
 

Decision to 
be Made by 
(Cabinet or 
Council) 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 
 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

Reasons for Urgency   
   
The resident-led Policing and 
Crime 
Commission (PCC) was create
d as part of H&F’s commitment 
to do things with residents, not 
to them. A huge amount of 
work has gone into the final 
report of the PCC and it comes 
at a time of substantial change. 
The response to these 
recommendations requires 
urgent approval to ensure 
that the work to deliver the 
commitments aligns with the 
Council’s wider organisational 
planning and transformation 
agenda.   
 

Matthew.Hooper@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Resources 

Strategic 
Director of 
the 
Economy 
Department 
 

August 2020 
 

APPOINTMENT OF 
EMPLOYER’S AGENT ON 
WHITE CITY CENTRAL SCHEME 
 
Appointment of the recommended 
Employer’s Agent for the White 
City Central scheme. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for the 
Economy 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome 
above £300K 
- Revenue 
up to £500k 
and Capital 
up to 1.5m 
 

Ward(s): 
Wormholt and White 
City 
 

Contact officer: 
Ayesha Ovaisi 
Tel: 020 8753 5584 
Ayesha.Ovaisi@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

Strategic 
Director of 
the 
Economy 
Department 
 

August 2020 
 

APPOINTMENT OF LEAD 
ARCHITECT FOR WHITE CITY 
CENTRAL SCHEME 
 
Appointment of the recommended 
Lead Architect for the White City 
Central scheme. 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for the 
Economy 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome - 
Revenue 
between 
£500,000 
and £5m and 
Capital 
between 
£1.5m and 
£5m 
 

Ward(s): 
Wormholt and White 
City 
 

Contact officer: 
Ayesha Ovaisi 
Tel: 020 8753 5584 
Ayesha.Ovaisi@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Page 113



 
 

Decision to 
be Made by 
(Cabinet or 
Council) 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 
 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

Director of 
Finance 
 

August 2020 
 

Banking Services Procurement 
Strategy 
 
Re-tender for the provision of 
banking services, as the current 
contract is due to expire in March 
2020. Estimated value is £300k for 
a 10-year contract.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance and 
Commercial Services 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome - 
Revenue 
between 
£500,000 
and £5m and 
Capital 
between 
£1.5m and 
£5m 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Andra 
Ulianov 
Tel: 02087532284 
Andra.Ulianov@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Strategic 
Director of 
Environment 
 

August 2020 
 

Procurement strategy in relation 
to the procurement of books 
and audio materials for the 
libraries via a framework 
agreement 
 
For the Council to call off from the 
new two-year (plus two-year 
extension) framework agreement 
for the supply of library books and 
audio-visual materials at a total 
estimated cost for the initial two 
years of £200,000 (plus potentially 
a further £200,000). The award by 
WSCC will take place in mid-
December 2019 and the new 
framework agreement will begin 1 
April 2020. 
 

Cabinet Member for the 
Economy 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome 
above £300K 
- Revenue 
up to £500k 
and Capital 
up to 1.5m 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: 
Sameena Ali 
Tel: 07824 407 247 
Sameena.Ali@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Health and 
Adult Social 
Care 
 

August 2020 
 

Elmgrove extra care 
accommodation direct award 
report 
 
Request to continue the extra care 
contract at Elmgrove with Notting 
Hill Genesis beyond the current 
contract end date for a further one 
year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome - 
Revenue 
between 
£500,000 
and £5m and 
Capital 
between 
£1.5m and 
£5m 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Laura 
Palfreeman 
Tel: 0208 753 1953 
Laura.Palfreeman@lbhf.gov.
uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 114



 
 

Decision to 
be Made by 
(Cabinet or 
Council) 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 
 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

Director 
Children's 
Services 
 

August 2020 
 

Call-off Contract Extensions for 
Semi-Independent Living 
Support Providers 
 
Decision report recommending 
short-term extensions of up to six 
months from 12 April 2020 to 12 
September 2020 to 16 call-off 
contracts to secure continuation of 
existing provision of semi-
independent living (SIL) 
accommodation arrangements for 
Looked After Children and Young 
People leaving care to enable 
continuity of these valuable 
services during the current Covid-
19 outbreak. 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Children and Education 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome 
above £300K 
- Revenue 
up to £500k 
and Capital 
up to 1.5m 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Will 
Parsons 
Tel: 0776 848 6764 
Will.Parsons@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Children 
and 
Education 
 

August 2020 
 

Centrepoint Contract for Care 
Leavers Accommodation 
 
Decision report recommending the 
extension and modification of an 
existing supported housing 
contract delivered by Centrepoint 
Soho for the provision of 
accommodation-based support for 
young people leaving care. 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Children and Education 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome - 
Revenue 
between 
£500,000 
and £5m and 
Capital 
between 
£1.5m and 
£5m 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Will 
Parsons 
Tel: 0776 848 6764 
Will.Parsons@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
Member for 
the 
Environment 
 

August 2020 
 

Procurement Strategy for Land 
and Property System 
 
The IDOX Group currently 
provides the Council’s land and 
property-based IT case 
management system (Uniform) for 
multiple regulatory services across 
the authority.  
 
The software is highly embedded 
within the organisation and 
underpins a large number of 
business processes and casework 
management. Its contract has 
expired and needs to be 
reprocured. 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for the 
Environment 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome - 
Revenue 
between 
£500,000 
and £5m and 
Capital 
between 
£1.5m and 
£5m 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Josh 
Hadley 
Tel: 020 8753 1980 
Josh.Hadley@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 115



 
 

Decision to 
be Made by 
(Cabinet or 
Council) 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 
 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

Strategic 
Director of 
Environment 
 

August 2020 
 

Procurement Strategy and 
Contract Award Approval – 
GULCS Electric Vehicle Charge 
Points 
 
To agree to use the GULCS (TfL) 
Framework for funding EV charge 
points (The Council has already 
signed the s159 agreement to 
access the £233,000 funding from 
GULCS). Award call-off contract 
for the supply and operation of 
charge points. 
 

Cabinet Member for the 
Environment 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome 
above £300K 
- Revenue 
up to £500k 
and Capital 
up to 1.5m 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: 
Richard Hearle 
 
Richard.Hearle@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Health and 
Adult Social 
Care 
 

August 2020 
 

Emlyn Gardens - Adults with 
disabilities supported living 
procurement strategy 
 
Report seeks pre-tender approval 
for the procurement strategy which 
sets out the intention to tender for 
the specialist care and support 
service which will be provided at 
Emlyn Gardens 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome 
above £300K 
- Revenue 
up to £500k 
and Capital 
up to 1.5m 

Ward(s): 
Askew 
 

Contact officer: 
Michele Roberts 
Tel: 020 8834 4734 

Michele.Roberts@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Housing 
 

4 Sep 2020 
 

Contract Award Report – LED 
Lighting Replacement Project 
(Lot 1 – Estate Lighting) and 
(Lot 2 – Block Communal 
Lighting) 
 
The LED programme proposal has 
two (2) main parts - Estate 
Lighting and Communal Lighting. 
The proposal is to replace the 
existing residential block and 
estate lighting with LED 
equivalent, which is consistent 
with the Council’s aim of being the 
greenest borough in the country. 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome over 
£5m & 
policies or 
new income, 
reserves 
use, 
overspend 
over £100K 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: 
Dominic D Souza 
 

Dominic.DSouza@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 

Strategic 
Director of 
the 
Economy 
Department 
 

Before 30 
Oct 2020 
 

Rough Sleeping Services 
Contract Awards 
 
Five rough sleeping service 
contracts expired on 31.10.20. 
Report will include 
recommendations about future 
contracts. 
 
 

Cabinet Member for the 
Economy 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome 
above £300K 
- Revenue 
up to £500k 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Julia 
Copeland 
Tel: 0208 753 1203 

Page 116



 
 

Decision to 
be Made by 
(Cabinet or 
Council) 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 
 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

and Capital 
up to 1.5m 
 

julia.copeland@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Director 
Children's 
Services 
 

Before 31 
Aug 2020 
 

Approval to agree contract with 
Family support Service (FSS) 
 

To enable to enter in to a 
contract with Family Support 
Service (FSS). 
 
Reasons for urgency: 
Further to Early Help, Children’s 

Centre and Youth Services Budget 
Spend Increase paper approved at 
Cabinet on 6th July it agreed that 
savings should be agreed to 
mitigate overspend associated 
with the wider early help budget. 
This has now been agreed and 
therefore a contract can be agreed 
with FSS. The urgency for this due 
to FSS currently operating without 
an agreed contract with the local 
authority.  
 

Cabinet Member for 
Children and Education 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome 
above £300K 
- Revenue 
up to £500k 
and Capital 
up to 1.5m 
 

Ward(s): 
 
 

Contact officer: Lesley 
Bell 
 
Lesley.Bell@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Children 
and 
Education 
 

Before 31 
Aug 2020 
 

Contract Extensions on Family 
Support (FS) Framework 
 

To extend a series of contracts on 
the Family Support Service (FSS) 
framework and deliver savings 
required.  

Reasons for urgency: 
Further to Early Help, Children’s 
Centre and Youth Services Budget 
Spend Increase paper approved at 
Cabinet on 6th July it agreed that 
savings should be agreed with 
providers prior to extensions being 
given. Any delay in agreeing these 
contracts will delay and reduce 
savings being realised and may 
result in overspend and further 
pressure on the council’s general 
fund.  

 

 

 

Cabinet Member for 
Children and Education 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome - 
Revenue 
between 
£500,000 
and £5m and 
Capital 
between 
£1.5m and 
£5m 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Lesley 
Bell 
 
Lesley.Bell@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 117



 
 

Decision to 
be Made by 
(Cabinet or 
Council) 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 
 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

CABINET - 7 SEPTEMBER 2020 

Finance 

Cabinet 
 

7 Sep 2020 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
MONITOR & BUDGET 
VARIATIONS, 2019/20 
(OUTTURN) 
 
This report provides a summary of 
the Council’s capital programme 
outturn for the financial year 2019-
20. 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance and 
Commercial Services 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome over 
£5m & 
policies or 
new income, 
reserves 
use, 
overspend 
over £100K 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: 
Andrew Lord 
Tel: 020 8753 2531 
andrew.lord@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

Cabinet 
 

7 Sep 2020 
 

2019/20 GENERAL FUND 
REVENUE OUTTURN REPORT 
 
To present the 2019-20 outturn 
spend v budget and explanations 
for major variances. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance and 
Commercial Services 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Affects 2 or 
more wards 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Emily 
Hill 
 
emily.hill@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Cabinet 
 

7 Sep 2020 
 

CORPORATE REVENUE 
MONITOR 2020/21 MONTH 2 - 31 
MAY 2020 
 
To report the forecast, spend 
against budget as at end of May. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance and 
Commercial Services 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reason: 
Affects 2 or 
more wards 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Emily 
Hill 
 
emily.hill@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 118



 
 

Decision to 
be Made by 
(Cabinet or 
Council) 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 
 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

CABINET - 12 OCTOBER 2020 

Finance 

Cabinet 
 

12 Oct 2020 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
MONITOR & BUDGET 
VARIATIONS, 2020/21 (FIRST 
QUARTER) 
 
This report provides a financial 
update on the council’s capital 
programme at the end of the first 
quarter and requests approval for 
any budget variations. 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance and 
Commercial Services 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome over 
£5m & 
policies or 
new income, 
reserves 
use, 
overspend 
over £100K 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: 
Andrew Lord 
Tel: 020 8753 2531 
andrew.lord@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Cabinet 
 

12 Oct 2020 
 

Ultra-Low Emission Vehicle 
Last-Mile Freight Hub 
 
Provision of a 'Freight Hub' facility 
to serve Council departments and 
businesses and help to reduce 
traffic and congestion in 
Hammersmith. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for the 
Environment 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
 
 

Ward(s): 
Hammersmith 
Broadway 
 

Contact officer: 
Hinesh Mehta 
 
Hinesh.Mehta@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

Cabinet 
 

October 
2020 
 

Education City 
 
S203 Appropriation 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for the 
Economy 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Budg/pol 
framework 
 

Ward(s): 
Wormholt and White 
City 
 

Contact officer: 
Jacquie Agyemang-
Johnson 
Tel: 07787 152733 
Jacquie.Agyemang-
Johnson@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 119



 
 

Decision to 
be Made by 
(Cabinet or 
Council) 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 
 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

Cabinet 
 

12 Oct 2020 
 

Hartopp and Lannoy Point site 
development consultant 
services 
 
Report will request authority to 
fund the development for 
consultancy services up to the end 
of RIBA stage 3. 
 
PART OPEN 
 
PART PRIVATE 
Part of this report is exempt from 
disclosure on the grounds that it 
contains information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of a 
particular person (including the 
authority holding that information) 
under paragraph 3 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 
1972, and in all the circumstances 
of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 

Cabinet Member for the 
Economy 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome - 
Revenue 
between 
£500,000 
and £5m and 
Capital 
between 
£1.5m and 
£5m 
 

Ward(s): 
Munster 
 

Contact officer: Omar 
Villalba 
Tel: 07769288779 
Omar.Villalba@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
 

12 Oct 2020 
 

Changes to Scheme of 
Allocation and Allocation 
process 
 
This report requests permission to 
implement the changes following 
consultation on proposed changes 
to the Council's Housing Allocation 
Scheme. 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 

Reason: 
Affects 2 or 
more wards 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: 
Glendine Shepherd 
Tel: 020 8753 4148 
Glendine.Shepherd@lbhf.go
v.uk 

 
 

Cabinet 
 

12 Oct 2020 
 

Egyptian House - new housing 
and community facilities 
 
A property transaction that will 
result in housing units including 
affordable housing and community 
facilities. 
 
PART OPEN 
 
PART PRIVATE 
Part of this report is exempt from 
disclosure on the grounds that it 
contains information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of a 

Cabinet Member for the 
Economy 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Budg/pol 
framework 
 

Ward(s): 
Wormholt and White 
City 
 

Contact officer: Nigel 
Brown 
Tel: 020 8753 2835 
Nigel.Brown@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Page 120



 
 

Decision to 
be Made by 
(Cabinet or 
Council) 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 
 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

particular person (including the 
authority holding that information) 
under paragraph 3 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 
1972, and in all the circumstances 
of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 

 
 

Cabinet 
 

12 Oct 2020 
 

Sands End Arts and Community 
Centre -Community Asset 
Transfer 
 
This report is requesting approval 
for the Council to grant a lease , of 
SEACC and a licence to operate 
the Seed Bank, to the proposed 
SEACC Trust, once established, 
for a term of up to 99 years at a 
peppercorn rent. 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for the 
Economy, Cabinet 
Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome over 
£5m & 
policies or 
new income, 
reserves 
use, 
overspend 
over £100K 
 

Ward(s): 
Sands End 
 

Contact officer: Steve 
Hollingworth 
Tel: 07823 534 934 
stephen.hollingworth@lbhf.g
ov.uk 

 
 
 

Resources 

Cabinet 
 

12 Oct 2020 
 

North End Road Good Growth 
Fund 
 
To approve entering into a grant 
funding agreement with Greater 
London Authority for Good Growth 
Fund and to approve match 
funding strategy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for the 
Economy 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome over 
£5m & 
policies or 
new income, 
reserves 
use, 
overspend 
over £100K 
 

Ward(s): 
Fulham Broadway; 
North End 
 

Contact officer: 
Matthew Rumble, 
Chris Patterson, 
Kamal Hanif 
Tel: 07557 295899, Tel: 
044777 1843 975 
matt.rumble@lbhf.gov.uk, 
chris.patterson@lbhf.gov.uk, 
Kamal.Hanif@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

Cabinet 
 

12 Oct 2020 
 

Resident Access and 
Experience Programme 
 
Digital transformation programme 
for how residents and businesses 
contact and access the Council 
 
PART OPEN 
PART PRIVATE 

Cabinet Member for 
Public Services Reform 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 

Reason: 
Budg/pol 
framework 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Thea 
Baillie, Nicola Ellis 
Tel: 07776673095 

Page 121



 
 

Decision to 
be Made by 
(Cabinet or 
Council) 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 
 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

Part of this report is exempt from 
disclosure on the grounds that it 
contains information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of a 
particular person (including the 
authority holding that information) 
under paragraph 3 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 
1972, and in all the circumstances 
of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 

Thea.Baillie@lbhf.gov.uk, 
nicola.ellis@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Cabinet 
 

September 
2020 
 

Covid-19 response and recovery 
transparency report 
 
To update Cabinet of the work that 
has taken place throughout the 
Covid-19 pandemic, the plans for 
recovery and some of the 
challenges ahead.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Leader of the Council 

 
A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Linda 
Jackson 
Tel: 07776 673085 
Linda.Jackson@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 

CABINET - 2 NOVEMBER 2020 

Finance 

Cabinet 
 

2 Nov 2020 
 

Corporate Revenue Monitor 
Month 4 (July 2020) 
 
Update on forecast variance at 
end of July 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance and 
Commercial Services 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Affects 2 or 
more wards 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Gary 
Ironmonger 
Tel: 020 8753 2109 
Gary.Ironmonger@lbhf.gov.
uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 122



 
 

Decision to 
be Made by 
(Cabinet or 
Council) 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 
 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

Resources 

Cabinet 
 

2 Nov 2020 
 

Housing Strategy 2019 
 
Report on the Council's new 
Housing Strategy 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 

Reason: 
Affects 2 or 
more wards 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Labab 
Lubab 
Tel: 020 8753 4203 
Labab.Lubab@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Cabinet 
 

2 Nov 2020 
 

Business Case & Procurement 
Strategy for major 
refurbishment of three housing 
estates (Sulivan Court Phase 2, 
Becklow Gardens, Emlyn 
Gardens) 
 
This report seeks approval of the 
Business Case & Procurement 
Strategy for the major 
refurbishment of three housing 
estates: Sulivan Court SW6, 
Becklow Gardens W12, and Emlyn 
Gardens W12 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome over 
£5m & 
policies or 
new income, 
reserves 
use, 
overspend 
over £100K 
 

Ward(s): 
Askew; Sands End 
 

Contact officer: Vince 
Conway 
Tel: 020 8753 1915 
Vince.Conway@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 

CABINET - 4 JANUARY 2021 

Finance 

Cabinet 
 

4 Jan 2021 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
MONITOR & BUDGET 
VARIATIONS, 2020/21 (SECOND 
QUARTER) 
 
This report provides a financial 
update on the council’s capital 
programme at the end of the 
second quarter and requests 
approval for any budget variations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance and 
Commercial Services 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome over 
£5m & 
policies or 
new income, 
reserves 
use, 
overspend 
over £100K 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: 
Andrew Lord 
Tel: 020 8753 2531 
andrew.lord@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 123



 
 

Decision to 
be Made by 
(Cabinet or 
Council) 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 
 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

Cabinet 
 

4 Jan 2021 
 

Corporate Revenue Monitor 
Month 6 (September 2020) 
 
To inform Cabinet of the forecast 
budget variance at end of 
September to ensure ruthless 
financial efficiency. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance and 
Commercial Services 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Affects 2 or 
more wards 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Gary 
Ironmonger 
Tel: 020 8753 2109 
Gary.Ironmonger@lbhf.gov.
uk 

 
 

Resources 

Cabinet 
 

January 
2021 
 

Procurement Strategy for 
Mental Health Supported 
Housing 
 
Procurement strategy for our 
mental health supported housing 
in borough contracts. 
 
PART OPEN 
 
PART PRIVATE 
Part of this report is exempt from 
disclosure on the grounds that it 
contains information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of a 
particular person (including the 
authority holding that information) 
under paragraph 3 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 
1972, and in all the circumstances 
of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 
 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome over 
£5m & 
policies or 
new income, 
reserves 
use, 
overspend 
over £100K 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: 
Joanna Mccormick, 
Michele Roberts 
Tel: 0741207694, Tel: 
020 8834 4734 
Joanna.Mccormick@lbhf.gov
.uk, 
Michele.Roberts@lbhf.gov.u
k 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CABINET - 1 FEBRUARY 2021 

Finance 

Cabinet 
 

1 Feb 2021 
 

FOUR YEAR CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 2021/22 AND 
CAPITAL STRATEGY 2021/22 
 
This report presents the Council’s 
four-year Capital Programme for 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance and 
Commercial Services 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome over 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Page 124



 
 

Decision to 
be Made by 
(Cabinet or 
Council) 
 

Date of 
Decision-
Making 
Meeting and 
Reason 
 

Proposed Key Decision 
 
Most decisions are made in 
public unless indicated below, 
with the reasons for the 
decision being made in private. 
 

Lead Executive 
Councillor(s), Wards 
Affected, and officer 
to contact for further 
information or 
relevant documents 
 

Documents to 
be submitted to 
Cabinet  
(other relevant 
documents may 
be submitted) 
 

£5m & 
policies or 
new income, 
reserves 
use, 
overspend 
over £100K 
 

the period 2021 - 2025. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact officer: 
Andrew Lord 
Tel: 020 8753 2531 
andrew.lord@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 

will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 

Cabinet 
 

1 Feb 2021 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
MONITOR & BUDGET 
VARIATIONS, 2020/21 (THIRD 
QUARTER) 
 
This report provides a financial 
update on the council’s capital 
programme (third quarter) and 
requests approval for budget 
variations to the capital 
programme. 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance and 
Commercial Services 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 

Reason: 
Expenditure/I
ncome over 
£5m & 
policies or 
new income, 
reserves 
use, 
overspend 
over £100K 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: 
Andrew Lord 
Tel: 020 8753 2531 
andrew.lord@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Resources 

Cabinet 
 

1 Feb 2021 
 

Defend Council Homes Policy 
 
Policy to provide extra protection 
for residents of council homes, 
involving them from the start of 
any redevelopment proposals and 
ensuring the council is working to 
best practice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing 

 

A detailed report 
for this item will be 
available at least 
five working days 
before the date of 
the meeting and 
will include details 
of any supporting 
documentation 
and / or 
background 
papers to be 
considered. 

Reason: 
Affects 2 or 
more wards 
 

Ward(s): 
All Wards 
 

Contact officer: Fiona 
Darby, Daniel Miller 
Tel: 020 8753 6996 
Fiona.Darby@lbhf.gov.uk, 
daniel.miller@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 125


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting held on 6 July 2020
	4 Capital Programme Monitor & Budget Variations, 2019/20 (Outturn)
	5 2019/20 General Fund Revenue Outturn Report
	6 2020/21 Corporate Revenue Monitor -  Month 2 (May 2020)
	7 Forward Plan of Key Decisions

